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ONE HUNDRED
YEARS OF SERVICE

TR . TierOne Corporation
o P | (NASDAQTTONB)is
ERNY / / the holding company
- ¥ \ 1 for TierOne Bank, a fed-

, . = erally chartered savings
- bank headquartered

in Lincoln, Nebraska.

Nebraska Stuate Sen. Carel Hudkins and . .
With assets wraling over

$3.5 billion, TierOne

Bank has grown to

Cioe, £ave Heinennn present TierOne
sifciuls with a prockimation recognizing
the banks 100th anniversary,

become the largest publicly traded financial
institution headquartered in Nebraska and ranks as
one of the largese publicly held chrifts in the Midwest.

Commemorating its 100th Anniversary in 2007,
TierOne Bank offers a wide variety of full service
onsumer. commercial and agricultural banking

products and services to customers through a
network of 69 banking offices in Nebraska, lowa
and Kansas. Leading produces include residential,
commeicial and agricultural real estate financing;
consumer, construction, business and agricultural
production loans and lines of credit; consumer and
bustness checking and savings plans; invesiment
and insurance services; and relephone and Internet

banking convenience.

The Bank’s primary subsidiaries include TierOne
Investments and Insurance, which offers 2 full
range of brokerage, investment and insurance
services, TierOne Reinsurance, an Arizona-charcered
subsidiary offering reinsurance underwriting services
and United Farm & Ranch Management Inc., which
provides professional farm management services.

At or For the Year Ended December 31,

Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2105

Total assets $ 3,537,766 $  3.431,169 $ 3,221,275
Net loans 2.876.129 3.050.160 2,841,670
Deposits 2,430,544 2,052,343 2,031,319
Stockholders” equity 345,590 353,283 304,867
Net interest ncome $ 116,120 $  125.868 3 108,218
Noninterest tncome 30,337 29,084 2¢ 585
Net income {12,425) 41,315 32,832
Return on average assets 10.26)% 1.25% 1.25%
Return on average equity (3.39)% 12.48% 11.28%
Ner interest margin 3.58% 4.07% 3.58%




Dear Shareholders,

Reaching the 100-year milestone mark is a
rare accomplishment in today’s business world.
Such longevity is often achieved through strong
leadership, perseverance, adaprability, hard
work and determination — both in prosperous
and challenging times. Your Company’s track
record over this past century is a truc testament
to TierOne’s ability to meet challenges and
emerge stronger and better prepared for the next
new opportunity.

2007 will be recognized as one of the most
challenging years in the financial services industry.

the
markets driven in large part by a global credit

Unprecedented  turbulence in financial
contraction and a severe setback in our nation’s
housing market collectively rippled through our
economy and resulted in one of the most financially
disruptive periods in recent memory. In a matter
of just a few short months, financial institutions

the found

experiencing substantially higher credic default

throughout country themselves
rates, rising levels of nonperforming loans, severe
carnings compression and weakening stock values.

TierOne Bank has not been immune to the
distuptive dynamics of this very volatile
economic environment.

Bottom line, our financial performance in 2007
has not lived up o the tradidionally high level of
expectations our shareholders have come to expect.
We are acutely aware of this fact — and we are actively

working to address ir.

AN UNPRECEDENTED YEAR
To gain a better perspective of the magnitude
of the disruption in the U.S. financial markets,
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it is important to recognize the driving force that
wiggered the disruption in the first place: an
unsustainable financing structure.

The dream of owning a home is a fundamental
desire of nearly every American family.

To accommodare this dream, some lenders across
the country engaged in risky lending practices to
provide less creditworthy borrowers the opportunity
to purchase a home - the “subprime loan”. With the
well documented collapse of the subprime market,
demand for housing quickly dropped and the home
price “bubble” in many previously robust regions of
the country burst— especially in areas such as Florida,
Nevada, California and Arizona.

Even though TierOne has not participated in
subprime lending or any of the other higher risk loan
investment pools, erosion in home values and the
related economic slowdown in areas where TierOne
engages in regional lending have directly impacted
our financial performance.

Financial stock prices reflected the downward
trend in housing, Stocks within the S&P Bank
sector declined 32.5 percent in 2007; the poorest

(left) James A. Laphen, Presiden: and Chief Operating Officer, and (right)
Githert G, Lundstrom, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer




performing sector of the year and the worst
decline in bank stocks since 1990. By some accounts,
2007 ranked as the third worst performing year
for banking-related stocks since 1939. Year-to-date
through June 2008, the S&P Bank sector was down
an additional 37.6 percent.

As a result of these negative market dynamics,
TierOne recorded a loss in 2007 of $12.4 million —
the first annual loss we have ever posted as a public
company. Much of the loss was atuwibutable to
recording $68.1 million in provisions for loan
losses in 2007 compared to $6.1 million the year
before. These reserves were established to address
our nonperforming loans which grew from $30.1
million at December 31, 2006, to $128.5 million
one year later. These nonperforming loans were
primarily concentrated in residential construction
and land developrient loans for properties in Florida
and Nevada.

We further recorded a $39.9 million provision for
loan losses in the first quarter of 2008 and incurred
a $42.1 million non-cash goodwill impairment
charge. The goodwill charge, which was required
under applicable accounting rules, had no impact
on the Company’s liquidity, cash flows or regulatory
capital and is in response to the on-going volatility
in the financial industry and the overall impact
this volatility has had on market prices of most
banking stocks.

In the spring of 2007, we also announced a
proposed merger agreement with a large specialty
finance firm. This strategic partnership would have
allowed TierOne to grow
while still maintaining
its Midwestern roots
and identity, Shortly
after the cransaction
announcement, however,
the markets turned

dramatically downward. In March 2008, TierOne
terminated the agreement following a substantial
decline in the merger consideration payable to our
sharcholders and the on-going delay in obtaining
federal regulatory approval.

Allinall, the “perfect storm” of events thatunfolded
in 2007 in the financial and housing markets created
numerous challenges for many in the banking
sector — including TierOne.

TIERONE’S RESPONSE

To address these challenges, TierOne has aken
a number of steps primarily focused on four key
areas: limiting our exposure in selected geographic
markets and business lines; maintaining a sufficient
level of reserves; tightening our credic policies;
and strengthening our credic  administration
function through the addition of personnel with
extensive depth and expertise in credit analysis and
special assets.

Our efforts o limit our geographic exposure,
especially in those markets hardest hit by the housing
crunch, have been underway. At December 31,
2005, our total loans in Florida were $508.8 million
— mostly in residential construction loans. We ceased
purchasing any additional residential construction
loans in late 2005 and as a result, our Florida loan
exposure has declined 73.3 percent to $135.9 million
by March 31, 2008. I[n June 2008, we sold over 300
delinquent residential construction loans previously
originated by a Florida-based mortgage brokerage
firm and announced the closing of all nine of
our loan production offices located in Arizona,
Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and North
Carolina. In addition to our significant reduction
in residential construction loans, we have reduced
our exposure in more economically sensitive loan
types including commercial construction, land

development and commercial real estate loans.



As we addressed earlier, building a sufficient level
of reserves is vitally important during uncertain
economic times. Qur allowance for loan losses at
March 31, 2008, was $78.5 million; a 137.0 percent
increase from year-end 20006. Although additions to
this allowance have had a direct, short-term impact
to bottom line earnings, they are essential to ensuring
the long-term financial integrity of your Company.

We have taken a very aggressive look at our internal
credit policies and have made adjustments where
appropriate. We have strategically tightened our
loan underwriting criteria in many areas, restricted
loan-to-value ratios in several categories, reduced
our exposure to speculative lending and are
concentrating on originating new loans more in
our existing footprint area. On somewhat larger
projects, we are parmering with other lenders
to better diversify our credir risk. And for those
borrowers who have become delinquent, we are
significantly stepping up our efforts to either find
workout solutions or pursue legal action to protect
your Company’s interests.

Finall, we have strengthened our credit
administration function with the addition of a
new chief credit officer, senior credic officer, special

asset manager and other credit-related personnel.

These lending veterans bring decades of valuable
experience (o TierOne and are already contributing
toward our efforts to tighten credit policies, improve
asset quality and resolve outstanding nonperforming
loan issues.

UNDERLYING FUNDAMENTALS
Notwithstanding the challenges your Company
has faced, the balance of our core operations
remains solid.
Maintaining a strong capital position is paramount
to the long-term financial health of your Company
and it remains one of our top priorities. Ever since
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we became a public company in 2002 — and for many

years prior to that — TierOne has been categorized as
a “well capitalized” institution by the United States
government; the highest rating awarded to federally
insured financial institutions. We exceed these highest
standards for risk-based and Tier 1 capital by millions
of dollars and will work to ensure the continuity of our
regulatory capital position.

Our ability to generate deposits was demonstrared
in 2007. A combination of competitive rates,
strategic marketing and strong sales efforts by our
front-line recail staff contributed to an 18.4 percent
increase in 2007 deposits to over $2.4 billion. This
increase was fucled by strong organic growth from
existing consumer and business customers and
growth from new customer relationships. Asaresult,
TierOne has climbed to become the third largest
financial institution in Nebraska based upon total
statewide deposits.

Due in large part to improved sales training and
direct marketing efforts, TierOne experienced
a steady increase in the total number of deposic
households, average number of bank products
held by each customer household and average
balance of depository households. Earning a
greater “share of wallet” has been a major customer




On March 27, 1907 TierOne Bank
was established in Lincoln, Nebraska
under the name Fidelity Savings

and Loan Association. Nine
civic-minded leaders with great
vision organized the Association,
and by the end of the first year,
assets totaled more than $13,000.

Downtawn Lincoin, Nebrasha, c1907

ONE HUNDRE

e s
1907 £1908 1927 1935

The first production Model T} M i & oy : o ] )
is built on September 27, 1908, '!r "‘:' RESSAURRLT ; Fidelity Savings and Loar is one

at the Piquette Plant in Detroit, . ] : of the fi-st savings associations to
Michigan. It is generally - — : apply for a federal charter under

regarded as the first affordable the Honie Owners' Loan Act. A
automobile, the car that On June 24, 1935, the Associatio
“put America on wheels.” receives its federal charter and
changes its name to First Federal
Savings and Loan Association
of Linccin.

American aviator,

author, inventor, and explorer,
Charles Lindbergh, rises to instant
world fame as the pilot of the first
nonstop Transatlantic flight {rom
New York to Paris made in the
single seat, single engine

aircraft Spirit of St. Louwis.




" SICIAHIC Dbl Teds WILTICSSTAL ST L AT
1 opportunirties, challénges, growth and
change over 1ts 100-year history. However,
the Bank’s corporate values of integrity,
reliability and innovarion and its continued
commitment to providing customers with

superior service remain constant and strong.

YEARS OF FIRSTS

lU(.l'dy, PICTR TIC LA 1S PUSI[IUIICU 'dlllUIlg
the top Midwestern community banks.
With over $3.5 billion in assets and a
network of 69 banking offices located in
our tri-state markert area, TierOne Bank is the
largest publicly-traded financial institution

headquartered in Nebraska.

WWII 1935-1945
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Following World War I, First Federal becomes the : - R
First Federal responds to first financial institution in : -
rising demand for housing by the nation to develop and
becoming the first mortgage implement money cards and
lender in Nebraska to make electronic funds transfer (EFT}.
veterans’ loans.
The first floppy
disk is manufacture
dawning the era of
: bringing personal
The first man-made computers to
object to orbit the vtV o the desktop.
: Earth, Sputnik, is By )
~ The Golden Gate Bridge launched on v
. opens on May 28, 1937. October 4, 1857, /
The 4,200-foot-long bridge The space race -
was the longest suspension begins.

bridge in the world and
cennected San Francisco
to Marin County across
the Golden Gate Strait.

On July 20, 1969, American
astronauts Neil Armstreng and
Buzz Aldrin become the first
men to set foot on the surface




TierOne Banl¢ strives to be

a progressive community bank, with
more than 900 employsces dedicated

to the TierOne brand promise of “Taking
the Extra Step.” This dedication has
strategically positioned the Bank as an
innovative market leader and has
contributed to strengthening the
company’s product availability and

fueling its quality service culture.

$1 B -or Assets

$2 B: hon Assits » Biion Assets

1974

First Federal earns
nationwide acclaim

by pioneering in-store
banking through the use
of remote terminals in
grocery stores.

[

1979 : 1980

Cn August 20, 1980,
Reinhold Messner of Italy
completes the first solo
ascent of Mt. Everest
without supplementary
oxygen or support.

N

First Federal
introduces the
MoneyNow account,
the lirst “checking”
account offered by a
savings and foan.

: 1993

2002 2007

The newly rebranded
TierOne Corporation
celebrates its new public
status at a NASDAQ
listing ceremony in

New York City.

The first web browser to
display graphical content
within text is released by
developers, ushering a
boom in worldwide
internet usage.




initiative since 2000 and leads to increased customer
retention and household profitabilicy.

Our corporate banking services for small- and
medium-sized businesses exhibited positive growth
on both the lending and deposit side. Total business
loans grew 14.5 percent in 2007 o over $252.7
million and business deposits grew an even stronger
17.1 percent to $240.8 million. Our focus on
business banking has been enhanced through the
further deployment of a growing team of professional
commercial bankers in key metropolitan and
regional growth center markets and has provided
additional non-real estate-related diversity to our
foan portfolio.

The depth of your Company’s retail banking
network throughout its Midwestern footprint
provides customers many locally convenient options
to conduct all their banking needs. With 69 total
banking offices — including more full-service offices
in Nebraska than any of our compertitors — TierOne
is well posiioned to meet the ever-increasing
demands of today’s busy customer. Qur newest
full-service banking facility — which opened in mid-
December 2006 — is located in a vibrant suburban
market of the Omaha metropolitan area and the
fastest growing county in our entire tri-state banking
market. After just its first year of operation, the new
Papillion office is on track o becoming one of our
leading suburban offices.

A LOOK AHEAD

The economic headwinds from 2007 have already
carried over into 2008. This cyclical period of economic
uncertainty and disruption within the financial and
creditmarkets is noc likely to right itself in the immediate
future; however, some faint swubilizing signs have
begun to emerge in selected areas. Unuil these signs begin
to gain traction, financial institutions throughout
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the country — including TierOne — will be faced with
the task of minimizing risk, improving asset quality
and boosting core carnings. We are committed to
taking the decisive steps necessary to achieve each of
these initiarives.

In challenging times, the character of a company
is often judged by the commitment of its employees
and the continued loyalty of its customers. We are
fortunate to have such a dedicated, professional ream
of highly qualified employees whose unwavering
commitment to providing an exceptional experience
for our customers sets the standard for service
quality. These efforts over the years have built strong
and growing relationships — one customer at a time

— that provide the Company with a reliable marker
for its diverse product mix and new opportunities
for growth.

These have been tough times for your Company.
Yet we remain focused on our core operations,
dedicated to addressing our challenges and
committed to building for the long-term a strong
and successful financial institucion. On behalf of
your board of directors, senior management and the
TierOne family of employees, we thank you for your
trust and support and look forward to sharing our
future progress with you.

A

GILBERT G. LUNDSTROM
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

G

JAMES A, LAPHEN
President and Chief Operating Officer



ONE HUNDRED
YEARS OF COMMITMENT

TO CUSTOMERS TierOne Bank hasa long-standing
tradition of providing our customers and our
communities with competitive financial services,
an lll]COmpr0n1i5i[1g Commitmcnl‘ o Vﬂ]lle ﬂnd an

improved quality of life.

One way we fulfill this mission is by continuously
developing innovative financial products and
services that transform
the way people live, work
and play. This mission
is complimented by
TierOnes  dedication
to its corporate values of

honesty, respect, integrity
and reliability which translates into award-winning
levels of personal service and an  exceprional

CUSLOIMET experience.

From a student opening
cheir first checking account
ro a small business with
specialized banking needs,

lIerOne takes grear pride

in providing each and every
valued customer the products, expertise and service
necessary to meet their growing and diverse financial
needs—key ingredients to earning our customer’s
business—evervday.

TO COMMUNITY We bring the same dedicat-on o
our corporate citizenship, using our resources and

expertisc to make a difference in our communiries.

The depth of our community commitment is

measured in the many ways we give back to enhance

- T F >
Our community | : s v

Invesuncnts  are T‘i e'ron e

-

E- NK

ag

inspired by our

employees  who g
give their time ﬁ ,
-

and rtalents for A
organizations that =" .

. .
support housing | i

assistance, education, community development,
human services and the arts. Since its inceprion
in 2002, the TierOne Charitable Foundation has
augmented these efforts by providing more than
$3 million in grants to nonprofic organizaticons in
communitics where our offices are locared.

At TierOne Bank, we are constantdy expanding
our understanding of what we must do to continue
o be a responsible leader and a good corporare
cirizen, and we are always seeking new ways to
put parinerships and innovation to work o really
make a difference—now and for generations
[0 come.
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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION o
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FORM 10-K Washington, DC

[ X ] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangen%t of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 Commission File Number 005-78774
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[ 1 Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 for the period from to .
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(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Wisconsin 04-3638672

(State of Incorporation) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)
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Indicate by check mark whether the Registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
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The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Registrant was $543,431,480 as of June 30, 2007. As
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Documents Incorporated by Reference
Portions of the definitive Proxy Statement for the Registrant’s 2008 Annual Meeting of Shareholders are expected to
be incorporated by reference in Part I, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14. In the event that such Proxy Statement is not
filed on or prior to 120 days after the Registrant’s fiscal year end (April 29, 2008), the Annual Report on Form 10-K
will be amended to include the information required in Part 111, Items 10, 11, 12, 13 and 14.
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Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995

Statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K which are not historical facts may be forward-
looking statements as that term is defined in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Such forward
looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially from
those currently anticipated due to a number of factors. In addition to the risk factors described in Item A of this
Annual Report on Form 10-K, factors that could result in material vanations include, but are not limited to:

» General economic conditions and trends. either nationally or in some or all of the areas in which we and
our customers conduct our businesses;

e Changes in interest rates or other competitive factors which could affect net interest margins, net interest
income and noninterest income;

»  Changes in deposit flows, and in the demand for deposits, loans, investment products and other financial
services in the markets we serve;

¢ Changes in the quality or composition of our loan portfolios;

» Changes in real estate values. which could impact the quality of the assets securing the loans in our
portfolios;

s Changes in the financial or operating performance of our customers’ businesses;,

¢ Borrower bankruptcies, claims and assessments;

e  Our timely development of new lines of business and competitive products or services within our existing
lines of business in a changing environment, and the acceptance of such products or services by our

customers;

e Any interruption or breach of security resulting in failures or disruptions in customer account management,
general ledger, deposit operations, lending or other systems;

s Changes in fiscal, monetary, regulatory, trade and tax policies and laws;

e Increased competitive challenges and expanding product and pricing pressures among financial institutions;
e Changes in accounting policies or procedures as may be required by various regulatory agencies;

e Changes in consumer spending and saving habits;

e Unanticipated issues relating to the recovery of insurance proceeds for claims arising out of our prior
relationship with TransLand Financial Services, Inc;

s Conditions precedent to our proposed merger with a subsidiary of CapitalSource Inc. may not be satisfied
or the merger agreement may be terminated pursuant to its terms;

e Disruption from our proposed merger with a subsidiary of CapitalSource Inc. may make it more difficult to
maintain customer relationships;

e  The required regulatory approvals for our proposed merger with a subsidiary of CapitalSource Inc. may not
be obtained or if obtained may not be on the terms anticipated by, or acceptable to, the parties;

e The outcome of pending or threatened litigation, or of other matters before regulatory agencies, or of
matters resulting from regulatory exams, whether currently existing or commencing in the future; and



e (Other factors discussed in docum
1o time.

ents we may file with the Securities and Exchange Commission from time

These factors should be considered in

evaluating the forward-looking statements and undue reliance should not

be placed on such statements. We undelrlake no obligation, and disclaim any obligation, to update information
contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, including these forward-looking statements, to reflect events or
circumstances that occur after the date of the fi ling of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.




Part 1

LEITS

As used in this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us.” or “our” refer to TierOne

Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, TierOne Bank.
Item 1. Business
General

TierOne Corporation (“Company”) is a Wisconsin corporation headquartered in Lincoln, Nebraska. TierOne
Corporation is the holding company for TierOne Bank (“Bank”). The Bank has two wholly owned subsidiaries,
TMS Corporation of the Americas {“TMS”) and United Farm & Ranch Management, Inc. (*UFARM”). TMS is the
holding company of TierOne Investments and Insurance, Inc. (d/b/a TierOne Financial), a wholly owned subsidiary
that administers the sale of securities and insurance products, and TierOne Reinsurance Company, a wholly owned
subsidiary that reinsures credit life and disability insurance policies. UFARM provides agricultural customers with
professional farm and ranch management and real estate brokerage services.

The assets of the Company, on an unconsolidated basis, primarily consist of 100% of the Bank’s common stock.
The Company has no significant independent source of income and therefore depends on cash distributions from the
Bank to meet its funding requirements.

Our results of operations are dependent primarily on net interest income, which is the difference between the
interest earned on our assets, primarily our loan and securities portfolios, and our cost of funds, which consists of the
interest paid on our deposits and borrowings. Our net income (loss) is also affected by our provision for loan losses,
noninterest income, noninterest expense and income tax expense (benefit). Noninterest income generally includes
fees and service charges, debit card fees, net income (loss) from real estate operations, net gain on sales of
investment securities, loans held for sale and real estate owned and other operating income. Noninterest expense
consists of salaries and employee benefits, occupancy, data processing, advertising and other operating expense.
Our earnings are significantly affected by general economic and competitive conditions; particularly changes in
market interest rates and U.S. Treasury yield curves, governmental policies and actions of regulatory authorities.

United Nebraska Financial Co. Acquisition

On August 27, 2004, we acquired all of the issued and outstanding capital stock of United Nebraska Financial
Co. (*UNFC), the holding company of United Nebraska Bank (“UNB”), headquartered in Grand Island, Nebraska.
The purchase price of the acquisition was approximately $97.3 million. UNB had assets in excess of $500 million
and 16 banking offices located in Nebraska.

Sale / Purchase of Branches and Deposits

On June 2, 2006, we completed the purchase of Marine Bank’s only banking office in Omaha Nebraska. We
acquired $8.1 million of deposits as a result of this transaction. On December 15, 2006, we sold our Plainville and
Stockton, Kansas bank offices to Stockton National Bank of Stockton, Kansas. As a result of this sale, we
transferred $21.7 million of deposits to the purchaser and recorded a gain on sale of $1.0 million.

Proposed Merger with CapitalSource Inc.

On May 17, 2007, the Company, CapitalSource Inc. (“CapitalSource™) and CapitalSource TRS Inc.
(*CapitalSource TRS™) entered into and announced an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”). The
Merger Agreement provides that, upon the terms and subject to conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, the
Company will merge with and into CapitalSource TRS (“Merger”), with CapitalSource TRS continuing as the
surviving corporation. The Merger Agreement and the Merger were approved by the stockholders of the Company
at a special meeting held on November 29, 2007.




Subject to the terms and conditions of the Merger Agreement, at the effective time and as a result of the Merger,
each issued and outstanding share of Company common stock (other than certain shares owned by the Company)
would be converted into the right to receive the following (collectively, the “Merger Consideration”):

e  $6.80 in cash; plus
e  0.675 shares of CapitalSource corpmon stock; plus
e if the ten-day average closing price of CapitalSource common stock prior to the closing of the Merger is:
(a) less than or equal to $25.1852, then (1.405 shares of CapitalSource common stock; or
{b) greater than $25.1852, then Jompany stockholders can elect to receive either $10.20 in cash or $10.20
of CapitalSource common stgck.

If, on the day the last governmental a‘pproval to complete the Merger is obtained, the ten-day average closing
price of CapitalSource common stock is lgss than $21.98 and the trading price of CapitalSource common stock has
underperformed by more than 15% the S&P 500 Financial Sector Index during the period from May 17, 2007 to that
date, then the Board of Directors of the] Company has the right, in accordance with the terms of the Merger
Agreement, to request that CapitalSource iprovide additional financial consideration. either in stock or cash. The
Company previously informed CapitalSource that. under such circumstances, its Board of Directors would intend to
make such a request. If, following such ajrequest, the parties are unable to agree on such additional consideration,
then the Board of Directors of the Company would have the right to terminate the Merger Agreement.

|

The Company and CapitalSource have made customary representations, warranties and covenants in the Merger
Agreement, including, among others, coyenants regarding the conduct of their businesses and other activities
between the execution of the Merger Agrcchnt and the consummation of the Merger, and have agreed to use their
reasonable best efforts to consummate the Merger. During the time that the Merger Agreement is in effect. the
Company is not permitted to solicit or facilitate proposals relating to alternative business combination transactions,
or, subject to certain exceptions, enter into |discussions concerning alternative business combination transactions.

Consummation of the Merger is subject to customary conditions, including, without limitation, the accuracy of
the representations and warranties of the parties (subject generally to a material adverse effect standard) and
regulatory approval. Although CapitalSou:rce has filed an application with the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS")
for approval of transactions contemplated llay the Merger Agreement, the OTS has yet to deem the application either
complete or approved. and no assurance cap be given that the OTS will approve the transaction.

The Merger Agreement further provides that either the Company or CapitalSource (each acting through its
respective Board of Directors) has the right at any time after February 17, 2008 to unilaterally terminate the Merger
Agrcement, unless the failure to effect the Merger by such date was due to the terminating party’s failure to perform
its obligations and covenants under the Merger Agreement. The Company has indicated that its present intent is not
to terminate the Merger Agreement pending receipt of further comment from the OTS. Conversely, CapitalSource
has publicly advised that its Board of Dirgctors has authorized its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to either
terminate the Merger Agreement or negotiate new terms for the transaction. In light of the preceding sentence. the
Company can provide no assurance that|the Merger will be completed even if all conditions precedent to the
transaction (including receipt of regulatory|approval) are satisfied.

In addition to other factors affecting the Company’s financial performance discussed elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, due to the proposed Merger, the Company has been subject to or experienced limitations on
the operation of its business including restrictions on certain funding opportunities; certain one-time Merger-related
expenses; an increased commitment of time by Company personnel working with federal regulatory agencies in
connection with Merger-related issues; and restrictions on the Company’s ability 1o repurchase its common stock.
These activities have and may continue to further impact the Company’s financial performance and earnings per
share.




Government Monetary Policy

We are affected by the credit policies of monetary authorities, including the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System (“Federal Reserve Board”). An important objective of the Federal Reserve System is to regulate the
nattonal supply of bank credit. Among the instruments of monetary policy used by the Federal Reserve Board are
open market operations in U.S. Government securities, changes in the discount rate, reserve requirements on
member bank deposits and funds availability regulations. The monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have
in the past had a significant effect on operations of financial institutions, including the Bank, and will continue to do
50 in the future. Changing conditions in the national economy and in the money markets make it difficult to predict
future changes in interest rates, deposit levels. loan demand or their effects on the business and earnings of the
Company.

Market Area and Competition

We are a regional community bank offering a variety of financial products and services to meet the needs of the
customers we serve. Our deposit gathering is concentrated in the communities surrounding our 69 banking offices
located in Nebraska, seven counties in southwest lowa and one county in northern Kansas. We compete for
customers by emphasizing convenience and service, and by offering a full range of traditional and non-traditional
products and services. We offer 24-hour ATM banking at 68 of our banking offices and currently offer 31 ATM
banking locations al supermarkets, convenience stores and shopping malls.

In addition to loans generated through our banking offices, our lending efforts have been expanded in recent
years to include nine loan production offices located in Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and North
Carolina whose primary purpose is to originate commercial real estate and construction, land and land development
and/or residential construction loans in their respective states.

We face significant competition, both in generating loans as well as in attracting deposits. Our market area is
highly competitive and we face direct competition from a significant number of financial service providers, many
with a statewide or regional presence and, in some cases, a national presence. Many of these financial service
providers are significantly larger and have greater financial resources. Our competition for loans comes principally
from commercial banks, savings banks and asscciations, credit unions, mortgage brokers, mortgage-banking
companies and insurance companies. Our most direct competition for deposits has historically come from
commercial banks, savings banks and associations and credit unions. in addition, we face increasing competition for
deposits from non-bank institutions such as brokerage firms and insurance companies in such instruments as short-
term money market funds, corporate and government securities funds, equity securities, mutual funds and annuities.

Subsequent Event

Subsequent to the filing of the Company’s March 4, 2008 Form 8-K Report of financial results for the quarter
and year ended December 31, 2007, an appellate court decision in our federal goodwill litigation (see Item 3. Legal
Proceedings for additional information) was issued. As a result of this decision we recorded a 2007 fourth quarter
pretax charge of $560,000 in other operating expense to reflect fees and expenses incurred during the appeal process
which had previously been capitalized. The impact after income tax benefits of $202,000, was $358,000. The 2007
Consolidated Statement of Operations and related loss per share data reported in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
have been updated accordingly.

Available Information

We are a public company and are required to file annual, quarterly and current reports, proxy statements and
other information with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC™). We maintain a website at
www.tieronebank.com and make available. free of charge, copies of our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly
Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K and any amendments to such documents as soon as
reasonably practicable after the reports have been electronically filed or furnished to the SEC. In addition, we
provide our Code of Conduct and Ethics, Audit Committee Charter, Compensation Committee Charter and
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee Charter on our website. We are not including the information




contained on or available through our website as a part of, nor are we incorporating such information by reference
into, this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

Lending Activities

General. We directly originate loans to customers located in Nebraska, lowa, Kansas, Arizona, Colorado,
Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and North Carolina (“Primary Lending Market Area”). This Primary Lending Market
Area is comprised of states in which we have banking or loan production offices. We also purchase loans and loan
participation interests from financial institutions, loan correspondents and mortgage brokers located throughout the
United States. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately 20.2% and 20.8%, respectively, of our total loan
portfolio consisted of loans secured by prolerties located outside of our Primary Lending Market Area.

In recent years, we have become a regional community bank by shifting our focus to multi-family residential,
commercial real estate, land and land develbpment, construction, agricultural, business, warchouse mortgage lines of
credit and consumer lending. These loans typically have relatively higher vields, adjustable interest rates and/or
shorter terms to maturities. Such loans, hl‘g)wever, generally involve a higher degree of risk than financing one-t0-
four family residential loans because collateral is more difficult to appraise, the collateral may be difficult to obtain
or liquidate following an uncured default and it can be difficult to predict the borrower’s ability to generate future
cash flows.

The decrease in net loans at December 31, 2007 was primarily attributable to steps taken to reduce exposure to
certain lending markets, loan payoffs a‘hd periodic payments.  Additionally, lower demand, more stringent
underwriting guidelines and macro-economic factors have resulted in a decreased volume of residential real estate,

land and land development and commercial construction related loan originations.

Loan Approval Procedures and Authority. General lending policies and procedures are established by our
Asset/Liability Committee which is compo‘ ed of the following officers of the Bank: Chief Executive Officer, Chief
Operating Officer, Director of Lending, Director of Administration, Director of Retait Banking, Chief Financial
Officer, Controller and Senior Financial Analysis Manager. Our Board of Directors reviews and approves lending
policies and procedures established by the Asset/Liability Committee. Under policies approved by the Board of
Directors, various officers or combinatiohs of officers have loan approval authority, the specific amounts and
requirements being set forth for each loan ‘ype. Generally, for loan amounts in excess of $10.0 million, approval of

our Board of Directors is required.

Loan Portfolio Composition. At December 31, 2007, our total loans receivable amounted to $3.3 billion. We
have, in recent years, shifted the focus of our lending strategy to place an increased emphasis on multi-family
residential, commercial real estate, land }and land development, construction, agriculiural, business, warehouse
mortgage lines of credit and consurmer lending. The types of loans that we may purchase and originate are subject to
federal and state laws and regulations. The interest rates we charge on loans are affected by the demand for such
loans and the supply of money available R}r lending purposes and the rates offered by competitors. These factors
are, in turn, affected by general and local economic conditions, monetary policies of the Federal Qovernment,

including the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and legislative tax policies.

Residential Mortgage Lending. One-to-four family residential mortgage loan originations are generally
obtained from our in-house loan represemfitives, from existing or past customers and from mortgage brokers. We
also originate and/or purchase from corrgspondent lenders second mortgage loans in amounts up to 90% of the
appraised value of the collateral with matujities of up to 30 years.

We currently originate fixed-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans generally with terms of up to 30
years. We sell substantially all newly originated fixed-rate, one-to-four family residential loans into the secondary
market on a servicing retained basis which produces noninterest income in the form of net gains and losses on sales
and loan servicing fees.

We originate or purchase adjustable-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans with terms of up to 30
years and interest rates which generally adjust one to seven years from the outset of the loan and thereafter annually
for the duration of the loan. The interest rates for such adjustable-rate loans are normally tied to indices such as the




U.S. Treasury CMT or LIBOR, plus a margin. OQur adjustable-rate loans generally provide for periodic caps
(generally not more than 2.0%) on the increase or decrease in the interest ratc at any adjustment date. The
maximum amount the rate can increase or decrease from the initial rate during the life of the loan is 5.0% - 6.0%
over the start rate.

The origination or purchase of adjustable-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans allows us to
control our exposure to interest rate risk. However, adjustable-rate loans generally pose risks not inherent in fixed-
rate loans, primarily because as interest rates rise, the underlying payments of the borrower rise, thereby increasing
the potential for defauli. Periodic and lifetime caps on interest rate increases help to reduce the risks associated with
adjustable-rate loans but also limit the interest rate sensitivity of such loans.

Generally, we originate one-to-four family residential mortgage loans in amounts up to 80% of the lower of the
appraised value or the selling price of the property and up to 100% if private mortgage insurance is obtained.
Mortgage loans originated by us generally include due-on-sale provisions which provide us with the contractual
right to deem the loan immediately due and payable in the event the borrower transfers ownership of the property
without our consent. We require fire, casuvalty, title and, in certain cases, flood insurance on properties securing
mortgage loans made by us.

We maintain a corporate policy of not participating in subprime residential rcal estate lending or negative
amortizing mortgage products. The Office of Thrift Supervision, our federal regulatory agency, defines subprime
loans as loans to borrowers displaying one or more credit risk characteristics including lending to a borrower with a
credit bureau risk score (FICO) of 660 or below. Furthermore, we have not engaged in collateralized loan
obligations (CLO), collateralized debt obligations (CDQ), structured investment vehicles (SIV) or asset-backed
commercial paper (ABCP).

Multi-Family Residential, Commercial Real Estate and Land and Land Development Lending. We offer
multi-family residential, commercial real estate and land and land development loans for permanent financing
collateralized by real property. These loans are generally used for business purposes such as apartment buildings,
office and retail facilities and land being held for commercial and residential development. The properties securing
these loans are generally located in our Primary Lending Market Area. At December 31, 2007, 62.6%, 86.9% and
95.9% of our multi-family residential, commercial real estate and land and land development loans, respectively,
were located within our Primary Lending Market Area.

Our underwriting procedures generally provide that multi-family residential, commercial real estate and land
and land development loans may be made in amounts up to 80% of the value of the property if it is located within
our Primary Lending Market Area and 75% of the value if it is outside our Primary Lending Market Area. Loans
exceeding prescribed loan-to-value ratios must be reviewed by our Board of Directors and supported by
documentation of the relevant factors justifying the deviation from policy.

Loans secured by multi-family residential, commercial real estate and land and land development properties
generally involve larger principal amounts and a greater degree of risk than one-to-four family residential mortgage
loans. Payments on these loan types are often dependent on the successful operation or management of the
properties. Repayment of such loans may be subject to adverse conditions in the real estate market or the economy
and a concentration of loans in a geographic region may be subject to greater risk because of the potential for
adverse economic conditions affecting that region. We seek to minimize these risks through our underwriting
standards.

Construction Lending. We offer residential construction loans for either pre-sold houses (a purchase contract
has been signed) or speculative houses (properties for which no buyer yet exists). We originate most of our
residential construction loans within our Primary Lending Market Area typically through direct contact with home
buiiders. At December 31, 2007, approximately 80.2% of our residential construction loans were located in our
Primary Lending Market Area. During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, we purchased $55.4 million
and $161.5 million, respectively, of residential construction loans.

We also originate commercial real estate construction loans as well as purchase participation interests in such
loans. We provide commercial construction loans to real estate developers for the purpose of constructing a variety




of commercial projects such as retail facilities, industrial buildings and warehouses. At December 31, 2007, 72.5%
of our commercial construction loans were Jocated in our Primary Lending Market Area.

Commercial construction lending involves a higher degree of risk than one-to-four family residential lending,
therefore, we closely monitor our concentrallion in such loans. We also seek a broad diversification of project types,
borrowers and geographic areas to reduce the level of risk associated with this lending type.

Risk of loss on construction loans is dependent largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property’s
value when completed or developed comp:ared to the projected cost (including interest) of construction and other
assumptions, including the approximate time to build, sell or lease the properties. If the appraised collateral value
proves to be inaccurate, we may be confronted with a project, when completed, having a value which is insufficient
to assure futl repayment.

Agricultural Loans. Agricultural loans are made predominantly to farmers and ranchers in Nebraska, lowa and
Kansas. At December 31, 2007, 100.0% of|our agricultural loans were located in our Primary Lending Market Area.
Agricultural operating loans are made to finance day-to-day operations, including crop and livestock production.
Intermediate term loans are used to purchase breeding livestock and machinery. Real estate loans are used to
purchase or refinance farm and ranchland.

Overall credit worthiness is de[ermineli by evaluation of the borrower, including management experience and
skills, financial strength and the ability ;lo service debt. Loans are generally repaid using cash flows from
agricultural activities, including the sale gf agricultural commodities, produced by the operation. Underwriting
standards include maximum advance rates on collateral, minimum cash flow coverage and review of the historical
net worth and cash flow trends of the operation.

Risk of loss is retated to the effects of the external risk factors such as adverse weather conditions and poor

commodity prices. The impact of external

risk factors is significantly affected by the borrower’s ability 10 mitigate

the effect of risk on the borrower’s operation. Commodity-based agricultural chattel assets are relatively easy to
liquidate and there is also a stable demand| for agricultural real estate. Our agricultural lenders are responsible for
validating the existence, value and condition of the collateral. This monitoring may include periodic on-site
inspections and the use of borrowing base reports.

Warehouse Mortgage Lines of Credif. We are actively involved in originating revolving lines of credit to

mortgage brokers. These lines are drawn npon by mortgage brokers to fund the origination of one-to-four family
residential mortgage loans. Prior to funding the advance, the mortgage broker must have an approved commitment
for the purchase of the loan which reduces ¢redit exposure associated with the line. The lines are repaid upon sale of
the mortgage loan to a third party which us+al]y occurs within 30 days of origination of the loan. In connection with

mortgage broker intends to sell loans. U

der such agreements, the loan purchaser agrees to hold the mortgage

extending the line of credit to the mongﬂEe broker, we enter into agreements with the purchaser to which such

documents issued by the mortgage brokers
to us the purchase price for such loans.
required to maintain commercial deposits

n our behalf and for our benefit until such time that the purchaser remits
s part of the structure of the lines of credit, the mortgage brokers are
ith us, with the amount of such deposits dependent upon the amount of

the line and other factors. The lines are sfructured with adjustable rates indexed to the Wall Street Journal prime
rate. Maximum amounts permitted to be agvanced by us under existing warehouse mortgage lines of credit range in
amounts from $1.5 million to $30.0 million|

Business Lending. Business loans are made predominantly to small- and mid-sized businesses located within
Nebraska, lowa and Kansas. At December 31, 2007, 98.0% of our business loans were located in our Primary
Lending Market Area. The business lending products we offer include lines of credit, receivable anul inventory
financing and equipment loans. We have Established minimum underwriting standards in regard to business loans
which set forth the criteria for sources of r'epayment, borrower’s capacity to repay, specific financial and collateral
margins and financial enhancements such as guarantees. Generally, the primary source of repayment is cash flow
from the business and the financial strength! of the borrower.

Business loans generally involve a greater degree of risk than real estate loans, primarily because collateral is
more difficult to appraise, the collateral may be difficult to obtain or liquidate following default and it is difficult to

10




foresee the borrower’s ability to generate cash flows. These loans, however, typically offer relatively higher yields
and have shorter expected terms to maturity. The availability of business loans enables potential depositors to
establish full-service banking relationships with us.

Consumer and Other Lending., Consumer loans are generaily originated directly through our network of
banking offices. We offer home equity loans, home improvement loans and home equity lines of credit in amounts
up to $100,000 with a term of 15 years or less and a loan-to-value ratio up to 90% of the appraised value of the
collateral. A portion of our home improvement loans consist of participation interests we have purchased from a
third party. Under the terms of our third party arrangement, if any loan becomes more than 120 days past due, we
can require the seller to repurchase such loan at a price equal to our total investment in the loan, including any
uncollected and accrued interest. We also offer automobile loans in amounts up to $50,000 with maximum 72
month and 60 month terms for new and used cars, respectively, and purchase price ratios of generally not more than
95% and 85% for new and used cars, respectively. Most of our automobile loans are obtained through a network of
81 new and used automobile dealers located primarily in Lincoln and Omaha, Nebraska. Although employees of the
automobile dealership take the application, the loan is made pursuant to our underwriting standards and must be
approved by one of our authorized loan officers. Our consumer [oan portfolio also includes manufactured housing,
recreational vehicle, boat, motorcycle and unsecured loans.

Unsecured loans and loans secured by rapidly depreciating assets, such as automobiles, entail greater risks than
one-to-four family residential mortgage loans. In such cases, repossessed collateral, if any, for a defaulted loan may
not provide an adequate source of repayment of the outstanding loan balance. Further, consumer loan collections on
these loans are dependent on the borrower's continuing financial stability and, therefore, are more likely to be
adversely affected by job loss, divorce, illness or personal bankruptcy. Finally, the application of various federal
and state laws, including federal and state bankruptcy and insolvency laws, may limit the amount which can be
recovered on such loans in the event of a default.
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Loan Portfolio Composition. The following table shows the composition of our loan portfolic by type of loan
at the dates indicated:

At December 31,

(Deollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Real estate loans:
One-to-four family residential (1) $ 314623 § 339080 § 384,722 § 418270 $ 559.134
Second mortgage residential 95.477 120.510 160.208 255,222 258,121
Multi-family residential 106,678 148.922 166,579 142.454 99.078
Commercial real estate 370,910 396,620 402,504 444 209 353,177
Land and land development 473,346 494 887 289916 152,845 95,975
Residential construction 513,560 780,991 943,378 601,075 245,782
Commercial construction 540,797 491,997 351,767 282,349 154,247
Agriculture 91,068 68,459 57.008 66,830 -
Total real estate loans 2,506,459 2,841,466 2,756,082 2,363,364 1,765,514
Business 252,712 220,669 177,592 142,675 64,522
Agriculture - operating 100,365 94,455 72,518 71,223 -
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 86,081 112,645 95.174 132,928 78,759
Consumer loans:
Home equity 72.517 71476 61,600 56,4 33,874
Home equity lines of credit 120,465 130.071 141,021 142,725 117.899
Home improvement 46,045 55,513 69,165 73,386 74,915
Automobile 87.079 87,575 85.515 80.512 67,351
Other 71,141 68.365 49812 25,956 15,621
Total consumer loans 397.247 413.000 407,113 379,020 309,660
Total loans 3,342,864 3,682,235 3.508,479 3,089,210 2.218.455
Unamortized premiums, discounts and
deferred loan fees 9451 5,602 4,778 7,228 10,790
Loans in process (2) (376,186) (637.677) (668,587) (441,452) (193,063)
Net loans 2,976,129 3,050,160 2,844,670 2,654,986 2,036,182
Allowance for loan losses (66,540) (33.129) (30,870) (26,831) (19.586)

Net loans after allowance for loan losses| $ 2,909,589 § 3017031 $ 2,813,800 § 2,628,155 § 2,016,596

(1) Includes loans held for sale $ 9,348 § 19285 % 8666 % 11956 % 7,083

{2) Loans in process represents the undisbursed portion of construction and land development loans.
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Loan Portfolio Concentration by State. The following table details the concentration of our total loan
portfolio by state at the dates indicated:

At December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 % 2006 %o 2005 %

Within our Primary Lending Market Area:
Nebraska £ 1,367.659 4091 % $1.326374 36.02 % § 1,248,165 3558 %
Nevada 247,260 7.40 252,990 6.87 32,704 0.93
Colorado 237,441 7.10 283,543 7.70 277.184 7.90
Florida 168,765 5.05 317.454 8.62 508,792 14.50
Arizona 161,339 4,83 205,912 5.59 222,397 6.34
Minnesota 157,985 4,73 172,134 4.68 151,734 4.33
Towa 135,885 4.06 106.949 2.90 103,286 2.94
North Carolina 121,594 3.64 175,666 4.77 123,221 3.51
Kansas 69,180 2.07 75,362 2.05 60,807 1.73

Total within our primary

lending market area 2,667,108 79.79 2,910.384 79.20 2,728,290 71.76

Outside our Primary Lending Market Area:
South Carolina 103,153 3.09 132.508 3.60 137,640 3.92
California 78.817 2.36 95,453 2.59 114,286 3.26
Texas . 74,390 2.22 83,050 2.26 72,696 2.07
Illinois 70,891 2.12 55,011 1.49 19,980 0.57
COregon 37.266 1.11 44,168 1.20 30,360 0.87
Washington 29,736 0.89 53,698 1.46 62,081 1.77
Other States 281.503 8.42 301,963 8.20 343.146 9.78

Total outside our primary

lending market area 675.756 20.21 765.851 20.80 780,189 22.24

Total loans 3 3,342,864 100.00 $3.682,235 10000 % §3.508.479 100.00 %

No individual state in the “Other States” category comprises more than one percent of total loans at December
31, 2007. Total loans declined $339.4 million, or 9.2%, to $3.3 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to $3.7
billion at December 31, 2006. Qur total loans in Florida at December 31. 2007 were $168.8 million, a decrease of
$148.7 million, or 46.8%, compared to $317.5 million at December 3i, 2006,

During the latter half of 2007 the nation’s equity, housing, credit and economic markets faced unprecedented
pressures which have significantly impacted much of the financial sector. We have taken a number of steps related
to the realignment of certain credit administration functions, including the addition of personnel with extensive
depth and expertise in credit analysis, and we continue to tighten credit policies.



Contractual Terms to Final Maturities. The following table shows the scheduled contractual maturities of our
loans at December 31, 2007. Demand and overdraft loans which have no stated schedule of repayments and no
stated maturity, are reported as due in 2008 The following amounts do not take into account loan prepayments.

Principal Payments Contractually Due in Years

(Do”ars in thousg"ds) 2008 2009 -2012 2013-2017 After 2017 Total
Real estate loans:
One-to-four family residential $ 3269 & 6,703 $ 11,621 $§ 293030 $ 314,623
Second mortgage residential 398 3,539 12,804 78,736 95477
Multi-family residential 9.871 35,518 16,565 44,724 106,678
Commercial real estate 25,566 135,475 196,519 13,350 370,910
Land and land development 303,966 165,688 3.609 83 473346
Residential construction 488,289 11,089 187 13,995 513,560
Commercial construction 186,873 280,955 71.809 1,160 540,797
Agriculture 8.511 18.577 55.796 8,184 91,068
Total real cstate loans 1,026,743 657,544 368,910 453,262 2,506,459
Business 98.114 131,753 21,730 1,115 252,712
Agriculture - operating 67,873 30,026 2,199 267 100,365
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 86,081 - - - 86.081
Consumer 38,581 248,359 38,440 71.867 397,247

Total loans (1) (2) $1317.392 § 1067682 § 431279 § 526,511 %

3.342.864

. . . .
(1) Gross of unamortized premiums, discounts and deferred loan fees, loans in process and allowance for loan losses.

(2) Total loans due after one year from December 31, 2007 with fixed interest rates totaled $1.0 billion.
Total loans due after one year from December 31, 2007 with floating or adjustable interest rates totaled
$1.0 billion.

Originations, Purchases and Sales J Loans. Our lending activities are subject to underwriting standards and
loan origination procedures established byl our Asset/Liability Committee and approved by our Board of Direciors.
Applications for mortgages and other loans are primarily taken at our banking and loan production offices. In the
past, we have relied on a network of loan iorrespondents and mortgage brokers to originate a substantial part of our
loans. We significantly reduced our utilization of third-party originators of residential construction loans throughout
2006 and 2007, In recent years, we have greatly expanded our capacity to originate loans through the expansion of
our loan production office network and Ihj employment of a number of experienced loan officers. We also use loan
correspondents and mortgage brokers to o ‘iginate one-to-four family residential loans to supplement our origination
efforts. A substantial portion of such loans consists of fixed-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans

which we sell into the secondary market on a servicing retained basis.

Although we originate both adjustabll rate and fixed-rate loans, our ability to originate and purchase fixed- or
adjustable-rate loans is dependent upon éustomer demand for such loans, which is affected by the current and
expected future level of interest rates. The loans purchased during 2007 consisted of one-to-four family residential,
construction, consumer (primarily home 1mpr0vemem loans and automobile financing), business, land and land
development (including participation interests), agricultural and second mortgage residential loans.

Generally, we originate adjustable-rate mortgage loans for retention in our portfolio. It 1s our current policy to
sell substantially all the fixed-rate, onejto-four family residential mortgage loans we originate or purchase.
Substantially all fixed-rate loans sold are sold to either Fannie Mae (“FNMA?"), the Federal Home Loan Mortgage
Corporation (“FHI.MC”} or the FHLBank Topeka (“FHLBank™) pursuant to the Mortgage Partnership Finance
Program. Upon receipt of an application to make a fixed-rate loan, we typically enter into agreements to sell such
loans to FNMA, FHLMC or the FHLBank pursuant to forward sale commitments, with delivery being required in
approximately 90 days. We generally agree to deliver a somewhat smaller dollar amount of loans in the event that
not all the loans for which applications dre submitted actually close. Loans are delivered pursuant {o such sale
contracts upon their origination or purchase and are not aggregated for sale as loan packages. As a result. we
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typically do not have a significant amount of loans held for sale at any given point in time. We recognize, at the time
of disposition, the gain or loss on the sale of the loans. The gain or loss is based on the difference between the net
proceeds received and the carrying value of the loans sold excluding the value of servicing rights retained.
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Loan Portfolio Activity. The following table shows total loans originated, purchased, sold and repaid during

the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Net loans after allowance for loan losses at
beginning of year $ 3.017.031 3% 2.813.800 % 2,628,155
Loan originations:
One-to-four family residential 168,077 161.672 150,744
Second mortgage residential 2518 2,988 3,867
Multi-family residential 3415 11,600 13,008
Commercial real estate 52.879 56.612 44,905
Land and land development 139,832 316,344 176,553
Residential construction 262,902 500,283 560,322
Commercial construction 111,451 249,732 218,368
Agriculture - real estate 47.17% 27.376 25,054
Business 406.369 373,489 348,450
Agriculture - operating 275,042 235,845 188.551
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit (1) 2,706,073 2.946.983 3,640,622
Consumer 141,084 152,143 148,538
Total loan originations | 4316821 5,035,067 5,519,022
Loan purchases:
One-to-four family residential (2) 212,277 115,827 191,725
Second mortgage residential 872 1,649 1,191
Multi-family residential - 10,000 61,133
Commercial real estate - - 81
Land and land development 10.246 7917 34,088
Residential construction 55,387 161,461 589,506
Commercial construction 54,808 83,389 47,587
Agriculture - real estate 2.836 - -
Business 15,842 15,463 9,235
Agriculture - operating 501 - -
Consumer 58,647 88.429 120,466
Total loan purchases 411416 484,135 1,055.012
Total loan originations and purchases 4,728,237 5,519,202 6,574,034
Sales and loan principal repayments: :
Loan sales:
One-to-four family residential (339.013) (242,991) (254,578)
Consumer (5.018) (4,421) 4,777
Loan principal repayments;
Real estate, business, agriculture-
operating and consumer (1,992,193) (2.166,909) (2,224,703)
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit (1) (2,732,637) (2,929,512) (3,678,376)
Total loan sales and principal repayn{ents (5.068.861) (5,343.833) (6,162,434)
Increase (decrease) due to other items (3) 233,182 27.862 (225,955)
Net loans after allowance for loan losses at
end of year $ 2909589 § 3017031 % 2,813,800

(1) Reflects amounts advanced and repai

in the allowance for loan losses.

d under such lines of credit during the years presented.
{(2) Substantially all of these fixed-rate loans were acquired from mortgage brokers and sold to Fannie Mae. Freddie Mac
or the FHLBank Topeka with servicing retained.

{3) Other items consist of unamortized premiums, discounts and deferred loan fees, loans in process and changes




Loan Servicing. We sell substantially all fixed-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans with
servicing retained in order to develop additional sources of noninterest income. Loan servicing includes collecting
and remitting loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, holding escrow funds for the payment of real
estate taxes and insurance premiums, contacting delinquent borrowers and supervising foreclosures and property
dispositions in the event of unremedied defaults. The gross servicing fee income from loans sold is generally 0.25%
to 0.50% of the total balance of each loan serviced. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we were servicing $1.5 billion
and $1.3 billion, respectively, of loans for others, primarily consisting of one-to-four family residential loans sold by
us in the secondary market.

Loan Commitments. We generally issue written commitments to individual borrowers and mortgage brokers
for the purposes of originating and purchasing loans. These loan commitments establish the terms and conditions
under which we will fund the loans. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had issued commitments totaling $666.2
million and $865.9 million, respectively, excluding loans in process, to fund and purchase loans, extend credit on
commercial and consumer unused lines of credit and to extend credit under unused warehouse mortgage lines of
credit. These ousstanding loan commitments do not necessarily represent future cash requirements since many of
the commitments may expire without being drawn.
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Asset Quality

Reports listing all delinquent loans (loans 30 or more days delinquent), classified assets and real estate owned
are reviewed by management and our Board of Directors no less frequently than quarterly. The procedures we take
with respect to delinquencies vary depending on the nature of the loan, period and cause of delinquency and whether
the borrower is habitually delinquent. When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a loan, we take a
number of steps to have the borrower cure the delinquency and restore the loan to current status. In the event
payment is not then received or the loan not otherwise satisfied, letters and telephone calls generally are made. If
the loan is still not brought current or satisfied and it becomes necessary for us to take legal action, which typically
occurs after a loan is 90 days or more dlk:!inquem, we will commence recovery proceedings against the property
securing the loan. If a legal action is instiltuled and the loan is not brought current, paid in full, or refinanced before
the recovery sale, the property securing the loan generally is sold and, if purchased by us, becomes real estate owned
ora repossessed asset.

During 2007, our levels of delinquelnt loans, nonperforming loans (loans 90 or more days delinquent) and
impaired loans increased significantly. These increases were primarily attributable to the continued deterioration in
the real estate market and the economy in general. We have been further impacted by the erosion of praperty values
and an overall increase in housing inventory (both developed lots and completed houses) in many of the areas of the
country in which we do business and where the collateral for our loans reside, Additionally, significantly tightened
credit standards have made it more difﬁcu:ll for potential borrowers to obtain financing and for current borrowers to
refinance existing loans.

In light of current market conditions, we have taken a number of steps related to the realignment of certain
credit administration functions, including the addition of personnel with extensive depth and expertise in credit
analysis, and we continue to tighten creditjpolicies.

Delinquent Loans. The following table shows loans delinquent 30 — 89 days in our loan portfolio as of the
dates indicated:

At December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
One-to-four family residential $ 5798 $ 1,532 % 2,081 $ 8203 § 1.844
Second mortgage residential 1,499 2,085 1,844 1,426 1,051
Multi-family residential 2,019 - - - -
Commercial real estate 5,268 728 269 643 68
Land and land development 15,997 144 2,373 - 74
Residential construction 8,263 17,524 8,287 1,529 2,501
Agriculture - real estate 4,723 164 586 120 -
Business 3,247 620 1,740 1,122 126
Agriculture - operating 93 47 180 566 -
Consumer 5.560 4,818 6,416 3,448 2,945

Total delinquent loans $52467 $ 27,662 $ 23776 §17.057 $ 8,609
Delinguent loans as a percentage of

net loans before allowance for loan losses 1.76% 0.91% 0.84% 0.64% 0.42%
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Nonperforming Loans and Real Estate Owned. The following table sets forth information regarding
nonperforming loans (90 or more days delinquent) and real estate owned. It is our policy to cease accruing interest
on loans contractually delinquent 90 days or more and charge-off all accrued interest. We did not have any accruing
loans 90 days or more past due at the dates shown.

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Nonperforming loans:
One-to-four family residential $ 7029 $ 1611 $ 192 3% 1914 § 1461
Second mortgage residential 487 234 609 739 224
Multi-family residential 603 1.152 5,731 2374 -
Commercial real estate 590 324 1,007 707 -
Land and land development 38,708 4,696 915 - -
Residential construction 57.709 18,074 1,840 2,256 1,012
Commercial construction 19,184 - - - -
Agriculture - real estate 159 50 113 349 -
Business 1,268 2,280 526 771 219
Agriculture - operating 134 139 308 ] -
Consumer 2,619 1,490 1,454 1,121 700
Total nonperforming loans 128,490 30,050 14,405 10,232 3,616
Real estate owned, net (1) 6,405 5,264 2,446 382 678
Total nonperforming assets 134,895 35,314 16,851 10,614 4,294
Troubled debt restructurings 19,569 8,904 5,180 3,469 468
Total nonperforming assets and
troubled debt restructurings $ 154464 $ 44218 $ 22,031 $ 14083 § 4762
Total nonperforming loans as a
percentage of net loans 4.32% 0.99% 0.51% 0.39% 0.18%
Total nonperforming assets as a
percentage of total assets 3.81% 1.03% 0.52% 0.35% 0.19%

Total nonperforming assets and
troubled debt restructurings
as a percentage of total assets 4.37% 1.29% 0.68% 0.46% 0.22%

(1) Real estate owned balances are shown net of related loss allowances. Includes both real property and
other repossessed collateral consisting primarily of automobiles.

Nonperforming Loans. As a result of economic conditions in the latter half of 2007, we have experienced
deteriorating asset quality. At December 31, 2007, nonperforming loans totaled $128.5 million, an increase of $98.4
million, or 327.6%, compared to $30.1 million at December 31, 2006. The increase in the nonperforming loans is
primarily attributable to the following:

Residential Construction Loans. Due to the continued erosion of housing values and increased housing
inventory in several markets throughout the country, especially Florida, we have, and may continue to
experience, increased levels of nonperforming residential construction loans. At December 31, 2007 we
had classified $57.7 million of our total residential construction loans as nonperforming, of which $31.8
million relate to loans collateralized by property in Florida. As previously disclosed in regulatory filings
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, we reported that we have a group of residential construction
loans we purchased from Transland Financial Services Inc. (“TransLand”) which were primarily located in
the Cape Coral area of southwest Florida. These loans were originally made to individual homebuyers
wishing to build a second or retirement home. Subsequent to the filing of our June 30, 2007 Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q, we assumed servicing of all loans purchased from TransLand. During our due
diligence process related to the transfer of residential construction loan servicing from TransLand to the
Bank, alleged fraudulent servicing practices were discovered. The majority of the alleged fraud related to
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the withholding of loan payoff prpceeds and periodic payments. A joint petition for involuntary Chapter 11
bankruptcy was filed on August 23, 2007 in the United States Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of
Florida (“Court”) by the Bank and two other financial institutions against TransLand. A court-appointed
examiner furnished a detailed report documenting the alleged fraudulent activity. In December 2007, the
Court entered an order appmvinq' the petitioning banks’ plan to agree to dismiss the bankruptcy petition in
return for the agreement by TransLand and certain of its principal creditors to proceed with the liquidation
and proportional distribution of {TransLand’s remaining assets. The liquidation of TransLand’s assets is
currently in process.

Despite these challenging economic conditions, we have reduced our total residential construction loan
disbursements for TransLand-relited homebuyers to $58.5 million, prior to recording loan charge-offs, at
December 31, 2007 compared to $114.9 million at December 31, 2006. Approximately $26.5 million of
total nonperforming residential (construction loans at December 31, 2007 had been purchased from
TransLand. During the three imomhs ended December 31, 2007, we charged off $25.5 million of
TransLand-related residential construction loans, due in large part to a decline in the estimated fair value of
undeveloped residential lots, and|set up additional provisions for loan losses relating to the loans acquired
from TransLand.

The increase in nonperforming residential construction toans at December 31, 2007 was also attributable to
an increase in nonperforming relsidemial construction loans located in the Las Vegas, Nevada area. At
December 31, 2007, we had three residential development construction loans totaling $7.6 million in the
Las Vegas, Nevada area which wére classified as nonperforming.

Land and Land Development. Qur nonperforming land development loans at December 31, 2007 totaled
$38.7 million which consisted of eight residential land development properties. Of the eight
nonperforming residentiat land development properties, three were located in the Las Vegas, Nevada area
which totaled $30.4 million, oml.: project in Colorado at $5.7 million, two projects in the Minneapolis,
Minnesota area totaling $2.3 million and two projects in Florida totaling $300,000. The three Las Vegas,
Nevada area properties entered nonperforming status during the three months ended December 31, 2007.
Currently, we are actively engaged in discussions with the developers or guarantors of these loans for
purposes of bringing the loans cuTenl or developing workout solutions.

Commercial Construction. Nonperforming commercial construction loans totaled $19.2 million at
December 31, 2007. This balance represents two loans for the construction of upscale condominiums
adjacent to a golf course Iocatell in a suburban area of Las Vegas, Nevada. We provided funding to
construct 33 units, of which 23 units are under contract for purchase, within a planned 113-unit
development. The units we have funded have been completed and the balance of the remaining units are in
various stages of construction. Following the builder’s voluntary bankruptey filing, a trustee was appointed
by the court and the trustee is identifying local builders and sales agents to complete the project and sell the
remaining units,

Interest income that would have been recognized had nonperforming loans and troubled debt restructurings
been current or in accordance with their original terms approximates $10.8 million and $1.8 million for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Impaired Loans. Included in the preceding table, within nonperforming loans and troubled debt restructurings,
are impaired loans of $125.9 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. At December
31, 2007, impaired loans consisted primarily of $51.9 million of residential construction loans, $51.1 million of fand
and land development loans and $19.2 million of commercial construction loans. At December 31, 2007 we had
$24.8 million of loans which were not cla%siﬁed as nonperforming but were classified as impaired due to a decline
in the fair market value of the underlying collateral securing such loans.

The average balance of impaired andl restructured loans for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

totaled $58.4 million and $11.4 million, relkpcctively. Interest recognized on impaired and restructured loans for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $675,000 and $725,000, respectively. We had established an

20




allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans of $24.6 million and $152,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

Real Estate Owned and Repossessed Assets. When we acquire real estate owned property or other assets
through foreclosure, deed in lieu of foreclosure or repossession, it is imitially recorded at the lower of the recorded
investment in the corresponding loan or the fair value of the related assets at the date of foreclosure, less costs to
sell. If there is a further deterioration in value, we provide for a specific valuation allowance and charge operations
for the decline in value. We generally obtain an appraisal or broker's price opinion on all real estate subject to
foreclosure proceedings prior to the time of foreclosure. It is our policy to require appraisals on a periodic basis on
foreclosed properties as well as conduct inspections of such properties.

Real Estate Owned and Repossessed Asset Activity. The following table sets forth the activity of our real estate
owned and repossessed assets for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year 3 5264 % 2446 $ 382
Loan foreclosures and other additions 9,292 10.495 3,485
Sales (7,290) (7,172) (1.433)
Provisions for losses (636) (370) (73)
Gain (loss) on disposal (225) {135) 85
Balance at end of year $ 6405 § 5264 % 2.446

At December 31, 2007, real estate owned consisted primarily of 36 residential properties totaling $3.6 million
and three commercial properties totaling $2.8 million.

Classified Assets. Federal regulations and our Asset Classification Policy require that we utilize an internal
asset classification system as a means of reporting problem and potential problem assets. We have incorporated the
OTS’s internal asset classifications as a part of our credit monitoring system. All assets are subject to classification.
Asset quality ratings are divided into three asset classifications: Pass (unclassified), special mention and classified
(adverse classification). Additionally. there are three adverse classifications: “substandard”, “doubtful” and “loss™.
A pass asset is considered to be of sufficient quality to preclude a special mention or an adverse rating. The special
mention asset has potential weaknesses that deserve management’s close attention. If left uncorrected, these
potential weaknesses may result in deterioration of the repayment prospects for the asset or in our credit position at a
future date. Classified assets receive an adverse classification. An asset is considered "substandard® if it is
inadequately protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the borrower or of the collatera! pledged, if
any. "Substandard"” assets include those characterized by the "distinct possibility" that we will sustain "some loss" if
the deficiencies are not corrected. Assets classified as "doubtful” have all of the weaknesses inherent in those
classified "substandard” with the added characteristic that the weaknesses present make "collection or liquidation in
full," on the basis of currently existing facts. conditions, and values, "highly questionable and improbable." Assets
classified as "loss" are those considered "uncollectible” and of such little value that their continuance as assets
without the establishment of a specific loss reserve is not warranted. When we classify one or more assets, or
portions thereof, as “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss”, we establish a valuation allowance for loan losses in an
amount deemed prudent by management based on the specific facts of the asset.

Our Asset Classification Committee reviews and classifies assets no less frequently than quarterly and our
Board of Directors reviews the asset classification reports on a quarterly basis. The Asset Classification Committee
is composed of the following officers of the Bank: Chief Executive Officer. Chief Operating Officer, Director of
Lending, Chief Credit Officer, Director of Real Estate Lending, Chief Financial Officer, Controller, Director of
Corporate Banking, Senior Financial Analysis Manager and External Reporting Manager.

Allowance for Loan Losses. A provision for loan losses is charged to earnings when it is determined by
management to be required based on our analysis. The allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level to cover all
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known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at edch reporting
date. Management reviews the loan portfolio no less frequently than quarterly in order to identify those inherent
losses and to assess the overall collection probability of the portfolio, Our review includes a quantitative analysis by
loan category, using historical loss experiénce, classifying loans pursuant to a grading system and consideration of a
series of qualitative loss factors. These loss factors are developed using our historical loan loss experience for each
group of loans as further adjusted for spec‘lﬁc factors, including the following:

Trends and levels of delinquk:nt, nonperforming or “impaired” loans;

Trends and levels of charge-offs and recoveries;

Underwriting terms or guarantees for loans;

Impact of changes in underwriting standards, risk tolerances or other changes in lending practices:
Changes in the value of collateral securing loans;

Total loans outstanding and the volume of loan originations;

Type, size, terms and geographic concentration of loans held;

Changes in qualifications or experience of the lending staff;

Changes in local or national economic or industry conditions;

Number of loans requiring héightened management oversight;

Changes in credit concentration; and

»  Changes in regulatory requirlments.

e & & & & ¢ & 8 s 9

Management believes that, based on Lnformation currently available to us at this time, our allowance for loan
losses is maintained at a level which cové‘rs all known and inherent losses that are both probable and reasonable to
estimate at each reporting date. Actual ]0£ses are dependent upon future events and, as such, further changes to the

level of allowances for loan losses may become necessary.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements. The first element is an allocated allowance established
for specific loans identified by the credit| review function that are evaluvated individvally for impairment and are
considered to be impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
prebable that we will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due iiccording to
the contractual terms of the loan agreemeht. Impairment is measured by: (a) the fair value of the collateral if the
loan is collateral dependent; (b) the presth value of expected future cash flows; or (c) the loan’s observable market
price. The second element is an estimated allowance established for losses which are probable and rcasonable to
estimate on cach category of outstanding libans. While we utilize available information to recognize probable losses
on leans inherent in the portfolio, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes In economic
conditions and other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their ¢xamination
process, periodically review our allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require us to recognize additions to
the allowance based on their judgment of ihformation available to them at the time of their examination.
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Allowance for Loan Losses. The following table shows changes in our allowance for loan losses during the
years presented:

At or For the Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Allowance for loan losses at beginning of year $ 33,129 § 30,870 % 26,831 § 19586 § 17,108
Allowance for loan losses acquired - - - 4,221 -
Charge-offs:
One-to-four family residential (302) (6) an (16) (6)
Second mortgage residential (328) (389) (402) (520) (107)
Multi-family residential (40) - (729) - -
Commercial real estate (1,766) (14) N - (330)
Land and land development 2 (532) - - -
Residential construction (26,385) (368) (114) (138) (13)
Business {1,964) (1,021) (608) (57 3
Agriculture - operating - (227) - (64) -
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit - - - (20) {110)
Consumer (2,250) (1,550) (1,192) (1,421) {1,368)
Total charge-offs (33,037) (4,107 (3,063) (2,236) (1,939)
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off 1,066 313 666 373 146
Provision for loan losses 65,382 6,053 6,436 4,887 47271
Allowance for loan losses at end of year $ 66540 3% 33,129 $ 30,870 $ 26,831 § 19,586
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of net loans 2.24% 1.09% 1.09% 1.01% 0.96%

Allowance for loan losses as a

percentage of nonperforming loans 50.79%  110.25%  214.30%  262.23%  541.65%
Ratio of net charge-offs during the year as a

percentage of average loans outstanding during

the year 1.07% 0.13% 0.09% 0.08% 0.10%

We generally discontinue funding of loans which become nonperforming or are deemed impaired unless
additional funding is required to protect the asset. In addition, due to certain laws and regulations in selected states,
some additional funding may be required. Our reserve for unfunded loan commitments at December 31, 2007
totaled $2.7 million which represents potential future losses associated with these unfunded commitments.

23



Allowance for Loan Losses by Loan Ty

allocated by type of loan at each of the dalT indicated:

pe. The following

At December 31,

table shows how our allowance for loan losses is

L2007 2006 2005
Loan Loan Loan
Category Category Category
asa % of as a % of asa % of
Amount of  Total Amount of  Total Amount of  Total
(Dollars in thousands) Allow:;mce Loans Allowance  Loans Allowance  Loans
One-to-four family residential $ 6234 941 % 3% 339 921 % § 740 10.96 %
Second mortgage residential ims 2.86 904 3.27 1.502 4.57
Multi-family residential ] ,|480 3.19 1.874 4.05 2.659 4.75
Commercial real estate 4.;599 11.10 4,708 10.77 5,376 11.47
Land and land development 1 ],P63 14.16 4387 13.44 3,363 R.27
Residential construction 20.|6 19 15.36 7019 21.21 4,455 26.89
Commercial construction 7‘1893 16.18 3.123 13.36 2,681 10.03
Agriculture - real estate PS3 2.72 702 1.86 687 1.62
Business 3.IUI? 7.56 3,353 5.99 2,531 5.06
Agriculture - operating 1257 3.00 1,185 2.56 941 2.07
Warehouse mortgage lines
of credit 172 2.58 225 3.06 190 2.71
Consumer 6.937 11.88 5,310 11.22 5,715 11.60
Unallocated - - - - 30 -
Total $ 66,540 100.00 % § 33,129 100.00 % $ 30870 100.00 %
At December 31,
2004 2003
Loan Loan
Category Category
asa % of asa % of
Amount of  Total Amount of  Total
(Dollars in thousands) Allowance  Loans Allowance  Loans
One-to-four family residential $ 805 1354 % $ 1,069 2520 %
Second mortgage residential 2,369 8.26 2,343 11.63
Multi-family residential 2/468 4.61 2,002 4.47
Comimercial real estate 61041 14.38 4,579 15.92
Land and land development 11282 4.95 903 4.33
Residential construction 31140 19.46 1,570 11.08
Commercial construction 21000 9.14 1.011 6.95
Agriculture - real estate 873 2.16 - -
Business 11796 462 788 2.91
Agriculture - operating 990 2.31 - -
Warehouse mortgage lines
of credit 266 4.30 207 3.55
Consumer 41795 12.27 5,003 13.96
Unaliocated 6 - ill -
Total $ 261831 10000 % $ 19,586 100.00 %
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Investment Activities

Federally chartered savings institutions have the authority to invest in various types of liquid assets, including
United States Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies, time deposits of insured banks and savings
institutions, bankers' acceptances, repurchase agreements and federal funds. Subject to various restrictions,
federally chartered savings institutions may also invest in commercial paper, investment-grade corporate debt
securities and mutual funds whose assets conform to the investments that a federally chartered savings institution is
otherwise authorized to make directly. Historically, we have maintained liquid assets at a level considered to be
adequate to meet our normal daily activities.

Our investment policy, as approved by our Board of Directors, requires management to maintain adequate
liquidity and to generate a favorable return on investment without incurring undue interest rate and credit risk. We
primarily utilize investments to collateralize deposits. Additionally, we may use investment securities for liquidity
management, as a method of deploying excess funding not utilized for loan originations and purchases. We have
invested in U.S. Government securities and agency obligations, corporate securities, municipal obligations, agency
equity securities. mutual funds, U.S. Government sponsored agency issued mortgage-backed securities and
collateralized mortgage obligations. As required by SFAS No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debi and
Equity Securities, we have established an investment portfolio of securities that are categorized as held to maturity
or available for sale. We do not currently maintain a portfolio of securities categorized as trading. Substantially all
of our investment securities are purchased for the available for sale portfolio which totaled $130.5 million, or 3.7%
of total assets, at December 31, 2007. At such date, we had net unrealized losses with respect 10 such securities of
$161,000. Losses due to other-than-temporary impairment were $188,000 for the year ended December 31, 2007,
At December 31, 2007, the held to maturity securities portfolio totaled $70,000,

At December 31, 2007, our mortgage-backed security portfolio (which was classified as available for sale)
totaled $6.7 million, or 0.2% of total assets. At such date, we had net unrealized losses with respect to our
mortgage-backed securities of $66,000. Investments in mortgage-backed securities involve a risk that actual
prepayments will be greater than estimated prepayments over the life of the security, which may require adjustments
to the amortization of any premium or accretion of any discount relating to such instruments thereby changing the
net yield on such securities. There is also reinvestment risk associated with the cash flows from such securities or in
the event the issuer redeems such securities. In addition, the fair value of such securities may be adversely affected
by changes in interest rates.

The Government National Mortgage Association (*“GNMA™) is a government agency within the Department of
Housing and Urban Development which is intended to help finance government-assisted housing programs. GNMA
securities are backed by loans insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Veterans
Administration. The timely payment of principal and interest on GNMA securities is guaranteed by GNMA and
backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government. FHLMC is a private corporation chartered by the U.S.
Government. FHLMC issues participation certificates backed principally by conventional morigage loans. FHLMC
guarantees the timely payment of interest and the ultimate return of principal on participation certificates. FNMA is
a private corporation chartered by the U.S. Congress with a mandate to establish a secondary market for morigage
loans. FNMA guarantees the timely payment of principal and interest on FNMA securities. FHLMC and FNMA
securities are not backed by the full faith and credit of the U.S. Government, but because FHLMC and FNMA are
U.S. Government-sponsored enterpriscs. these securities are considered to be among the highest quality investments
with minimal credit risks.
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Investment Securities Portfolio Compesition. The following table sets forth certain information relating to our

available for sale investment securities portfolio at the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
U.S. Government securities and
agency obligations $| 105428 % 105413 $ 78201 $ 77569 3 68949 $ 67,761
Corporate securities 4,935 4,920 5,245 5,130 10,249 10,264
Municipal obligations 13,931 13914 15,970 15,928 18,301 18,220
Agency equity securities 536 422 547 537 546 521
Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund 58i2 5812 6,000 5.836 6,000 5.848
Total investment securities 130.642 130,481 105,963 105,000 104,045 102,614
FHLBank Topeka stock 65,837 65,837 62,022 62,022 58,491 58,491
Total investment securities and
FHLBank Topeka stock $ 196479 § 196318 § 167985 § 167022 $ 162536 S 161,105
Investment Security Maturity and Yield. The following table sets forth the fair value of available for sale
investment securities which mature during each of the years indicated and the weighted average yields for each
range of maturities at December 31, 2007. {No tax-exempt yiclds have been adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis.
Maturing During the Year Ending December 31,
2009 - 2013 -
(DO”GF'S in fhousands) | 2008 2012 2017 After 2017 Total
Bonds and other debt securities:
U.S. Government securities and agency obligations
Balance 101,692 3721 % - 3 - % 105413
Weighted average yield 3.84% 4.11% - - 3.85%
Corporate securities
Balance 1,350 3570 % - % - § 4920
Weighted average yield 3.71% 6.48% - - 5.72%
Municipal cbligations
Balance 935 6070 $ 6589 § 320 $ 13914
Weighted average yield 4.03% 4.33% 4.52% 4.74% 4.41%
Equity Securities:
Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund
Balance 5.812 - 8 - § - 5 5.812
Weighted average yield 5.29% - - - 5.29%
Agency equity securities
Balance 10 - 5 - 5 412 % 422
Weighted average yield 1.93% - - 7.49% 7.36%
FHLBank Topeka stock
Balance 65,837 - % - 5 - $ 65837
Weighted average yield 5.49% - - - 5.49%
Total fair value 175,636 13361 $§ 6,589 § 732 $ 196,318
Weighted average yield 4.51% 4.84% 4.52% 6.29% 4.54%
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Mortgage-Backed Securities Portfolio Composition. The following table sets forth the composition of our
mortgage-backed securities portfolio at the dates indicated:

At December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Amortized fair Amortized air Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value Cost Value
Fixed-rate:
FHLMC 3 820 3 802 % 1,046 $ 1,100 $ 1,548 § 1490
FNMA 654 637 1,110 1,068 1,810 1,768
GNMA 458 445 654 604 502 835
FHLMC/FNMA CMOs 2,406 2,374 5,936 5,833 9.910 9,691
Total fixed-rate 4,338 4,258 8,846 8.605 14,170 13,784
Adjustable-rate:
GNMA 1,299 1,325 1,932 1.966 2,901 2914
FNMA 988 979 1.535 1,541 2.828 2,870
FHLMC 130 127 163 160 188 184
Total adjustable-rate 2,417 2431 3,630 3,667 5917 5.968
Total mortgage-backed securities $ 6755 § 6689 § 12476 %1227 & 20,087 §$19,752

Mortgage-Backed Security Maturity and Yield. Information regarding the contractual maturities and weighted
average yield of our mortgage-backed securities portfolio at December 31, 2007 is presented below. Due to
repayments of the underlying loans, the actual maturities of mortgage-backed securities generally are less than the
scheduled maturities.

Maturing During the Year Ending December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2009 - 2012 After 2012 Total
Fixed-rate:
FHLMC
Balance 3 380 % 386 § 36 $ 802
Weighted average yield 4.17% 4.08% 7.82% 4.29%
FNMA
Balance 3 112 $ 244§ 281§ 637
Weighted average yield 5.99% 3.36% 6.44% 5.18%
GNMA
Balance $ - 3 1 3 444 § 445
Weighted average yield - 10.00% 6.04% 6.05%
FHLMC/FNMA CMOs
Balance $ - 3 397 $ 1.977 § 2,374
Weighted average yield - 5.39% 3.85% 4.11%
Adjustable-rate:
FHLMC
Balance 5 - 3 - 3 127  $ 127
Weighted average yield - - 6.89% 6.89%
FNMA
Balance 3 - 5 - % 979 % 979
Weighted average yield - - 7.17% 7.17%
GNMA
Balance 3 - 8 - 3 1325 % 1,325
Weighted average yield - - 5.96% 5.96%
Total fair value 3 492 % 1028 % 5169 $ 6,689
Weighted average yield 4.58% 442% 5.45% 5.23%
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Unrealized Losses. At December 31, 27.007 and 2006, all unrealized losses related to investment and mortgage-
backed securities are considered temporary in nature. Investment and mortgage-backed securities with unrealized
losses at December 31, 2007 and 2006, are;summarized in the following tables:

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer T'otal

| Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
{(Dollars in thousands) | Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
At December 31, 2007:
U.S. Government securities and

agency obligations £ 19994 § 3 $11999 § 30 $31993 % 33

Corporate securities 3,570 3 1,350 12 4,920 15
Municipal obligations 1.424 21 1,570 14 2,994 35
Agency equity securitics 5 1 412 113 417 114
Mortgage-backed securities 1,871 17 3,062 81 4,933 98

Total temporarily impaired securities  § 26,864  § 45 §$ 18,393 § 250 § 45257 § 295

At December 31, 2006:
U.S. Government securities and

agency obligations 5 3602 % 73 $39063 § 563 $42665 § 636
Corporate securities 4,002 91 1.128 24 5.130 115
Municipal obligations 933 3 6.893 58 7.826 6l
Agency equity securities 6 - 525 10 531 10
Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund - - 5.836 164 5,836 164
Mortgage-backed securities 591 9 8,224 246 8.815 255

Total temporarily impaired securities $ 9,134 § 176 361,669 $ 1065 $ 70803 § 1241

We believe all unrealized losses at DeL:mber 31, 2007 and 2006 o be markel related, with no permanent sector
or issuer credit concerns or impairments. | The unrealized losses are believed to be temporarily impaired in value.
Impairment is deemed temporary if thelpositive evidence indicating that an investment’s carrying amount is
recoverable within a reasonable time period outweighs negative evidence to the contrary. At December 31, 2007,
we had the ability and intent to hold these securities until maturity.
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Sources of Funds

General. Our primary sources of funds are deposits; amortization of loans, loan prepayments and maturity of
loans; repayment, maturity or sale of investment and mortgage-backed securities; and other funds provided from
operations. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans and mortgage-backed securities and maturing
investment securities are relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and loan prepayments can be greatly
influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. We utilize FHLBank advances and other
borrowings and brokered time deposits as additional funding sources.

Deposits. As a regional community bank, we offer a variety of products designed to attract deposits from the
general public, local businesses and governmental entities. Our product offerings consist of checking (both interest-
and noainterest-bearing), money market, savings, time deposits and individual retirement accounts. We also may
use brokered time deposits as an alternative source of funds. During 2007, deposits generated through our retail
banking facilities increased $378.2 million or 18.49%. At December 31, 2005 we had brokered time deposits of
$78.0 million. We did not have any brokered time deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006.

Deposit Composition. The following table shows the distribution of, and certain other information relating to,
our deposits by type of deposit, as of the dates indicated:

At December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(Dollars in thousands) Amount % Amount o Amount %
Time deposits:
0.00% - 0.99% 5 20 - % - - % % 161 0.01 %
1.00% - 1.99% 101 - 542 0.03 53915 2.65
2.00% - 2.99% 3,879 0.16 27,594 1.34 134,712 6.60
3.00% - 3.99% 129,910 5.34 151.499 7.38 702,599 3447
4.00% - 4.99% 398,325 16.39 348,777 16.99 208,277 10.22
5.009% - 5.99% 866,878 35.67 592,013 28.85 6,375 0.31
6.00% - 6.99% - - 128 0.01 53 0.00
Total time deposits (1) 1,399,113 57.56 1,120,553 54,60 1,106,092 54.26
Transaction accounts:
Noninterest-bearing checking 164,275 6.76 154,123 7.51 138,578 6.80
Savings 188,613 1.76 45452 2.21 57,037 2.80
Interest-bearing checking 328,267 13.51 349,033 17.01 398,094 19.53
Money market 350,276 14.41 383,182 18.67 338,518 16.61
Total transaction accounts 1.031.431 42.44 931,790 45.40 932,227 45.74
Total deposits $ 2430544 100.00 % $2,052343 10000 % $ 2038319 10000 %

(1} Includes $78.0 million of brokered time deposits at December 31, 2005. We did not have any brokered time
deposits at December 31, 2007 or 2006.
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Deposit Average Balances and Average Rates Paid. The following table shows the average balance of each

type of deposit and the average rate paid onl

each type of deposit for the years indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average
Average Rate Average Rate Average Rate
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Paid Balance Paid Balance Paid
Interest-bearing checking $ 1326,545 1.13 % $ 361,056 1.15 % $ 386,968 079 %
Savings 90,036 2.70 51,643 0.51 68,909 0.59
Money market 385,210 3.04 303,807 2.82 313,802 1.62
Time deposits 1)287,195 4.98 1,085,350 4.12 1,059,876 3.15
Total interest-bearing deposits 21088,986 392 1,891,856 3.18 1,829,555 2.29
Noninterest-bearing checking 135,617 - 119,394 - 112,902 -
Total deposits $21224,603 3.69 % $2,011,250 299 % $1,942457 2.16 %
Deposit Account Activity. The following table shows our deposit tlows during the years indicated:
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Total deposits § 14,161,490 $ 11,860,601 $ 11,603,730
Total withdrawals (13,859,852) (11,903,159 (11,468,940)
Interest credited 76,563 56,582 36,768
Total increase in deposits 378,201 14,024 173,558
Deposits acquired in Marine Bank transactjon - (8,106) -
Deposits transferred due to Kansas
branch sale transaction - 21,740 -
Net increase in deposits $ 378,201 % 27,658 % 173,558

Time Deposit Maturity. The followi
amount of time deposits at December 31, 2

ng table presents, by various interest rate categories and maturities, the
h07:

Balance at December 31, 2007
Maturing in the 12 Months Ending December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter Total
Time deposits:
0.00% - 0.99% $ 20 % - 3 - 3 - % 20
1.00% - 1.99% 8 - - 93 101
2.00% - 2.99% 3,580 287 12 - 3,879
3.00% - 3.99% 107,004 20,639 1,843 424 129,910
4.00% - 4.99% 551,582 30,429 5,726 10,588 398,325
5.00% - 5.99% 52,999 11,451 1,333 1,095 B66,878
Total time deposits $ l,£15,193 $ 62806 % 8914 § 12,200 $ 1,399,113
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Time Deposits Exceeding $100,000. The following table shows the maturities of our time deposits exceeding
$100,000 at December 31, 2007 by the time remaining to maturity. There are no brokered time deposits included in
the following table as we did not have any brokered time deposits at December 31, 2007,

Weighted
{Dollars in thousands) Amount Average Rate
Quarter ending:
March 31, 2008 $ 96,410 517 %
June 30, 2008 105.466 5.21
September 30, 2008 73,140 5.12
December 31. 2008 43,678 4.80
After December 31, 2008 18,622 4.85
Total time deposits exceedinf_; $100,000 $ 337,316 510 %

Borrowings. We utilize advances from the FHLBank as an alternative to retail deposits to fund our operations
as part of our operating strategy. The FHLBank is part of a system of 12 regional Federal Home Loan Banks, each
subject to Federal Housing Finance Board supervision and regulation, that function as a central reserve bank
providing credit to financial institutions. As a condition of membership in the FHLBank we are required to own
stock of the FHLBank. Our FHLBank advances are collateralized by our qualifying residential, multi-family
residential and commercial real cstate mortgages, residential construction, commercial construction and agricultural
real estate loans, and secondarily by our investment in capital stock of the FHLBank. FHLBank advances arc made
pursuant to several different credit programs, each of which has its own interest rate and range of maturities. The
maximum amount that the FHLBank will advance to member institutions, including us, fluctuates from time to time
in accordance with the policies of the FHLBank. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had $634.2 million and
$907.2 million, respectively, in outstanding FHLBank advances.

On April 26, 2004, we formed TierOne Capital Trust I (“TierOne Capital Trust”), which issued capital
securities (“Trust Preferred Securities™) to investors. The proceeds from the sale of the Trust Preferred Securities
were used to purchase $30.9 million of our junior subordinated debentures (“debentures”). The debentures are
callable at par in June 2009 and mature in June 2034. Our obligation under the debentures constitutes a full and
unconditional guarantee of TierOne Capital Trust’s obligations under the Trust Preferred Securities. In accordance
with Interpretation No. 46 (Revised), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R”), the trust is not
consolidated and related amounts are treated as debt of the Company.

In connection with our acquisition of UNFC on August 27, 2004, we assumed $7.0 million of variable rate

debentures that had been issued on November 28, 2001 by United Nebraska Capital Trust, a trust formed by UNFC.
We exercised our right to call and retire these debentures in December 2006.
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FHLBank Advances and Other Borrowings. The following table shows certain information regarding cur
borrowings at or for the dates indicated:

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

| At or For the Year Ended December 31,
|
|

FHLBank Topeka advances: l

Average balance outstanding during the year $ 745337 % 824,101 % 766,265
Maximum amount outstanding at any

month-end during the year 3 844,268 § 907,920 S 890,354
Balance outstanding at end of the year 3 634,195 % 907,164 $ 747,125
Average interest rate during the year L 4.27% 4.07% 3.55%
Weighted average interest rate at end | f the year 4.39% 4.29% 3.60%

Other borrowings: ‘
Average balance outstanding during the year $ 67.011 § 69400 § 68,330
Maximum amount outstanding at any

month-¢nd during the year $ 82,990 § 84403 % 74,511
Balance outstanding at end of the year 3 55093 % 55212 §% 67.799
Average interest rate during the year 6.13% 6.17% 4.74%
Weighted average intercst rate at end pf the year 5.76% 6.12% 5.60%

For more information regarding our borrowings, see “Note 13 — FHLBank Topeka Advances and Other
Borrowings™ included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data in Part 11 of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K.

Subsidiary Activities

TierOne Bank is the wholly owned subsidiary of TierOne Corporation. TMS Corporation of the Americas is
the wholly owned subsidiary of TierOne Bank and holds all of the stock of TierOne Investments and Insurance, Inc.
(d/bfa TierOne Financial) and TierOne Reinsurance Company. TierOne Financial provides a wide selection of
investment and insurance products, equity| securities, mutual funds and annuitics. These products are made available
to consumers via licensed representativey in our banking offices. TierOne Reinsurance Company reinsures credit
life and disability insurance which is sold in conjunction with the origination of consumer loans by TierOne Bank.
United Farm & Ranch Management, Inc.|is a wholly owned subsidiary of TierOne Bank that provides agricultural
customers with professional farm and ran¢h management and real estate brokerage services.

Personnel
As of December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, we had 862, 850 and 772 full-time equivalent employees,
respectively. Employees are not represented by a collective bargaining unit and we consider our relationship with

our employees to be good.

Regulation and Supervision

The following is not intended to be a|complete discussion but is intended to be a summary of some of the more
significant provisions of laws and regulations which are applicable to the Company and the Bank. This regulatory
Sramework is intended to protect depositors, federal deposit insurance funds and the banking system as a whole, and
not to protect security holders. To the extent that the information describes statutory and regulatory provisions, it is
qualified in its entirety by reference to !fgose provisions. Additionally, such statutes, regulations and policies are
continually under review by Congress and state legislatures, and federal and state regulatory agencies. A change in
statwres, regulations or regulatory policies applicable to the Company or the Bank, including changes in
imterpretations. could have a material effect on our business.
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General. The Bank, as a federally chartered stock savings bank, is subject to OTS regulations, examinations
and reporting requirements. The Bank is also subject to regulation and examination by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), which insures the deposits of the Bank to the maximum extent permitted by law
and requirements established by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. The investment and
lending authority of savings institutions is prescribed by federal laws and regulations and such institutions are
prohibited from engaging in any activities not permitted by such laws and regulations. Such regulation and
supervision primarily is intended for the protection of depositors and not for the purpose of protecting stockholders,

The OTS regularly examines the Bank and prepares reports for consideration by our Board of Directors on any
deficiencies that it may find in the Bank’s operations. The FDIC also has the authority to examine the Bank in its
role as the administrator of the Deposit Insurance Fund. The Bank’s relationship with its depositors and borrowers
is also regulated to a great extent by both federal, and to a lesser extent, state laws, especially in such matters as the
ownership of deposit accounts and the form and content of the Bank’s mortgage requirements. The OTS
enforcement authority over all savings institutions and their holding companies includes, among other things, the
ability to assess civil money penaities, to issue cease and desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctive actions.
In general, these enforcement actions may be initiated for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound
practices. Other actions or inactions may provide the basis for enforcement action, including misleading or untimely
reports filed with the OTS. Any change in such laws or regulations, whether by the FDIC, the OTS or the Congress,
could have a material adverse impact on our operations.

Insurance of Deposit Accounts. Deposit accounts are insured by the FDIC generally up to a maximum of
$100,000 per account and up to a maximum of $250,000 for self-directed retirement accounts. Qur deposits,
therefore, are subject to FDIC deposit insurance assessments.

On November 2, 2006, the FDIC adopted final regulations that assess insurance premiums based on risk. Asa
result, the new reguiations will enable the FDIC to more closely tie each financial institution’s deposit insurance
premiums to the risk it poses to the Deposit Insurance Fund. Under the new risk-based assessment system, the FDIC
will evaluate the risk of each financial institution based on its supervisory rating, financial ratios and its long-term
debt issuer rating. The new rates for most financial institutions vary between five and seven cents for every $100 of
domestic deposits.

We were not required to pay any deposit insurance assessments for the year ended December 31, 2007. Under
the Federal Deposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005, which became law in 2006, we received a one-time assessment
credit of $1.9 million that could be applied against future premiums, subject to certain limitations. This credit was
utilized during the year ended December 31, 2007 to offset $1.5 million of deposit insurance assessments. We
estimate that we will exhaust our remaining credit during the first quarter of 2008.

All FDIC-insured depository institutions must pay an annual assessment to provide funds for the payment of
interest on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation (“FICO”), a federal corporation chartered under the authority
of the Federal Housing Finance Board. The bonds (referred to as FICO bonds) were issued to capitalize the Federal
Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation. The FICO has assessment authority, separate from the FDIC’s authority
to assess risk-based premiums for deposit insurance, to collect funds from FDIC-insured institutions sufficient to
pay interest on FICO bonds. The FDIC acts as a collection agent for the FICO. The FICO assessment rate effective
for the first quarter of 2008 is 1.14 cents annually per $100 of assessable deposits. These assessments will continue
untii the FICO bonds mature in 2019.

Regulatory Capital Requirements. Pursuant to the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement
Act of 1989 (“FIRREA™), the OTS adopted regulations implementing new capital standards applicable to all savings
associations, including the Bank. Such capital standards require that savings associations maintain: (a) capital of
not less than 1.5% of adjusted total assets (Tangible Capital}; (b) core (Tier 1} capital of not less than 4% of adjusted
total assets; and (c) total risk-based capital of not less than 8% of risk-weighted assets. As of December 31, 2007,
the Bank met all regulatory capital requirements. The OTS is authorized to impose capital requirements in excess of
those standards on individual institutions on a case-by-case basis.
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Under the tangible capital requirement, a savings bank must maintain tangible capital in an amount equal to at
least 1.5% of adjusted total assets. Tangihjle capital is defined as core capital less all intangible assets and goodwill,
plus a specified amount of purchased mortgage servicing rights.

Under the Core (Tier 1) capital requirement adopted by the OTS, savings banks must maintain “core capital” in
an amount equal to at least 4.0% of adjusted total assets. Core (Tier 1) capital consists of: common stockholders’
equity (including retained earnings), non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock, certain non-withdrawable and
pledged deposits; and minority interests iﬁ the equity accounts of consolidated subsidiaries plus purchased mortgage
servicing rights valued at the lower of 90% of fair value, 90% of original cost or the current amortized book value as
determined in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) and goodwill, less non-
qualifying intangible assets.

Under the risk-based capital requirement, a savings bank must maintain total capital (which is defined as core
capital plus supplementary capital) equal to at least 8.0% of risk-weighted assets. A savings bank musy calculate its
risk-weighted assets by multiplying each|asset and off-balance sheet item by various risk factors, which range from
0% for cash and securities issued by the United States Government or its agencies to 100% for repossensed assets or
loans more than 90 days past due. Supplementary capital may include, among other items. cumulative perpetual
preferred stock, perpetual subordinated debt, mandatory convertible subordinated debt, intermediate-term preferred
stock and general allowances for loan losses. The allowance for loan losses includable in supplementary capital is
limited to 1.25% of risk-weighted assets, The amount of supplementary capital that can be included is limited to
100% of core capital.

Certain exclusions from capital and dssets are required to be made for the purpose of calculating total capital, in
addition to the adjustments required fi v calculating core capital. However, in calculating regulatory capital,
institutions can add back unrealized losses and deduct unrealized gains net of taxes, on debt securities reported as a
separate component of capital calculated chording to GAAP.

and other subsidiaries, including subsidiary savings banks. According to these regulations, certain subsidiaries are
consolidated for capital purposes and othtrs are excluded from assets and capital. In determining compliance with
the capital requirements, all subsidiaries engaged solely in activities permissible for national banks, engaged solely
in mortgage-banking activities or engaged in certain other activities solely as agent for its customers are
“includable™ subsidiaries that are consoli‘fiated for capital purposes in proportion to the Bank’s level of ownership,
including the assets of includable subsidiaries in which the Bank has a minority interest that is not consolidated for
GAAP purposes. For excludable subsidiaries, the debt and equity investments in such subsidiaries are deducted
from assets and capital. At December 3‘1, 2007, the Bank had $1.2 million of investments subject to a deduction
from tangible capital.

OTS regulations establish special c1pitalizali0n requirements for savings banks that own service corporations

Under current OTS policy, savings |institutions must value securities available for sale a1l amortized cost for
regulatory capital purposes. This means|that in computing regulatory capital, savings institutions should add back
any unrealized losses and deduct any unrealized gains, net of income taxes, on securities reported as a separate
component of capital calculated according to GAAP.

The OTS and the FDIC generally ar¢ authorized to take enforcement action against a savings bank that fails to
meet its capital requirements, which action may include restrictions on operations and banking dctivities, the
imposition of a capital directive, a ceas#-and-desist order, civil money penalties or harsher measures such as the
appointment of a receiver or conservator or a forced merger into another institution. In addition, under current
regulatory policy, a savings bank that fails to meet its capital requirements is prohibited from paying any dividends.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements. For more information see

“Note 19 — Regulatory Capital Requirements” included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, in
Part 11 of this Annual Report on Form IO(K
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Prompt Corrective Action. Under the prompt corrective action regulations, the OTS is required and authorized
to take supervisory actions against undercapitalized savings associations. For this purpose, a savings institution 1s
placed in one of the following five categories based on the savings institutions capital:

o well-capitalized (at least 5% leverage capital, 6% Tier 1 risk-based capital and 10% total risk-based
capital);

» adequately capitalized (at least 4% leverage capital, 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital and 8% total risk-based
capital);

e undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capital, 4% Tier 1 risk-based capital or 8% total risk-based capital);

 significantly undercapitalized (less than 3% leverage capital, 3% Tier | risk-based capital or 6% total risk-
based capital); and

» critically undercapitalized (less than 2% tangible capital)

Generally, the banking regulator is required to appoint a receiver or conservator for a savings association that is
“critically undercapitalized” within specific time frames. The regulations also provide that a capital restoration plan
must be filed with the OTS within 45 days of the date a savings institution receives notice that it is
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalized” or “critically undercapitalized.” Any holding company for a
savings institution required to submit a capital restoration plan must guarantee the lesser of an amount equal to 5%
of the savings institution’s assets at the time it was notified or deemed to be undercapitalized by the OTS, or the
amount necessary to restore the savings institution to adequately capitalized status. This guarantee remains in place
until the OTS notifies the savings institution that it has maintained adequately capitalized status for each of four
consecutive calendar quarters, and the OTS has the authority to require payment and collect payment under the
guarantee. Failure by a holding company to provide the required guarantee will result in certain operating
restrictions on the savings institution, such as restrictions on the ability to declare and pay dividends, pay executive
compensation and management fees and increase assets or expand operations. The OTS may also take any number
of discretionary supervisory actions against undercapitalized institutions, including the issuance of a capital directive
and the replacement of senior executive officers and directors.

At December 31, 2007, the Bank met the criteria for being considered a *well capitalized” institution.

Safety and Soundness Guidelines. Federal law requires each federal banking agency to prescribe certain
standards for all insured depository institutions. These standards relate to, among other things, internal controls,
information systems and audit systems, loan documentation, credit underwriting, interest rate risk exposure, asset
growth, compensation and other operational and managerial standards as the agency deems appropriate. The federal
banking agencies adopted Interagency Guidelines Prescribing Standards for Safety and Soundness to implement the
safety and soundness standards required under federal law. The guidelines set forth the safety and soundness
standards that the federal banking agencies use to identify and address problems at insured depository institutions
before capital becomes impaired. If the appropriate federal banking agency determines that an institution fails to
meet any standard prescribed by the guidelines, the agency may require the institution to submit to the agency an
acceptable plan to achieve compliance with the standard. If an institution fails to meet these standards, the
appropriate federal banking agency may require the institution to submit a compliance plan. The Bank believes that
it is in compliance with these guidelines and standards.

Capital Distributions. OTS regulations govern capital distributions by savings institutions, which include cash
dividends, stock repurchases and other transactions charged to the capital account of a savings institution. A savings
institution must file an application for OTS approval of the capital distribution if any of the following occur or
would occur as a result of the capital distribution:

e the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed the sum of the institution’s net income
for that year to date plus the institution’s retained net income for the preceding two years;

e the institution would not be at least adequately capitatized following the distribution;

o the distribution would violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or OTS-imposed condition; or

e the institution is not eligible for expedited treatment of its filings.
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Even if an application is not otherwise required, every savings institution that is a subsidiary of a holding company
must still file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days before the board of directors declares a dividend or approves a
capital distribution,

Branching by Federal Savings Institutions. OTS policy permits interstate branching to the full extent
permitted by statute (which is essentially unlimited). Generally, federal law prohibits federal savings institutions
from establishing, retaining or operating| a branch outside the state in which the federal institution has its home
office unless the institution meets the Internal Revenue Service (“IRS™) domestic building and loan test (generally,
60% of a thrift’s assets must be housing-related) {“IRS Test”). The IRS Test requirement does not apply if: (a) the
branch(es) result(s) from an emergency acquisition of a troubled savings institution (however, if the troubled savings
institution is acquired by a bank holding|company, does not have its home office in the state of the bank holding
company bank subsidiary and does not qualify under the IRS Test, its branching is limited to the branching laws for
state-chartered banks in the state where the savings institution is located): (b) the law of the state where the branch
would be located would permit the branclh to be established if the federal savings institution were chartered by the
state in which its home office is located: or (¢} the branch was operated lawfully as a branch under state law prior to
the savings institution’s recrganization 1o a federal charter.

Furthermore, the OTS will evaluate a branching applicant’s record of compliance with the Community
Reinvestment Act of 1977 (*CRA”). An unsatisfactory CRA record may be the basis for denial of a branching
application.

Community Reinvestment Act and the Fair Lending Laws. Under the Community Reinvestment Act
("*CRA™), as implemented by FDIC regulations, an institution has a continuing and affirmative obligation consistent
with its safe and sound operation to help 'meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate
income neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial
institutions, nor does it limit an institutiog‘s discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes
are best suited to its particular community, consistent with the CRA. The CRA requires the FDIC, ir connection
with its examinations, to assess the institution’s record of meeting the credit needs of its community and to take such
record into account in its evaluation of ‘cenain applications by such institutions. In addition, the Equal Credit
Opportunity Act and the Fair Housing Act prohibit lenders from discriminating in their lending prastices on the
basis of characteristics specified in those statutes. An institution’s failure to comply with the provisions of the CRA
could, at a minimum, result in regulatory restrictions on its activities, and failure to comply with the fair lending
laws could result in enforcement actions by the OTS, as well as other federal regulatory agencies and the
Department of Justice. The Bank received a satisfactory CRA rating in its recent federal examination.

Loans-to-One Borrower Limitations. Generally, a federal savings institution may not make a loan or extend
credit to a single or related group of borrowers in excess of 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus (this amount was
approximately $54.2 million at December 31, 2007). An additicnal amount may be loaned, equal to 10% of

unimpaired capital and surplus, if the lo
include real estate. As of December 31, 2

Qualified Thrift Lender Test. As a
lender (“QTL"”) test. Under the QTL test,
investments” (primarily residential mortg

an is secured by readily marketable collateral, which generally does not
D07, we were in compliance with the loans-to-one borrower limitations,

federal savings institution, we are required to satisfy the qualified thrift
we must maintain at least 65% of our “portfolio assets™ in “qualified thrift
ages and related investments, including mortgage-backed securities) in at

least nine months of the most recent 12-month period. “Portfolio assets” generally means total assets of a savings
institution, less the sum of specified liquid assets up to 20% of total assets, goodwill and other intangible assets and

the value of property used to conduct the saving’s institutions business. We may also satisfy the QTL test by

qualifying as a “domestic building and

oan association” as defined in the Internal Revenue Code. A savings

institution that fails the QTL test must either convert to a bank charter or operate under specified restrictions.

At December 31, 2007, approximately 78.1% of the portfolio assets of the Bank were qualified thrift

investments.

Federal Reserve System. The Bank is subject to various regulations promulgated by the Federal Reserve,

including, among others, Regulation B
(Elecironic Funds Transfers), Regulatio

{Equal Credit Opportunity). Regulation D (Reserves). Regulation E
n Z (Truth in Lending), Regulation CC (Availability of Funds), and
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Regulation DD (Truth in Savings). Regulation D requires noninterest-bearing reserve maintenance in the form of
either vault cash or funds on deposit at Federal Reserve Bank of Kansas City or another designated depository
institution in an amount calculated by formula. The balances maintained to meet the reserve requirements imposed
by the Federal Reserve may be used to satisfy liquidity requirements. At December 31, 2007, the Bank was in
compliance with these reserve requircments.

Savings banks are authorized to borrow from a Federal Reserve Bank (“FRB”) “discount window,” but FRB
regulations require savings banks to exhaust other reasonable alternative sources of funds, including FHLBank
advances, before borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank.

Affiliate Restrictions. Section 11 of the Home Owners’ Loan Act provides that transactions between an insured
subsidiary of a holding company and an affiliate thereof will be subject to the restrictions that apply to transactions
between banks that are members of the Federal Reserve System and their affiliates pursuant to Sections 23A and
23B of the Federal Reserve Act.

Generally, Section 23A and 23B and OTS regulations issued in connection therewith limit the extent to which a
savings institution or its subsidiaries may engage in certain “covered transactions” with affiliates to an amount equal
to 10% of the institution’s capital stock and surplus, in the case of covered transactions with any one affiliate, and to
an amount equal to 20% of such capital stock and surplus, in the case of covered transactions with all affiliates.
Section 23B applies to “covered transactions” and certain other transactions and requires that all such transactions
be on terms and under circumstances that are substantially the same, or at least as favorable to the savings institution
or its subsidiary, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with nonaffiliated companies. A
“covered transaction” is defined to include a loan or extension of credit to an affiliate; a purchase of invesiment
securities issued by an affiliate; a purchase of assets from an affiliate, with certain exceptions; the acceptance of
securities issued by an affiliate as collateral for a loan or extension of credit to any party; or the issuance of a
guarantee, acceptance or letter of credit on behalf of an affiliate. Section 23B transactions also apply to the
provision of services and the sale of assets by a savings association to an affiliate.

In addition, under OTS regulations, a savings institution may not make a loan or extension of credit to an
affiliate unless the affiliate is engaged only in activities permissible for bank holding companies; a savings
institution may not purchase or invest in securities of an affiliate other than shares of a subsidiary; a savings
institution and its subsidiaries may not purchase a low-quality asset from an affiliate; and covered transactions and
certain other transactions between a savings institution or its subsidiaries and an affiliate must be on terms and
conditions that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices. With certain exceptions, each loan or
extension of credit by a savings institution to an affiliate must be secured by collateral with a fair value of at least
100% (depending on the type of collateral) of the amount of the loan or extension of credit.

The OTS regulation generally excludes all non-bank and non-savings institution subsidiaries of savings
institutions from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the OTS or the FRB decides to treat such
subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulation also requires savings institutions to make and retain records that reflect
affiliate transactions in reasonable detail, and provides that certain classes of savings institutions may be required to
give the OTS prior notice of affiliate transactions.

The U.S.A. Patriot Act. In December 2001, the Uniting and Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate
Tools Required to Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act of 2001 (“USA Patriot Act”) became effective. The USA
Patriot Act is designed to combat money laundering and terrorist financing while protecting the United States
financial system, The USA Patriot Act imposes enhanced policy, record keeping and due diligence requirements on
domestic financial institutions. The USA Patriot Act also amended the Bank Secrecy Act to facilitate access to
customer account information by government officials while immunizing banks from liability for releasing such
information. Among other requirements, Title I1I of the USA Patriot Act and related OTS regulations impose the
following requirements with respect to financial institutions:

¢  Establishment of anti-money laundering programs;

e Establishment of a program specifying procedures for obtaining identifying information from
customers seeking to open new accounts, including verifying the identity of customers within a
reasonable period of time;
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Establishment of enhanced
report money laundering; an
Prohibition on corresponden
obligations with respect toc

due diligence policies, procedures and controls designed to detect and

t accounts for foreign shell banks and compliance with record keeping
rrespondent accounts of foreign banks.

In addition, bank regulators are dlrected to consider a holding company’s effectiveness in combating money
laundering when ruling on Federal Reserve Act and Bank Merger Act applications.

Item 1A. Risk Factors
In addition to other information con

we currently deem to be immaterial also
operations.

No assurance can be given that we will c
The Merger Agreement provides that

Board of Directors) has the right at an
Agreement, unless the failure to effect the

tained in this Annual Report on Form 0-K, the following risk factors
should be considered in evaluating our busi

iness. Additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to us or that
may adversely affect our business, financial condition and/or results of

mplete our proposed Merger with CapitalSource.
either the Company or CapitalSource (each acting through its respective

y time after February |7, 2008 to unilaterally terminate the Merger
Merger by such date was due to the terminating party’s failure to perform

its obligations and covenants under the Merger Agreement. The Company has indicated that its present intent is not
to terminate the Merger Agreement pcndi?g receipt of further comment from the OTS. Conversely. CapitalSource
has publicly advised that its Board of Directors has authorized its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to either

terminate the Merger Agreement or negot
Company can provide no assurance that
transaction {including receipt of regulatory

CapitalSource and the Company must ob
granted, or granted with unacceptable ¢
result in additional expenditures of mone)

ate new terms for the transaction. In light of the preceding sentence, the
the Merger will be completed even if all conditions precedent to the
approval} are satisfied.

tain regulatory approvals to complete the Merger, which, if delayed, not
onditions, may jeopardize or postpone the complietion of the Merger,
v and resources or reduce the anticipated benefits of the Merger.

CapitalSource and the Company m

completion of the Merger. If CapitalSource and the Company do not receive the OTS’s approval, or do not receive it

on terms that satisfy the conditions set fi
some cases permitted, to complete the Me

i&

}st obtain certain approval in a timely manner from the OTS prior to

rth in the Merger Agreement, then neither party will be obligated, or in

rer. The OTS has broad discretion in administering the governing statutes

and regulations. As a condition to approval of the Merger, the OTS may impose requirements, limitations or costs

that could negatively affect the way the ¢
costs could jeopardize or delay the comple

mbined companies conduct business. These requirements, limitations or
ion of the Merger.

Conmpanies holding more than 10% of rh outstanding shares of CapitalSource common stock may affect or delay
the approval of the Merger by the OTS. f f these holders do not become savings and loan holding companies, or
the OTS does not accept a rebuttal of control from them, regulatory approval of the Merger would not be

obtainable, and the Merger could not be completed.

Under the OTS’s regulations, compan
may be presumed to control CapitalSour
OTS’s acceptance of a rebuttal submissi

8

fes holding more than 10% of CapitalSource’s outstanding common stock
e, subject to the opportunity 10 rebut this presumption by obtaining the
If a company holding 10% or more of CapitalSource’s outstanding

common stock does not rebut the presumption of control, or reduce its holdings to less than 10% of CapitalSource’s
outstanding common stock, it would be required to obtain the approval of the OTS to become a savings and loan

holding company prior to completion of the Merger,

may not be willing to become a savings
rebuttal of control from them, then regulat
not be completed.

Some or all of CapitalSource’s 10% or greater stockholders

land loan holding company. As a result, if the OTS does not accept a

ry approval of the Merger would not be obtainable, and the Merger could
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Failure to complete the Merger could negatively impact our stock price and future business and operations.

If the Merger is not completed, we may be subject to a number of material risks, including the following:

e the price of our common stock may decline if the current market price of our common stock reflects a
market assumption that the Merger will be completed; and

e our costs related to the Merger, such as legal, accounting and certain financial advisor fees, generally must
be paid even if the Merger is not completed.

In addition, our customers and suppliers may, in response to the announcement of the Merger, delay or defer
decisions concerning us. Any delay or deferral in those decisions by our customers or suppliers could have a
material adverse effect on our business, regardless of whether or not the Merger is ultimately completed. Similarly,
current and prospective employees may experience uncertainty about their future role with CapitalSource until
CapitalSource's strategies with regard to us are announced or cxecuted. This uncertainty may adversely affect our
ability to attract and retain key management, sales, marketing and technical personnel.

Further, if the Merger is terminated and our Board of Directors decides to pursue another merger or business
combination, there can be no assurance that we will be able to find a partner willing to pay an equivalent or more
attractive price than CapitalSource would have paid in the Merger.

Because the market price of CapitalSource common stock will fluctuate, our stockholders cannot be sure of the
value of the merger consideration they will receive if the Merger is effected.

If the Merger is completed, the holders of each share of Company common stock owned prior to the closing of
the Merger will be entitled to receive for each such share:

$6.80 in cash; plus
. 0.675 shares of CapitalSource common stock; plus
If the ten-day average closing price of CapitalSource common stock prior to the closing of the Merger is:
a) less than or equal to $25.1852, then 0.405 shares of CapitalSource common stock; or
b) greater than $25.1852, then TierOne Corporation stockholders can elect to receive either
$10.20 in cash or $10.20 of CapitalSource common stock,

Under the Merger Agreement, the stated maximum amount of CapitalSource stock that a Company stockholder may
receive is 1.08 shares. To the extent the merger consideration is paid in CapitalSource shares, any change in the
market price of CapitalSource commen stock prior to completion of the Merger will affect the value of the merger
consideration that our stockholders will receive upon completion of the Merger. Because of this market risk, prior to
the election deadline, our stockholders will not know or be able 1o calculate the number or the value of the shares of
CapitalSource common stock they will receive upon completion of the Merger. Accordingly, the specific dollar
value of CapitalSource commen stock a stockholder will receive will depend on the market value of CapitalSource
common stock at the time the Merger is completed and may decrease from the date the stockholder makes an
election as to the third component of the merger consideration. Stock price changes may result from a variety of
factors, including general market and economic conditions, changes in the Company’s or CapitalSource’s respective
businesses, operations and prospects, and regulatory considerations. Many of these factors are beyond our control.

In the event the Merger is completed, CapitalSource and the Company may fail to realize all of the anticipated
benefits of the Merger.

We entered into the Merger Agreement with the expectation that the Merger will result in significant benefits
for both companies. Achieving the benefits of the Merger will depend in part on integrating the operations and
personnel of the two companies in a timely and efficient manner to minimize the risk that the Merger will result in
the loss of customers or key employees or the diversion of management’s attention from other important issues.
This integration may or may not be successful. Assuming that the Merger is effected, we cannot offer any
assurances that we and CapitalSource can successfully integrate or realize any of the anticipated benefits.
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Applicable regulations affecting savin

CapitalSource’s commercial lending and

Currently, CapitalSource is not regul

tgs and loan holding companies could negatively impact both
investing business and the business of the Bank following the Merger.

ed as a savings and {oan holding company or bank holding company and

does not control any FDIC-insured depository institution. Savings banks such as the Bank are subject to extensive

regulation of their activities and investm
and their relationships with affiliated co

nts, their capitalization, their risk management policies and procedures,
anies. Upon acquiring control of the Bank and becoming a savings and

loan holding company assuming that the Merger is effected, CapitalSource’s operations would be limited to

financial and certain real estate-related acLivities.
used by financial sponsors to finance purg
1o acquire equity in a borrower at the samg

some of its current commercial lending an

of these equity investments exceed 5%
banking authority that will enable it to con
the requirements of the Home Owners’
required to divest them.

In addition, as a condition to approvil
Bank’s banking and CapitalSource’s comyj

of any future material changes to the B
CapitalSource in pursuing future business
CapitalSource’s inexperience with them,

Merger, and could negatively affect both (]

The value of the CapitalSource common
Merger. Neither CapitalSource nor the
subsequent to the closing of the Merger if

Stock price changes may result from

changes in CapitalSource’s businesses, @

factors are beyond CapitalSource’s contr
result of the Merger if:

the integration of CapitalSource

These limitations may require CapitalSource to curtail or divest
investment business activities. For instance, in connection with its loans
hases of companies, CapitalSource commonly is granted the opportunity
time and on substantially the same terms as the financial sponsor. Some
bf the borrower’s equity. If CapitalSource does not acquire merchant
form these equity investments of more than 5% in non-financial entities to

Loan Act within two years of the acquisition of the Company, it will be

ng the Merger, the OTS may impose restrictions on the integration of the
mercial lending and investing businesses, and may require prior approval
ank's business plans. These regulations and conditions could constrain
ppportunities following the Merger. These regulations and conditions, and
could also affect CapitalSource’s ability to realize synergies from the
apitalSource and the Bank following the Merger.

t stock our stockholders receive in the Merger may fluctuate after the
Company can predict how the CapitalSource common stock will trade
Fthe Merger is completed.

a variety of factors, including general market and economic conditions,
perations and prospects, and regulatory considerations. Many of these
5. The market price of CapitalSource common stock may decline as a

and the Company is unsuccessful;

]

CapitalSource and the Company |do not achieve the perceived benefits of the Merger as rapidly or to the

extent anticipated by financial or gndustry analysts; or

of financial or industry analysts.

the effect of the Merger on the combined company’s financial results is not consistent with the expectations

The Merger Agreement limits our ability fo pursue alternatives to the Merger.

The Merger Agreement, so long as it §s in effect, contains terms and conditions that make it more difficult for us

1o sell our business to a party other than CapitalSource. These “no shop” provisions impose restrictions on us that,
subject to certain exceptions, limit our ability to discuss or facilitate competing third-party proposals to acquire all or
a significant part of our company.

As a bank holding company, our earnings are dependent upon the performance of the Bank and the Bank’s

subsidiaries.

Since we are a holding company wi
dividends from the Bank for a substantial
for the dividends we pay on our common

th no significant assets other than the Bank, we currently depend upon
portion of our revenues. These dividends are the primary funding source
stock. Our ability to pay dividends will continue to depend in large part

upon our receipt of dividends or other capital distributions from the Bank. Various state and federal laws and

regulations limit the amount of dividends
participate in a distribution of assets upod
claims of the subsidiary’s creditors. In th
be able to service our debt, pay our obli

hat a bank may pay to a parent holding company. In addition, our right to

the liquidation or reorganization of a subsidiary may be subject to prior
e event the Bank is unable to pay dividends to the Company, we may not
rations or pay dividends on our common stock. The inability to receive
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dividends from the Bank could therefore have a material adverse effect on our business, our financial condition and
our results of operations.

If economic condifions decline further, our financial condition and results of operations could continue to be
adversely affected.

Our operating results are affected by national and local economic and competitive conditions, including changes
in market interest rates, the strength of the local economy, governmental policies of the communities in which we do
business and actions of regulatory authorities. A further decline in the local or national economy could continue to
adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations. Deterioration in economic conditions could result
in the following consequences, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows:

A decline in the demand for the products and services we offer,

An increase in nonperforming loans and loan charge-offs;

An increase in provisions for loan losses;

An increase in losses on real estate owned (acquired through foreclosure); and

A migration from low-yielding or noninterest bearing deposits to higher-yielding deposit products such as
time deposits.

Qur loan origination and purchase activity is highly concentrated in certain types of loans.

At December 31, 2007, $1.7 billion, or 52,2%, of our total loans consisted of multi-family residential,
commercial real estate, land and land development, commercial construction and business loans. These types of
loans generally expose a lender to a greater risk of non-payment and loss than one-to-four family residential
mortgage loans because repayment of such loans is dependent upon the successful operation of the property and the
income stream of the borrowers. Additionally, these types of loans typically involve larger loan balances to single
borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to one-to-four family residential mortgage loans. Also, many of
the Bank’s commercial borrowers have more than one loan outstanding. Consequently, an adverse development
with respect to one loan or one credit relationship may expose us to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to
an adverse development with respect to a one-to-four family residential mortgage loan.

At December 31, 2007, $513.6 million, or 15.4%, of our total loans consisted of residential construction loans.
Our portfolio of residential construction loans increased dramatically in 2004, 2005 and 2006 as a result of our
emphasis on loans with relatively higher yields, adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity. Risk of
loss on a residential construction loan is dependent largely upon the accuracy of the initial estimate of the property’s
value when completed compared to the projected cost (including interest) of construction and other assumptions,
including the approximate time to sell the property. Qur ability to continue to originate and/or purchase residential
construction loans may be impaired by adverse changes in local and regional economic conditions in the real estate
markets, or by acts of nature. Due to the concentration of real estate collateral, these events could have a material
adverse impact on the value of collateral, resulting in delinquencies and/or losses. Customer demand for loans
secured by real estate could be reduced by a weaker economy, an increase in unemployment, a decrease in real
estate values or an increase in interest rates.

Our concentration of loans in certain areas of Florida and the Las Vegas, Nevada area may expose us to
increased credit risk that may cause us to record additional provisions for loan losses and/or may result in future
loan charge-aoffs.

At December 31, 2007, $168.8 million, or 5.1%, of our total loans were collateralized by properties in the state
of Florida. Among our Florida loans, $31.8 million were considered nonperforming residential construction loans at
December 31, 2007. Approximately $26.5 million of our total nonperforming residential construction loans in
Florida were purchased from TransLand. During the three months ended December 31, 2007 we charged off $25.5
million of TransLand residential construction loans, due in large part to a permanent decline in the estimated fair
value of residential lots.
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At December 31, 2007, $247.3 million, or 7.4%, of our total loans were collateralized by properties in the state
of Nevada, primarily in the Las Vegas, Nevada area.  Our loans in the Las Vegas, Nevada area are primarily
composed of land development, commercial construction and residential construction loans. At December 31, 2007,
our nenperforming land development, comimercial construction and residential construction loans in the Las Vegas,
Nevada area totaled $30.4 million, $19.2 million and $7.6 million, respectively.

Qur results of operations are significantly affected by the fiscal and monetary policies of the federal government
and the governments of the states in which we operate.

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System. also known as the Federal Reserve Board, regulates the
supply of money and credit in the United States. Its policies determine in large part our cost of funds for lending
and investing and the return we earn on thlose loans and investments, both of which impact our net interest margin,
and can significantly affect the value of fi nancial instruments such as debt securities and mortgage servicing rights.

Its policies can also affect our borrowers
Changes in Federal Reserve Board policies

The amount of income taxes we are re

potentially increasing the risk that they may fail to repay their loans.
are beyond our control and difficult to predict or anticipate.

quired to pay on our earnings is based on federal and state legislation and

. . | . . :
regulations. We have provided for current and deferred income taxes in our financial statements, based on our

results of operations, business activity, and
strategies that may be subject to chailenge
share may be reduced if a federal, state or
in our consolidated financial statements.

interpretations of tax statutes. We may take filing positions or follow tax
by federal and state taxing authorities. Our net income and carnings per
ocal authority assessed charges for taxes that have not been provided for

If the interest payments on our interest-bearing liabilities increase relative to the interest we earn on our interest-
earning assets, our net interest income may decline.

When interest-bearing liabilitics mat
increase in market interest rates could ady
market interest rates could result in increas
fluctuations, however, changes in market
adverse impact on our financial condition 1

Prevailing interest rates may significa
to which borrowers repay and refinance
mortgage-backed securities, may increase

pre or reprice more quickly than interest-earning assets. a significant
ersely affect net interest income. Conversely, a significant decrease in
sed net interest income. We seek to manage our exposure to interest rate
interest rates are neither predictable nor controllable and may have an
nd results of operations.

ntly affect the overall demand for loans and could also impact the extent
oans. Loan prepayments and refinancings, as well as prepayments of
in a declining interest rate envirenment, Call provisions associated with

our investment in U.S. government securiLies and agency obligations and corporate securities may also negatively

impact net interest income in a declining i
activity may negatively impact the yiel

terest rate environment. Such prepayment, refinancing and security call
of our lean portfolio and investment and mortgage-backed security

portfolios, as we would reinvest the prepaigl funds in a lower interest rate environment. Additionally, adjustable-rate
mortgage loans and mortgage-backed qec,}]rmes generally contain interim and lifetime caps that limit the amount
interest rates can increase or decrease at repricing dates.

In a decreasing interest rate environment, our level of core deposits may decline if our depositors seek higher-
yielding instruments or other investment products we are unwilling to offer. This may increase our cust of funds
and decrease our net interest margin to the extent that alternative funding sources arc utilized to fund our business
activities. In an increasing interest rate er{wronmem depositors tend to prefer higher-yielding time deposits which
could adversely affect our net interest income if rates were to subsequently decline.

Potential future loan losses may increase.

We maintain an allowance for loan losses that represents management’s best estimate of probable losses within
our existing loan portfolio. The level of tﬂe allowance for loan losses reflects management’s continuing evaluation
of industry concentrations, specific C!‘Cdllt risks, loan loss experience, current loan portfolio quality, present
economic, political and regulatory condmons and unidentified losses inherent in the current loan portfolio. Over the
past several years, historical loan losses had been tow and our loan loss ratios had performed better than industry
averages. During 2007, our levels of delj nquent loans, nonperforming loans (loans 90 or more days delinquent),
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impaired loans and charge-offs increased significantly. These increases were primarily attributable to the continued
deterioration in the real estate market and the economy in general. We have been further impacted by the erosion of
property values and an overall increase in housing inventory (both developed lots and completed houses) in many of
the areas of the country in which we do business and where the collateral for our loans reside. Additionally,
significantly tightened credit standards have made it more difficult for potential borrowers to obtain financing and
for current borrowers to refinance existing loans. Loan losses related to residential construction loans increased
during the year ended December 31, 2007. If the recent trend is prolonged and losses continue to increase, our
results of operations will continue to be negatively impacted.

Our allowance for loan losses may be inadequate.

An inadequate allowance for loan losses could adversely affect our results of operations. We are exposed to the
risk that our customers may be unable to repay their loans according to their terms and that any collateral securing
the payment of their loans may not be sufficient to assure full repayment. We evaluate the collectibility of our loan
portfolio and provide for an allowance for loan losses which is based on our historical loan loss experience for each
group of loans as further adjusted for specific factors.

If our evaluation is incorrect, our allowance for loan losses may not be sufficient to cover losses inherent in the
loan portfolio, resulting in additions to our allowance for loan losses. Increases in the allowance for loan losses
result in an expense for the period. If, as a result of general economic conditions or a decrease in asset quality,
management determines that additional increases in the allowance for loan losses are warranted, we may incur
additional expenses. We can make no assurances that our allowance for loan losses will be adequate to cover loan
losses inherent in our portfolio.

Our loans are primarily secured by real estate, including regional concentrations of loans in areas of the United
States that are susceptible to tornados, earthquakes, hurricanes or other natural disasters. If a natural disaster were to
occur in one of our major market areas, loan losses could occur that are not incorporated in the existing allowance
for loan losses.

We could be held responsible for environmental liabilities of properties acquired through foreclosure.

If we are forced to foreclose on a defaulted mortgage loan to recover our investment, we may be subject to
environmental liabilities related to the underlying real property. Hazardous substances or wastes, contaminants,
pollutants or sources thereof may be discovered on properties under our ownership or after a sale to a third party.
The amount of environmental liability could exceed the value of the real property. There can be no assurance that
we would not be fully liable for the entire cost of any removal, remediation or other clean-up on the acquired
property, that the cost of removal and clean-up would not exceed the value of the property or that costs could be
recovered from any third party. Additionally, it may be difficult or impossible to sell the property prior to or
following any environmental remediation.

Our cost of funds may increase as a result of general economic conditions, interest rates or competitive pressures.

Our cost of funds may increase because of general economic conditions, unfavorable conditions in capital
markets, interest rates and competitive pressures. We have traditionally obtained funds primarily through deposits
and borrowings. Generally, deposits are a preferable source of funds than borrowings because interest rates paid for
deposits are typically less than interest rates charged for borrowings. [f deposit growth is inadequate to fund our
operations we may have to rely on borrowings as a source of funds. Relying on borrowings as a primary funding
source may have an adverse impact on our net interest margin.

Competition could result in our loan portfolios and deposit base declining.

The banking and financial services businesses in our market areas are highly competitive. Our market area has
a high density of financial institutions, some of which have greater financial resources, name recognition and market
presence than us, and all of which are our competitors. Competition within the banking, mortgage and finance
industries may limit our ability to attract and retain customers. Qur competition for loans comes primarily from
commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations, mortgage banking companies, insurance
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companies, finance companics and credit

bnions. Our most direct competition for deposits historically has come

from commercial banks, savings banks, savings and loan associations and credit unions. In addition, we face

competition for deposits from products
intermediaries, such as money market and

nffered by brokerage firms, insurance companies and other financial
other mutual funds and annuities. If we are unable to aitract and retain

customers, our loan and deposit growth may be inhibited which could have an adverse impact on our financial

condition and results of operations.

Legislative and regulatory Issues could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

We are subjecl to extensive regulati
regulator, and by the FDIC, which insures

on, supervision and examination by the OTS as our primary federal
our deposits. As a member of the FHLBank. we must also comply with

applicable regulations of the Federal Houging Finance Board and the FHLBank. Regulation by these agencies is
intended primarily for the protection of our, depositors and the Deposit Insurance Fund and not for the benefit of our
stockholders. Our activitics are also regulated under consumer protections laws applicable to our lending, deposit

and other activities. A sufficient claim a
financial condition and results of operation

We may not be able to retain or replace
relationship managers.

painst us under these laws could have a material adverse affect on our

5

key members of management or attract and retain qualified customer

We depend on the services of existing management personnel to carry out our business and investment
strategies. It is critical that we are able to attract and retain management and other qualified personnel. Competition
for qualified personnel is significant in our geographical market areas. The loss of services of any management
personnel, or the inability to recruit and retain qualified personnel in the future, could have an adverse effect on our

financial condition and results of operation

We rely on communications, information, operating and financial control systems technology from third-party

service providers. An interruption in thes

‘ third-party systems could have an adverse effect on our business.

We rely heavily on third-party servicg providers for much of our communications, information, operating and
financial control systems technology. Any|failure, interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in
failures or interruptions in our customer relationship management, general ledger, deposit, loan servicing and loan
origination systems. We can make no assurances that such failures or interruptions will not occur or, if they do
occur, that they will be adequately addressed by us or the third parties on which we rely. Any failure or interruption
could have a material adverse effect on OPI' business, financial condition and results of operations. If any of our
third-party service providers experience fipancial, operational or technological difficulties, or if there is any other

disruption in our relationships with them,

¢ may be required to locate alternative sources of such services. We can

make no assurances that we could negotitle terms that are favorable to us, or could obtain comparable services

without the need to expend substantial reso

Our stock price can be volatile.

TCES.

Our stock price can fluctuate in response to a variety of factors, including issues related to the consummation of

the Merger with CapitalSource and the

apitalSource stock price; actual or anticipated variations in quarterly

operating resulis; changes in our stockholder dividend policy: recommendations of securities analysts; and news

media reports relating to trends, concerns &
influence our stock price include produ

nd other issues in the financial services industry. Other factors that may
ts or services offered by our competitors; operating and stock price

. I ;
performance of other companies that mvelstors or analysts deem comparable to us; and changes in governmental

regulations.

General market fluctuations, industry factors and general economic conditions and political conditions and
events, such as future terrorist activities, economic slowdowns or recessions, interest rate changes or credit loss

trends, also could cause our stock price to d

Jecline regardiess of our operating results.




If we fail to maintain effective systems of internal and disclosure control, we may not be able to accurately report
our financial results or prevent fraud.

Effective internal and disclosure controls are necessary for us to provide reliable financial reports, to effectively
prevent fraud and to operate successfully as a public company. If we were unable to provide accurate and reliable
financial reports or prevent fraud, our reputation and results of operations would be adversely effected. As part of
our ongoing monitoring of internal controls, we may discover material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in our
internal controls as defined under standards adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(“PCAOB”) that require remediation. Under PCAOB standards. a “material weakness” is a deficiency, or
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that there is a reasonable possibility
that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a
timely basis. A “significant deficiency” is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
financial reporting that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those
responsible for oversight of the company’s financial reporting..

Any failure to maintain effective internal and disclosure controls, or to make necessary improvements in such
controls in a timely manner, could harm operating results or cause us to fail in meeting our financial reporting
obligations. Such a failure could have an impact on our ability to remain listed on the NASDAQ Global Select
Market. Ineffective internal and disclosure controls could also cause investors to lose confidence in our reported
financial information, which would likely have a negative effect on our stock price.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
Not applicable.
Item 2. Properties

We currently operate 69 banking offices in Nebraska (59), lowa (9) and Kansas (1) of which 51 are owned by
us and 18 are under operating leases. Additionally, we operate three loan production offices located in Colorado,
two loan production offices located in North Carolina and one loan production office in each of Arizona, Florida,
Minnesota and Nevada all of which are under operating leases. We own our corporate headquarters located in
Lincoln, Nebraska.,

For further information regarding our properties, see “Note 20 - Lease Commitments” included in Item 8.
Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, in Part II of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.,

Itemn 3. Legal Proceedings

Except for litigation relating to certain goodwill claims against the United States (“U.S.”) and a court action
filed by the Bank and two other financial institutions against a Florida-based mortgage broker, both of which are
described below, we are not involved in any pending legal proceedings other than routine legal proceedings
occurring in the ordinary course of business. Such routine legal proceedings, in the aggregate, are believed by
management to be immaterial to our consolidated financial statements.

On October 31, 2006, the U.S. Court of Federal Claims (*Federal Claims Court”) issued an opinion finding the
U.S. liable to the Bank for lost franchise value related to our damages claim against the U.S. for breach of contract
following changes to the rules for computing our regulatory capital that were required by the adoption of the
Financial [nstitution Reform Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989. The Federal Claims Court’s opinion awarding
the Bank $4.5 million in damages was appealed to the United States Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit
(“Court of Appeals”) by the U.S. on December 29, 2006. The Bank subsequently filed a cross-appeal seeking
review of earlier liability rulings which absolved the U.S. of liability in connection with two other related merger
transactions and reduced the amount of the Bank’s potential recovery.

Oral argument of the appeal was heard before a three-judge panel of the Court of Appeals on November 8,

2007. On March 5, 2008, the Court of Appeals panel rendered a split decision. The majority found in favor of the
U.S. thereby reversing the Federal Claims Court’s damage award and denying the cross-appeal. A separate
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dissenting opinion would have sustained
evaluating our legal options and have no
There can be no assurance as to the type o

he Federal Claim Court’s damage award for the Bank. We are currently
made a determination as to what, if any, further actions will be taken.
T amount of damages, if any, that we may recover or the timing, if we are

successful, for receipt by us of any damagf%s from the U.S.

A joint petition for involuntary Cha

pter 11 bankruptcy was filed on August 23, 2007 in the United States

Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Florida by the Bank and two other financial institutions against
TransLand Financial Services, Inc. (“TrarlsLand”). a mortgage brokerage firm headquartered in Maitland, Florida.
The petition cites TransLand for alleged failure to remit loan payoffs and periodic payments to the Bank involving
approximately $12.9 million of residenti?] loans. On October 8, 2007 a court-appointed examiner furnished a
detailed report documenting the alleged fraudulent activity. The Bank has notified its insurance carrier of a claim

against a bond insuring the Bank for up
believes that it is probable it will collect th

to $7.5 million against fraudulent losses by loan servicers. The Bank
e proceeds on the insurance bond.

Pursuant to an Inter-Creditor Selllemfl,nt Agreement dated November 25, 2007, the petitioning banks agreed to
dismiss the involuntary Chapter 11 bankyuptcy petiticn that had been filed against TransLand in return for the

agreement by TransLand and certain of 1
TransLand’s remaining assets. The Bank

such liquidation. Oo December 4, 2007
involuntary bankruptcy. The liquidation o

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vot
On November 29, 2007, the Com

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated M
CapitalSource TRS Inc. Following is a su

Proposal

A

ts principal creditors to proceed with the ltquidation and distribution of
vill receive a proportionate share of the net proceeds, if any, realized from
the Bankruptcy Court entered an order approving the dismissal of the
[ TransLand’s assets is currently in process.

of Security Holders
ny held a special meeting of stockholders to obtain approval for the
y 17, 2007, by and among TierOne Corporation, CapitalSource Inc. and

mmary of the result of the vote.

Number of Votes

For Against  Abstain

To approve Merger Agreement and Plan

f Merger 10,216,926 5457113 42,082
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PART II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities

Common Stock Price Summary. Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ Global Select Market under the
symbol “TONE.” As of December 31, 2007, we had 1,454 stockholders of record, which does not include those
persons or entities holding stock in nominee or “street” name through brokerage firms or others. The following
table shows the high and low bid prices of our common stock during the periods indicated as well as the period end
closing sales price and the dividend paid each quarter.

2007 2006
High Low Close  Dividend High Low Close Dividend
First Quarter $3204 $2488 $2704 $ 0.07 $3400 $2760 $3395 § 006
Second Quarter 32.98 24.01 30.1¢ 0.08 35.58 30.69 3377 0.07
Third Quarter 30.57 18.62 26.47 0.08 34.88 31.25 33.93 0.07
Fourth Quarter 28.16 18.62 22.15 0.08 34.12 30.36 31.61 0.07

Common Stock Repurchase Activity. The following table details our purchases of common stock during the
three months ended December 31, 2007:

Total Number of  Maximum Number

Total Shares Purchased as of Shares that May
Number Average Part of Publicly Yet Be Purchased
of Shares Price Paid  Announced Plans or  Under Plans or
Purchased Per Share Programs * Programs
October 2007
Beginning Date - October 1, 2007
Ending Date - October 31, 2007 942 § 23.44 942 1,519,006
November 2007
Beginning Date - November 1, 2007
Ending Date - November 30, 2007 - - - 1,519,006
December 2007
Beginning Date - December 1, 2007
Ending Date - December 31, 2007 314 23.45 314 1,518,692
Total shares purchased during the
three months ended December 31, 2007 1256 § 23.44 1,256 1,518,692

* Information related to our publicly announced plan authorizing purchases of common stock during the three
months ended December 31, 2007, is as follows:

Date Purchase Number of Shares
Plan Announced  Approved for Purchase Expiration Date of Purchase Plan

July 27, 2004 1,828,581 No stated expiration date
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Performance Graph. The following

raph represents $100.00 invested in our common stock at the closing price
The graph

o
of the common stock on December S’ﬁ, 2002, and assumes the reinvestment of all dividends.

demonstrates comparison of the cumulatiye total returns for the common stock of TierOne Corporation, the Russell

2000 Index and the SNL Securities $1B -

The following information in this Ite

$5B Thrift Index for the periods indicated.

m 5 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K is not deemed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or 14C under the Securities Act of 1934 or to
the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and will not be deemed to be incorporated by
reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the
extent the Company specifically incorpor%

tes it by reference into such a filing.

TierOne Corporation

Total Return Performance
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—&— SNL Thrift $1B-$5B Index
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»
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E
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‘ 75 - ! !
12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31/06 12/31/07 |
Period Ending
Index 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 12/31/05 12/31 D§ 12/31/0
TierOne Corporation 100.00 151.45 165.40 197.43 213.97 151.76
Russell 2000 100.00 147.25 174.24 182.18 21564 212.26
SNL Thrift $1B-$5B Index 100.00 149,99 169.98 168.49 193.79 151.17

Source: SNL Financial LC, Charlott

esville, VA © 2007
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

At or For the Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Selected Statement of Income Data:
Total interest income $ 234021 $ 223887 $ 177343 $ 124980 $ 110,820
Taotal interest expense 117,901 98,019 72,428 47,769 40,871

Net interest income 116,120 125,868 104,915 77,211 69,949
Provision for loan losses 68,101 6,053 6,436 4,887 4,271

Net interest income afier provision

for loan losses 48,019 119,815 98,479 72,324 65,678

Total noninterest income 30,337 29,084 26,585 23,905 19,859
Total noninterest expense 95,057 81,769 72,450 58,212 47,520

Income (loss) before income taxes (16,701) 67,130 52,614 38,017 38,017
Income tax expense (benefit) {4,276) 25,815 19,782 14,152 14,202

Net income (loss) $ (12,425) $ 41,315 % 32,832 % 23,865 % 23,815
Net income (loss) per common share, basic $ 074y % 250 % 202 % 1.42  $ 1.18
Net income (loss) per common share, diluted $ 074y $ 241 % 197 % 1.39 % 1.16
Dividends declared per common share 3 031 % 027 $ 023 $ 020 % -
Selected Financial Condition Data:
Total assets $ 3,537,766 $ 3431,169 § 3222275 $ 3048080 § 2207868
Cash and cash equivalents 241,461 86,808 88,034 70,030 34,901
Investment securities 130,551 105,090 102,725 127,883 43,657
Mortgage-backed securities 6,689 12,272 19,752 36,175 15,712
Net loans after allowance for loan losses 2,909,589 3.017.031 2,813,800 2,628,155 2,016,596
Deposits 2,430,544 2,052,343 2,038,319 1,864,761 1,216,763
FHI.Bank Topeka advances and

other borrowings 689,288 962,376 814,924 841,666 645,696
Stockholders' equity 345,590 353,283 308,867 277,023 205,089
Selected Operating Ratios:
Average yield on interest-earning assets 7.21% 7.24% 6.05% 5.33% 5.51%
Average rate on interest-bearing liabilities 4.06% 3.52% 2.72% 231% 2.46%
Average interest rate spread (1) 3.15% 3.72% 3.33% 3.02% 3.05%
Net interest margin (1) 3.58% 4.07% 3.58% 3.29% 3.48%
Average interest-earning assets to

average interest-bearing liabilities 111.80% 110.95% 110.10% 113.29% 120.94%
Net interest income after provision for

loan losses to noninterest expense 50.52% 146.53% 135.93% 124.24% 138.21%
Total noninterest expense to average assets {2) 2.74% 2.48% 2.31% 2.35% 2.26%
Efficiency ratio (2)(3) 63.78% 51.64% 53.70% 56.95% 52.91%
Return on average assets (2) -0.36% 1.25% 1.05% 0.96% 1.13%
Return on average equity (2) -3.39% 12.48% 11.28% 8.53% 7.04%
Average equity to average assets (2) 10.56% 10.04% 9.29% 11.29% 16.11%
Return on tangible equity (2)(4) -3.89% 14.59% 13.58% 9.08% 7.04%

(1} Excluding the receipt of a $2.7 million loan prepayment fee, our average interest rate spread and net interest margin would
have been 3.63% and 3.99%, respectively, for the year ended December 31, 2006.

(2) Employee stock options were expensed beginning January 1, 2006.

(3) Efficiency ratio is calculated as total noninterest expense, less amortization expense of other intangible assets, as a percentage

of the sum of net interest income and noninterest income.

(4) Return on tangible equity is calculated as annualized net income (loss) as a percentage of average stockholders’ equity

adjusted for goodwill and other intangible assets.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

Introduction

We are a Nebraska-based financial 'services holding company that offers customers a wide variety of full-
service consumer, commercial and agricuitural banking products and services through TierOne Bank, our wholly
owned banking subsidiary. TierOne Batk’s franchise network includes 69 banking offices located in Nebraska,
lowa and Kansas and nine loan production offices located in Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and
North Carolina.

As a regional community bank, our goal is to provide our customers competitive financial services through a
positive, quality service environment that{ distinguishes us from our competition. This is achieved by our strategic
focus on our core businesses of mortgage [and business lending and retail banking that has contributed to the Bank’s
history of growth. At December 31, 2007, the Company had total assets of $3.5 billion, net loan receivables of $3.0
billion, total deposits of $2.4 billion and stockholders equity of $345.6 million.

The following is a discussion and analysis of the Company’s financial condition and results of operations
including information on the Company’% critical accounting policies, asset/liability management, liquidity and
capital resources and contractuai obligatigns. Information contained in this Management’s Discussion and Analysis
should be read in conjunction with the disclosure regarding “Safe Harbor Statement under the Private Securities
Litigation Reform Act of 1995,” as well as the discussion set forth in “Item 1A. Risk Factors” and “Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data.”

Critical Accounting Policies

See “Note | — Summary of Signific

unt Accounting Policies” included in Item 8. Financial Statements and

Supplementary Data, in Part 11 of this Agnual Report on Form 10-K for a summary of our significant accounting

policies. Various elements of our accou
valuation assumptions and other subjecti
recognize income, determine the allowan
for impairment, evaluating goodwill and

nting policies, by nature, are inherently subject to estimation techniques,
ve assessments. Our policies with respect to the methodologies used to
ce for loan losses. evaluating investment and mortgage-backed securities
other intangible assets, valuation of mortgage servicing rights, valuation

and measurement of derivatives and commitments, valuation of real estate owned and estimating income taxes are

our most critical accounting policics beca

results of operations, involve a higher

subjective judgments which often requirg

different judgments, assumptions and est
results of operations.

Income Recognition.

We recognize interest income by methods that conform to GAAP.

use they are important to the presentation of our financial condition and
degree of complexity and require management to make «ifficult and
= assumptions or estimates about highly uncertain matters. The use of
mates could result in material differences in our financial condition and

In the event

management believes collection of all or‘ a portion of contractual interest on a loan has become doubtful, which
generally occurs after a loan is contractually delinquent 90 days or more, we discontinue the accrual of interest and
charge-off all previously accrued interest] [nterest received on nonperforming loans is included in income only if

principal recovery is reasonably assured.
current and the collectibility of the total ca

Allowance for Loan Losses. We ha
where amounts are subject to material

A nonperforming loan is restored to accrual status when it is brought
ntractual principal and interest is no longer in doubt.

ve identified the allowance for loan losses as a critical accounting policy
variation. This policy is significantly affected by our judgment and

uncertainties and there is a likelihood that materially different amounts could be reported under different, but
reasonably plausible, conditions or assumptions. The allowance for loan losses is considered a critical accounting

estimate because there is a large degree of|

Assigning individual loans
loss);
Valuing the underlying colla

Determining the appropriate

Judgment in:
o specific risk levels (pass, special mention, substandard, doubtful and

eral securing the loans:
reserve factor to be applied to specific risk levels for special mention

loans and those adversely clalssiﬁed (substandard, doubtful and loss): and
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s Determining reserve factors to be applied to pass loans based upon loan type.

We establish provisions for loan losses, which are charges to our operating results, in order to maintain a level
of total allowance for loan losses that, in management’s belief, covers all known and inherent losses that are both
probable and reasonably estimable at each reporting date. Management reviews the loan portfolio no less frequently
than quarterly in order to identify those inherent losses and to assess the overall collection probability of the loan
portfolio. Management’s review includes a quantitative analysis by loan category, using historical loss experience,
classifying loans pursuant to a grading system and consideration of a series of qualitative loss factors. This
evaluation is inherently subjective, as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more
information becomes available or as future events occur.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements. The first element is an allocated allowance established
for specific loans identified by the credit review function that are evaluated individually for impairment and are
considered to be impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is
probable that we will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to
the contractual terms of the loan agreement. Impairment is measured by:

s The fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral dependent;
o The present value of expected future cash flows; or
s  The loan’s observable market price.

The second element is an estimated allowance established for losses that are probable and reasonable to
estimate on each category of outstanding loans. While management uses available information to recognize
probable losses on loans inherent in the portfolio, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on
changes in economic conditions and other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of
their examination process, periodically review our allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require us to
recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their
examunation.

Investment Securities. We evaluate our available for sale and held to maturity investment securities for
impairment on a quarterly basis. An impairment charge in the Consolidated Statements of Income is recognized
when the decline in the fair value of investment securities below their cost basis is judged to be other-than-
temporary. Various factors are utilized in determining whether we should recognize an impairment charge,
including, but not limited to, the length of time and extent to which the fair value has been less than its cost basis
and our ability and intent to hold the investment security for a period of time sufficient to aliow for any anticipated
recovery in fair value.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill represents the excess price paid over the fair value of the
tangible and intangible assets and liabilities acquired in connection with the August 27, 2004 acquisition of United
Nebraska Financial Co. (“UNFC”). There was no goodwill recorded in connection with our Marine Bank branch
purchase on June 2, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangible balances are not being amortized, but are tested for impairment annually in accordance
with the provisions of SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142 also requires intangible assets with estimated useful lives to
be amortized over their respective estimated useful lives to their residual values, and reviewed for impairment in
accordance with SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assels.

Our policy is to evaluate annually the carrying value of our reporting unit goodwill and identifiable assets not
subject to amortization. Goodwill was established in connection with the UNFC acquisition.

We have identified a single reporting unit for purposes of goodwill impairment testing. The impairment test is
therefore performed on a consolidated basis. We perform our goodwill impairment analysis on an annual basis
during the third quarter. Additional impairment analysis may be performed if circumstances or events occur which
may have an impact on the fair value of our goodwill. Potential impairment is indicated when the carrying value of
the entity, including goodwill, exceeds its fair value. If potential for impairment exists, the fair value of the entity is
subsequently measured against the fair value of its underlying assets and liabilities, excluding goodwill, to estimate
an implied fair value of the entity’s goodwill. Impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying value of
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the entity’s goodwill over the implied fair value. We performed our impairment analysis as of September 30, 2007
and concluded that no potential impairnllent of goodwill existed as the fair value of our goodwill exceeded its
carrying value. Additionally, we performed our impairment analysis as of December 31, 2007 due to the decline in
our stock price and prevailing economic cpnditions and concluded that no potential impairment existed.

The value of core deposit intangible assets acquired in connection with the UNFC and Marine Bank
transactions, which is subject to amortization, is included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as
other intangible assets. Determining the|amount of identifiable intangible assets and their average lives involves
multiple assumptions and estimates and |is typically determined by performing a discounted cash flow analysis,
which involves a combination of any or all of the following assumptions: customer attrition, account runoff,
alternative funding costs, deposit servicijg costs and discount rates. Core deposit intangible assets are amortized
using an accelerated method of amortiz
cther operating expense.

tion which is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as

We review our core deposit intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that we may not recover our investment in the underlying assets or liabilities which gave rise to the

identifiable intangible assets. For the yea:rs ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, no events or circumstances

triggered an impairment charge against our core deposit intangible assets.

Mortgage Servicing Rights. On Ja
Financial Assets — an Amendment of FAS
156, we have elected to continue to utiliz
thus, carrying our mortgage servicing rig
method, we amortize mortgage servicing
Income generated as a result of new sery
Consolidated Statements of Operations.
recorded in fees and service charges in the

nuary 1, 2007 we adopted SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of
B Statement No. 140 (“SFAS No. 156”). In accordance with SFAS No.
e the amortization method for all of cur mortgage servicing right assets,
hts at the “lower of cost or market” (fair value}). Under the amortization
y rights in proportion to and over the period of net servicing income.
icing assets is reported as net gain on sale of loans held for sale in the
Loan servicing fees, net of amortization of mortgage servicing rights, is
Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We capitalize the estimated value of mortgage servicing rights upon the sale of loans. The estimated value

takes into consideration contractually kno
are impacted by loan prepayment speeds,

wn amounts, such as loan balance, term and interest rate. These estimates
servicing costs and discount rates used to compute a present value of the

cash flow stream. We evaluate the fair value of mortgage servicing rights on a quarterly basis using current
prepayment speed, cash flow and discount rate estimates. Changes in these estimates impact fair value and could
require us to record a valuation allowance or recovery. The fair value of mortgage servicing rights is highly
sensitive to changes in assumptions. Chaﬂges in prepayment speed assumptions have the most significant impact on
the fair value of mortgage servicing rights. Generally, as interest rates decline, prepayments accelerate with
increased refinance activity, which results in a decrease in the fair value of mortgage servicing rights. As interest
rates rise, prepayments generally slow, which results in an increase in the fair value of mortgage servicing rights.
Al assumptions are reviewed for reasonableness on a quarterly basis and adjusted as necessary to reflecy current and
anticipated market conditions. Thus, any measurement of fair value is limited by the conditions existing and the
assumptions utilized as of a particular point in time, and those assumptions may not be appropriate if applied at a
different point in time, We currently do hot utilize direct financial hedges to mitigate the effect of changes in the
fair value of our mortgage servicing rights

Derivatives and Commitments. We account for our derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS
No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instr \ments and Hedging Activity, as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting
Jor Certain Derivative Instruments and Cdrtain Hedging Activities and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement No.
133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.

In the normal course of business, we knter into contractual commitments, including loan commitments and rate
lock commitments, to extend credit to finance residential mortgages. These commitments, which contain fixed
expiration dates, offer the borrower an interest rate guarantee provided the loan meets underwriting guidelines and
closes within the time frame established by us. Interest rate risk arises on these commitments and subsequently
closed loans if interest rates increase or decrease between the time of the interest rate lock and the delivery of the

loan to the investor. Loan commitments
derivatives in accordance with the guidan

related to mortgage loans that are intended to be sold ara considered
re of SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 105, Application of Accounting
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Principles to Loan Commitments. Accordingly, the fair value of these derivatives at the end of the reporting period
is based on a quoted market price that closely approximates the amount that would have been recognized if the loan
commitment was funded and sold.

To mitigate the effect of interest rate risk inherent in providing loan commitments, we hedge our commitments
by entering into mandatory or best efforts delivery forward sale contracts. These forward contracts are marked-to-
market through earnings and are not designated as accounting hedges under SFAS No. 133. The change in the fair
value of loan commitments and the change in the fair value of forward sales contracts generally move in opposite
directions and, accordingly, the impact of changes in these valuations on net income during the loan commitment
period is generally inconsequential.

Although the forward loan sale contracts also serve as an economic hedge of loans held for sale, forward
contracts have not been designated as accounting hedges under SFAS No. 133 and, accordingly, loans held for sale
are accounted for at the lower of cost or market in accordance with SFAS No. 65, Accounting for Certain Mortgage
Banking Activities.

Real Estate Owned. Property and other assets acquired through foreclosure of defaulted mortgage or other
collateralized loans are carried at the lower of cost or fair value, less estimated costs to sell the property and other
assets. The fair value of real estate owned is generally determined from appraisals obtained by independent
appraisers. Development and improvement costs relating to such property are capitalized to the extent they are
deemed to be recoverable.

An allowance for losses on real estate and other assets owned is designed to include amounts for estimated
losses as a result of impairment in value of real property after repossession. We review our real estate owned for
impairment in value whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the property or other assets
may not be recoverable.

Income Taxes. We estimate income taxes payable based on the amount we expect to owe various tax
authorities. Accrued income taxes represent the met estimated amount due to, or (o be received from, taxing
authorities. In estimating accrued income taxes, we assess the relative merits and risks of the appropriate tax
treatment of transactions, taking into account the applicable statutory, judicial and regulatory guidance in the context
of our tax position. Although we utilize current information to record income taxes, underlying assumptions may
change over time as a result of unanticipated events or circumstances.

We utilize estimates of future earnings to support our position that the benefit of our deferred tax assets will be
realized. 1f future pre-tax income should prove nonexistent or less than the amount of temporary differences giving
rise to the net deferred tax assets within the tax years to which they may be applied, the assets will not be realized
and our financial results will be adversely affected.

In June 2006, the FASB issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an
Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 requires that we determine whether a tax position is
more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation
processes, based on the technical merits of the position. Once it is determined that a position meets the recognition
threshold, the position is measured to determine the amount of benefit to be recognized in the financial statements.
Any interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recorded in income tax expense in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.
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Comparison of Financial Condition at December 31, 2007 and 2006

General, Our total assets were $3.3 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of $106.6 million, or 3.1%,
compared to $3.4 billion at December 31, 2006.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Our cash and cash equivalents totaled $241.5 million at December 31, 2007, an
increase of $154.7 million, or 178.2%, [compared to $86.8 million at December 31, 2006. The increase was
primarily attributable to an increase in deposits and a decrease in net loans partially offset by the repayment of
FHI.Bank advances and other borrowings

Investment Securifies. Qur available for sale investment securities totaled $130.5 million at December 31,
2007, an increase of $25.5 million, or 2413%, compared to $105.0 million at December 31, 2006. During the year
ended December 31, 2007 we had security purchases of $318.4 million which were partially offset by $295.8
million in proceeds from maturing and sold investment securities. The securities purchased during 2007 were
primarily agency obligations that were purchased to collateralize deposits.

Mortgage-Backed Securities. Our mortgage-backed securities, all of which are recorded as available for sale,
totaled $6.7 million at December 31, 2007, a decrease of $5.6 million, or 45.5%, compared to $12.3 million at
December 31, 2006. The decrease in our mortgage-backed securities was the result of $5.6 million of principal
payments received during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Loans Receivable. Net loans totaled|$3.0 billion at December 31, 2007, a decrease of $74.0 million, or 2.4%,
compared to $3.1 billion at December 31, 2006. During the year ended December 31, 2007, we originated $1.6
billion of loans (exclusive of warehouse mortgage lines of credit) and purchased $411.4 million of loans. These
increases were offset by $2.0 billion of prkncipal repayiments (exclusive of warehouse mortgage lines of credit) and

$344.0 million of loan sales. The following table details the composition of our loan portfolio at the dates indicated:
At December 31,
Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 (Decrease) % Change
One-to-four family residential {1) $ 314623 % 330080 $ (24457 - {7.21) %
Second mortgage residential 95,477 120,510 (25,033) (20.77)
Multi-family residential 106,678 148,922 (42,244) (28.37)
Commercial real estate 370,910 396,620 (25,710) (6.48)
Land and land development 473,346 494 887 (21,541) (4.35)
Residential construction 513,560 780,991 (267,431) (34.24)
Commercial construction 540,797 491,997 48,800 9.92
Agriculture - real estate 91,068 68,459 22,609 33.03
Business 2527712 220,669 32,043 14.52
Agricuiture - operating 100,365 94,455 5,910 6.26
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 86,081 112,645 (26,564) (23.58)
Consumer 397,247 413,000 (15,753) (3.8D)
Total loans 3,342,864 3,682,235 (339,371) (9.22)
Unamortized premiums, discounts
and deferred loan fees 9451 5,602 3,849 68.71
Loans in process (2):
Land and land development (84,765) {122,640} 37,875 (30.88)
Residential construction (139,514) (283,394) 143,880 (50.77)
Commercial construction (151,907) (231,643) 79,736 (34.42)
Net loans 2,976,129 % 3,050,160 $ (74,031) (2.43) %
{1) Includes loans held for sale i) 9348 § 19285 $ (9.937) (5153 %
(2) Loans in process represents the undisbprsed portion of construction and land development loans.
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At December 31, 2007, the outstanding balance (net of loans in process) of our residential construction loans
was $374.0 million, a decrease of $123.6 millicn, or 24.8%, compared to $497.6 million at December 31, 2006. The
outstanding balance (net of loans in process) of our commercial construction loans was $388.9 miilion at December
31, 2007, an increase of $128.5 million, or 49.4%, compared to $260.4 million at December 31, 2006, The
outstanding balance of cur land and land development loans was $388.6 million at December 31, 2007, an increase
of $16.3 million, or 4.4%, compared to $372.2 million at December 31, 2006.

The decrease in net loans at December 31, 2007 was primarily attributable to a decrease in loan originations and
purchases, loan payoffs and periodic payments on loans. The decrease in the level of loan originations and
purchases was primarily attributable to a decrease in demand resulting from the continued deterioration in the real
estate market and the economy in general. We have taken a number of steps related to the realignment of certain
credit administration functions, including the addition of personnel with extensive depth and expertise in credit
analysis, and we continue to tighten credit policies.

We maintain a corporate policy of not participating in subprime residential real estate lending or negative
amortizing mortgage products, The Office of Thrift Supervision, our federal regulatory agency, defines subprime
loans as loans to borrowers displaying one or more credit risk characteristics including lending to a borrower with a
credit bureau risk score (FICO) of 660 or below. Furthermore, we have not participated in collateralized loan
obligations (CLO), collateralized debt obligations (CDO), structured investment vehicles (SIV) or asset-backed
commercial paper (ABCP).

Allowance for Loan Losses. Our allowance for loan losses increased $33.4 million, or 100.9%, to $66.5
million at December 31, 2007 compared to $33.1 million at December 31, 2006. During the year ended December
31, 2007 we recorded provisions for loan losses totaling $68. 1 million and had net charge-offs of $32.0 million. Our
allowance for loan losses as a percentage of nonperforming loans was 51.79% at December 31, 2007 compared to
110.25% at December 31, 2006, Our ratio of the allowance for loan losses to net loans was 2.24% and 1.09% at
December 31, 2007 and 2000, respectively. The following table details our nonperforming and impaired loans for
the periods presented:

Nonperforming Loans Impaired Loans
At December 31, At December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 $ Change 2007 2006 $ Change
One-to-four family residential $ 7029 % 1611 $ 5418 % - % - % -
Second mortgage residential 487 234 253 50 4 46
Multi-family residential 603 1,152 (549) 603 - 603
Commercial real estate 590 324 266 482 99 383
Land and land development 38,708 4.696 34.012 51,120 - 51,120
Residential construction 57,709 18,074 39,635 51,885 459 51,426
Commercial construction 19,184 - 19,184 19,184 - 19,184
Agriculture - real estate 159 50 109 - - -
Business 1,268 2,280 (1,012) 765 2,048 (1,283)
Agriculture - operating 134 139 (5) 24 65 (41)
Consumer 2,619 1,490 1,129 1,833 1,116 717

Total $ 128400 $ 30,050 § 98440 $ 125946  $ 3,791 $ 122,155

The increase in our allowance for loan losses was primarily attributable to an increase in delinquent,
nonperforming and impaired loans. During 2007, our levels of delinquent loans, nonperforming loans {loans 90 or
more days delinquent) and impaired loans increased significantly. These increases were primarily attributable to the
continued deterioration in the real estate market and the economy in general. We have been further impacted by the
erosion of property values and an overall increase in housing inventory (both developed lots and completed houses)
in many of the areas of the country in which we do business and where the collateral for our loans reside.
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standards have made it more difficult for potential borrowers to obtain
lance existing loans.

Additionally, significantly tightened credi
financing and for current borrowers to refir

QOur allowance for loan losses related to impaired loans totaled $24.6 million at December 31, 2007 compared to
$152,000 at December 31, 2006. Actual Igsses are dependent upon future events and, as such, further changes to the
level of allowance for loan losses may become necessary based on changes in economic conditions and other
factors.

At December 31, 2007, cur nonperforming residential construction loans totaled $57.7 million of which $31.8

million were located in Florida. Approxi

loans had been purchased from TransLan

firm. To limit our geographic loan conce

Cape Coral area of Lee County, Florida frg

At December 31, 2007, we had classi
of which $33.1 million relate to loans purc

mately $26.5 million of our total nonperforming residential construction
d Financial Services, Inc. (“TransLand”), a Florida mortgage brokerage
ntration, we discontinued purchasing residential construction loans in the
m TransLand by December 31, 2005,

[Eed $51.9 million of our total residential construction loans ys impaired,
ased from TransLand. We have established an allowance for loan losses

related to the TransLand loans which have been classified as impaired of $11.5 million at December 31, 2007.

As previously disclosed in regulatory; filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, we reported that
we have a group of residential constructiorll loans we purchased from Transl.and which were primarily located in the
Cape Coral area of southwest Florida. These loans were originally made to individual homebuyers wishing to build
a second or retirement home. Subsequenf to the filing of our June 30, 2007 Quarterly Report an Forin 10-Q, we
assumed servicing of all loans purchased from TransLand. During our due diligence process related to the transfer
of residential construction loan servicing from TransLand to the Bank, alleged fraudulent servicing pructices were
discovered. The majority of the alleged| fraud related to the withholding of loan payoff proceeds and periodic
payments. A joint petition for involuntary| Chapter 11 bankruptcy was filed on August 23, 2007 in the United States
Bankruptcy Court for the Middle District of Florida (“Court™) by the Bank and two other financial institutions

against TransLand. A court-appointed e

activity. In December 2007, the Court ent
bankruptcy petition in return for the agreg
the liquidation and proportional distributio
is currently in process.

In addition to seeking recoveries from

aminer furnished a detailed report documenting the alleged fraudulent
ered an order approving the petitioning banks’ plan to agree to dismiss the
ment by TransLand and certain of its principal creditors to proceed with
n of TransLand’s remaining assets. The liquidation of TransLand’s assets

TransLand, the Bank is also insured up to $7.5 million against fraudulent

activity by loan servicers. A $12.2 million receivable from TransLand associated with the alleged misappropriation
of loan payoff proceeds and periodic payn‘Jents due to the Bank was reclassified from loans receivable to other assets
on the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2007. We believe that it is
probable we will collect the proceeds on the insurance bond. We wrote-off as a charge to other operaiing expense

$4.8 million during the three months ende
amount represents the excess of the aggr
During the three months ended December,
write-off. Any future recoveries from Ty
funds are received.

FHLBank Topeka Stock. FHLBank
million, or 6.2%, compared to $62.0 mil
dividends paid in stock received during thg

Premises and Equipment. Premise
December 31, 2007 compared to $39.8 mi
of depreciation and amortization expense
during the year ended December 31, 2007

Goodwill. Goodwill totaled $42.1 mil
$42.2 million at December 31, 2006 ang

d September 30, 2007 in connection with the TransLand recefvable. This
egate TransLand receivable over the amount of our insurance coverage.
31, 2007, we recovered $1.6 million related to the TransLand receivable
ansLand would be recorded as other operating income in the period the

stock totaled $65.8 million at December 31, 2007, an increase of $3.8
ton at December 31, 2006. The increase was attributable 10 FHLBank
> year ended December 31, 2007,

5 and equipment decreased $1.8 million, or 4.3%, to $38.0 million at
llion at December 31, 2006. The decrease was attributable to $4.0 million
which was partially offset by $2.2 million in asset additions. Additions
consisted primarily of computer equipment, furniture and software.

llicn at December 31, 2007, a decrease of $127,000, or 0.3%, compared to
relates to the 2004 acquisition of UNFC. The decline in goodwill is
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attributable to the realization of a $61,000 tax benefit refated to the UNFC acquisition and a $66,000 adjustment
resulting from the adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) Interpretation No. 48.

Other Intangible Assets, Other intangible assets totaled $6.7 million at December 31, 2007, a decrease of $1.6
million, or 19.6%, compared to $8.4 million at December 31, 2006 and relates to the core deposit intangible assets
recorded as a result of the UNFC acquisition and the Marine Bank transaction. The decrease was attributable to $1.6
million in amortization during the year ended December 31, 2007,

Other Assets. Other assets increased $39.0 million, or 177.0%, to $61.0 million at December 31, 2007
compared to $22.0 million at December 31, 2006. Other assets consists primarily of prepaid expenses,
miscellaneous receivables and other miscellaneous assets. The increase in other assets at December 31, 2007 is
primarily attributable to an $18.2 million increase in deferred tax assets, a $8.0 million income tax receivable and a
$7.4 million receivable related to TransLand. The increase in deferred tax assets was primarily related to the
increase in our allowance for loan losses and the accelerated recognition of deferred loan fees.

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

General, Qur total liabilities were $3.2 billion at December 31, 2007, an increase of $114.3 million, or 3.7%,
compared to $3.1 billion at December 31, 2006, We utilized increased deposits to reduce our FHLBank advances
during the year ended December 31, 2007.

Deposits. Deposits increased $378.2 million, or 18.4%, 10 $2.4 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to $2.1
billion at December 31, 2006.

At December 31,

Increase

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 (Decrease) 9 Change
Noninterest-bearing checking $ 164275 § 154,123 § 10.152 6.59 %
Savings 188,613 45452 143,161 314.97
Interest-bearing checking 328,267 349,033 (20.766) (5.95)
Money market 350,276 383,182 (32.906) (8.59)
Time deposits 1,399,113 1,120,553 278.560 24.86

Total retail deposits 2,430,544 2,052,343 378.201 18.43
Brokered time deposits - - - -

Total deposits $2,430,544 $2,052,343 $ 378,201 18.43 %

Our transaction accounts (checking, savings and money market) totaled $1.0 billion at December 31, 2007, an
increase of $99.6 million, or 10.7%, compared to $931.8 million at December 31, 2006, The increase in our savings
accounts was attributable to a new savings account which was introduced during the three months ended September
30, 2007. The number of transaction accounts increased by 4,800 accounts, or 3.7%, to 133,400 accounts compared
to 128,600 accounts at December 31, 2006. The weighted average interest rate of our transaction accounts was
1.96% at December 31, 2007 compared to 1.68% at December 31, 2006. The increase in our time deposits was
primarily the result of marketing promotions throughout 2007. The weighted average interest rate of our time
deposits was 4.96% at December 31, 2007 compared to 4.81% at December 31, 2006.

FHLBank Advances and Other Borrowings. Our FHLBank advances and other borrowings totaled $689.3
million at December 31, 2007, a decrease of $273.1 million, or 28.4%, compared to $962.4 million at December 31,
2006. The decrease in FHLBank advances and other borrowings at December 31, 2007 was primarily attributable to
the utilization of increased deposits to reduce our FHLBank advances. During the year ended December 31, 2007
we executed one new FHLBank term advance in the amount of $50.0 million at an interest rate of 3.94%.
Additionally, we paid off eight FHL.Bank term advances which were called during the year ended December 31,
2007 totaling $250.0 million. The weighted average interest rate on FHLBank advances which were called by the
FHLBank during the year ended December 31, 2007 was 3.61%. We did not have an outstanding balance on our
FHLBank line of credit at December 31, 2007 compared to an outstanding balance of $72.5 million at December 31,
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2006, The weighted average interest rate
31, 2007, an increase of 10 basis points co

Aeccrued Expenses and Other Liabil,
December 31, 2007, an increase of $6.5
primary items comprising accrued expe

on our FHLBank advances and other borrowings was 4.50% ut December
mpared to 4.40% at December 31, 2006.

ities. (ur accrued expenses and other liabilities totaled $35.9 million at
hillion, or 22.2%, compared to $29.3 million at December 31, 2006. The
ses and other liabilities are deferred compensation agreements, loan

servicing payments and other miscellaneous accrued expenses.

Stockholders’ Equity. At December
million, or 2.2%, compared to $353.3 m

primarily the result of a net loss of $12.4 1

the year ended December 31, 2007. Thi
earned by participants in the Employee
awards under the 2003 Management R

amortization of stock options under the 2

share on March 31, 2007 to stockholders
2007, September 28, 2007 and December
and December 14, 2007.

On July 27, 2004, we announced that
shares of our outstanding common stock.
8,367 shares of our outstanding commo,

31, 2007, stockholders’ equity totaled $345.6 million, a decrease of $7.7
llion at December 31, 2006. The decrease in stockholders’ equity was
nillion and cash dividends of $3.2 million paid to our stockholders during
5 decrease was partially offset by $3.9 million related to comman stock
tock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”). $2.9 million related to amortization of
cognition and Retention Plan (“MRRP”) and $1.7 million related to
003 Stock Option Plan (“*SOP”). We paid cash dividends of $0.07 per
of record on March 13, 2007 and $0.08 per common share on June 29,
31, 2007 to stockholders of record on June 15, 2007, September 14, 2007

our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to 1,828,581
There is no stated expiration date for this authorization. We repurchased
stock to support employee benefit programs during the year ended

December 31, 2007. The weighted average price paid per repurchased common share was $24.39 for the year ended
December 31, 2007. After accounting fot earlier repurchases, at December 31, 2007, the total remaining common
stock repurchase authority was 1,518,692 shares, These shares may be repurchased when permissible under the

Merger Agreement and SEC guidelines,
I1, Ttem 5 “Market for the Registrant’s Co
Securities”.

or further discussion regarding our common stock repurchases, see Part

rrmon Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity

Comparison of Financial Condition at Jecember 31, 2006 and 2005

Assets

General. Qur total assets were $3.4
compared to $3.2 billion at December 31,
net loans.,

Investment Securities, Our availabl
2006, an increase of $2.4 million, or 2.3%
security purchases of $94.5 million which
investment securities. The securities pu
purchased to collateralize deposits.

Moritgage-Backed Securities. Our mj

billion at December 31, 2006, an increase of $208.9 million, or 6.5%,
2005. The increase is primarily the result of a $205.5 million increase in

e for sale investment securities totaled $105.0 million at December 31,
compared to $102.6 million at December 31, 2005. During 2006 we had
were partially offset by $92.8 million in preceeds from maturing and sold
rchased during 2006 were primarily U.S. Treasury securities that were

ortgage-backed securities, all of which are recorded as available for sale,

totaled $12.3 million at December 31, 2006, a decrease of $7.5 million, or 37.9%, compared to $19.8 million at

December 31, 2005. The decrease in ou

mortgage-backed securities was the result of $7.5 million of principal

payments received during the year ended December 31, 2006.
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Loans Receivable. Net loans totaled $3.1 billion at December 31, 2006, an increase of $205.5 million, or 7.2%,
compared to $2.8 billion at December 31, 2005. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we originated $2.1
billion of loans (exclusive of warehouse mortgage lines of credit) and purchased $484.1 million of loans. These
increases were partially offset by $2.2 billion of principal repayments (exclusive of warehouse morigage lines of
credit) and $247.4 million of loan sales.

At December 31,

Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 (Decrease) % Change
One-to-four family residential (1) h) 339080 § 384,722  $ (45,642) (11.86) %
Second mortgage residential 120,510 160,208 (39,698) (24.78)
Multi-family residential 148,922 166,579 (17,657) (10.60)
Commercial real estate 396,620 402.504 (5.884) (1.46)
Land and land development 494 887 289916 204,971 70.70
Residential construction 780,991 943,378 (162,387) (17.21)
Commercial construction 491,997 351,767 140.230 39.86
Agriculture - real estate 68,459 57.008 11.451 20.09
Business 220.669 177,592 43.077 24,26
Agriculture - operating 94 455 72,518 21,937 30.25
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 112,645 95,174 17,471t 18.36
Consumer 413,000 407,113 5.887 1.45
Total loans 3,682,235 3,508.479 173.756 4.95

Unamortized premiums, discounts

and deferred loan fees 5,602 4778 824 17.25
Loans in process (2):

Land and land development (122,640) (84,811} {37,829) 44.60

Residential construction (283,394) (440,885) 157,491 (35.72)

Commercial construction (231,643) {142,851} (88.752) 62.11

Net loans $ 3.050,160 % 2,844,670 § 205,490 7.22 %

(1) Includes loans held for sale
(2) Loans in process represents the undisbursed portion of construction and land development loans.

The increase in our land and land development and commercial construction loan portfolios was primarily
attributable to loan origination activity related to our loan production offices (located in Arizona, Colorado, Florida,
Minnesota, Nevada and North Carolina) that are strategically positioned in high growth areas of the United States.
The increase in business loans was primarily the result of expanded lending capabilities resulting from the addition
of commercial banking personnel specializing in corporate banking. The increase in our agricultural real estate and
agriculture-operating loans was primarily the result of expanded lending opportunities resulting from the addition of
lending personnel with agricultural lending expertise. The increase in our warchouse mortgage lines of credit
reflected increased mortgage financing activity during the latter portion of 2006 due t a short-term decrease in
mortgage interest rates., During 2006 we reduced the volume of residential construction loans we purchase from
mortgage brokers in the state of Florida. This reduction resulted in a decline in our residential construction loans at
December 31, 2006. Our one-to-four family residential loan portfolio declined primarily due to a decreased demand
for adjustable-rate residential loans as borrowers have migrated to fixed-rate loans. Generally, we originate
adjustable-rate, one-to-four family residential loans for retention in our portfolio. We sell substantially all newly
originated fixed-rate, one-to-four family residential mortgage loans in the secondary market on a servicing retained
basis which produces noninterest income in the form of net gains and losses on sales and servicing fees. The
decrease in our second mortgage loan portfolio was primarily the result of loan repayments and prepayments. The
decline in our multi-family residential and commercial real estate loan portfolios was primarily the result of
refinancing activity as borrowers have migrated to fixed-rate loan products. Qur consumer loan portfolio remained
relatively unchanged at December 31, 2006 compared to December 31, 2005.
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Allowance for Loan Losses. Qur allqwance for loan losses increased $2.3 million, or 7.3%, to $33 1 million at
December 31, 2006 compared to $30.9 million at December 31, 2005. Our allowance for loan losses as a percentage
of nonperforming loans was 110.25% at December 31, 2006 compared to 214.30% at December 31, 2005, Our ratio

of the allowance for loan losses to net loans was 1.09% at both December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Nonperforming loans increased $15.6/ million, or 108.6%, to $30.1 million at December 31, 2006 compared to

$14.4 million at December 31, 2005. T

increase in nonperforming loans at December 31, 2006 was primarily

attributable to residential construction and land and land development loans.

FHLBank Topeka Stock. FHLBank stock totaled $62.0 million at December 31, 2006, an increase of $3.5
mitlion, or 6.0%, compared to $58.5 million at December 31, 2005. The increase was attributable to FHLBank

stock dividends received during the year er

ded December 31, 2006.

Premises and Equipment. Premises alnd equipment increased $312,000, or 0.8%, to $39.8 million at December
31, 2006 compared to $39.5 million at December 31, 2005. The increase was attributable to $5.0 million in asset

additions which were partially offset by

depreciation and amortization of $3.8 million during the year ended

December 31, 2006. Significant additions during the year ended December 31, 2006 included new, full-service
banking facilities opened in Omaha, Hastings and Papillion, Nebraska.

Goodwill. Goodwill totaled $42.2 mi
$42.3 million at December 31, 2005. Our

lion at December 31, 2006, a decrease of $55,000, or 0.1%, compared to
goodwill at December 31, 2006 and 2005 relates to the 2004 acquisition

of UNFC. There was no goodwill recorded in connection with our Marine Bank branch purchase in June 2006. The
decrease in goodwill was the result of a realized tax benefit associated with the UNFC acquisition.

Other Intangible Assets. Our other| intangible assets declined $1.7 million, or 16.4%, to $8.4 million at

December 31, 2006 compared to $10.0 m

llion at December 31, 2005 and relates to core deposit intangible assets

recorded as a result of the UNFC acquisition and the Marine Bank transaction. The decrease was attributable to $1.8

million of amortization partially offset by
Marine Bank transaction.

$102,000 core deposit intanrgible asset recorded in conjunction with the

Other Assets. Other assets increased $6.0 million, or 21.2%, to $34.5 million at December 31, 2006 compared
10 $28.5 million at December 31, 2005. At December 31, 2006, the largest item recorded in other assets was net
mortgage servicing assets of $12.5 million.| The remainder consisted of prepaid expenses, miscellaneous receivables

and other miscellaneous assets,

|
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Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity

General. Qur total liabilities were $3.1 billion at December 31, 2006, an increase of $164.5 million, or 5.6%,
compared to $2.9 billion at December 31, 2005. We primarily utilized FHL.Bank advances to fund lending growth
during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Deposits. During 2006, deposits generated through our retail banking facilities increased $105.6 million and we
acquired $8.1 million in deposits related to the Marine Bank transaction. Offsetting our 2006 increase in deposits
was a transfer of $21.7 million of deposits to the purchaser of our Plainville and Stockton, Kansas bank offices and
the maturing of $78.0 million of brokered time deposits which existed at December 31, 2005. As a result, net
deposits increased $14.0 million, or 0.7%, to $2.1 billion at December 31, 2006.

At December 31,
Increase

(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 (Decrease) % Change
Noninterest-bearing checking $ 154,123 % 138,578 $ 15,545 11.22 %
Savings 45,452 57,037 (11,585) (20.31)
Interest-bearing checking 349,033 398,094 (49,061) (12.32)
Money market 383,182 338,518 44,664 13.19
Time deposits 1,120,553 1,028,128 92,425 8.99

Total retail deposits 2,052,343 1,960,355 91,988 4.69
Brokered time deposits - 77,964 (77.,964) {100.00)

Total deposits $ 2052343 § 2,038319 § 14,024 0.69 %

Our transaction accounts (checking, savings and money market) totaled $931.8 million at December 31, 2006, a
decrease of $437,000 compared to $932.2 million at December 31, 2005. The number of transaction accounts
increased by 3,700 accounts, or 3.0%, to 128,600 transaction accounts. The weighted average interest rate of our
transaction accounts was 1.68% at December 31, 2006 compared to 1.35% at December 31, 2005. The weighted
average interest rate of our time deposits was 4.81% at December 31. 2006 compared to 3.52% at December 31,
2005. The increase in our money market accounts and time deposits was primarily the result of customers migrating
to these accounts from lower-yielding deposit accounts due to a rising interest rate environment.

FHLBank Advances and Other Borrowings. Our FHLBank advances and other borrowings totaled $962.4
million at December 31, 2006, an increase of $147.5 million, or 18.1%, compared to $814.9 million at December 31,
2005. We utilized FHLBank advances as our primary funding source for loan growth during the year ended
December 31, 2006. The increase in FHLBank advances and other borrowings at December 31, 2006 was primarily
attributable to borrowing an additional $440.0 million of convertible fixed-rate advances from the FHLBank and an
increase in the outstanding balance on our FHLBank line of credit to $72.5 million at December 31, 2006. These
new advances were partially offset by the repayment of $352.2 million of FHLBank advances. The weighted
average interest rate on FHLBank advances executed in 2006 was 4.28%. The weighted average interest rate on
FHLBank advances which matured or were called by the FHLBank in 2006 was 3.08%. The weighted average
interest rate on our FHLBank advances and other borrowings was 4.40% at December 31, 2006, an increase of 63
basis points compared to 3.77% at December 31, 2005.

Accrued Expenses and Other Liabilities. Our accrued expenses and other liabilities totaled $29.3 million at
December 31, 2006, an increase of $1.3 million, or 4.8%, compared to $28.0 million at December 31, 2005. The
primary items comprising accrued expenses and other liabilities are accrued taxes payable, deferred compensation
agreements, loan servicing payments and other miscellaneous accrued expenses.

Stockholders” Equity. At December 31, 2006, stockholders’ equity totaled $353.3 million, an increase of $44.4
million, or 14.4%, compared to $308.9 million at December 31, 2005. The increase in stockholders’ equity
primarily reflected net income of $41.3 million during the year ended December 31, 2006, $4.9 million related to
common stock earned by participants in the ESOP, $2.9 million related to amortization of awards under the 2003
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MRRP and $1.7 million related to amortizdtion of stock options under the 2003 SOP. These increases wgre partially
offset by $4.8 million in stock rcpurchasc‘p and $4.5 million in cash dividends paid to our stockholders, We paid
cash dividends of $0.06 per common sthe on March 31, 2006 to stockholders of record on March 15, 2006 and
$0.07 per common share on June 30, 2006 Sep[ember 29, 2006 and December 29, 2006 to stockholders of record on
June 15, 2006, September 15, 2006 and Debember 15, 2006.

On July 27, 2004, we announced that,our Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of up to 1,828.581
shares of our outstanding common stock. [There is no stated expiration date for this authorizationr. We repurchased
152,984 shares of our outstanding common stock during the year ended December 31, 2006. The weighted average
price paid per common share was $31.54 for the year ended December 31, 2006. After accounting for earlier
repurchases, at December 31, 2006, the total remaining common stock repurchase authority was 1,527,059 shares.

Comparison of Operating Results for thele Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006

Net Income (Loss). Net loss for the y!car ended December 31, 2007 was $12.4 million, or $0.74 per diluted and
basic share, compared to net income of $41.3 million. or $2.41 per diluted share ($2.50 per basic share), for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The decrease | 1n our niet income for the year ended December 31. 2007 compared to the
same period in 2006 was primarily attriblitable 1o the increase in the provision for loan losses resulting from an
increased level of nonperforming loans. |A recent appellate court decision in our federal goodwill litigation (see
Item 3. Legal Proceedings for additional information} resulted in a 2007 fourth quarter pretax charge of $560.000
recorded in other operating expense to réﬂect fees and expenses incurred during the appeal process which had
previously been capitalized. The impact ¢ fter income tax benefits of $202.,000 was $358.,000. The appellate court
rendered its decision after we had reported our financial results for the quarter and year ended December 31, 2007.
QOur 2007 Consolidated Statements of Opjrauons and related loss per share data reported in this Annual Report on

Form 10-K have been updated accordingly!

Net Interest Income. Net interest in
interest income on interest-carning assets
interest income result from changes in vo

fomc is the most significant component of our earnings and consists of
offset by interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. Changes in net
Fume, net interest spread and net interest margin. Volume relates to the

level of interest-earning assets and imercstibearing liabilities. Net interest spread refers to the difference between the

yield on interest-earning asscts and the r

interest income divided by total interest-¢

assets and interest-bearing liabilities.

le paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Net interest margin refers to net
arning assets and is influenced by the level and mix of interest-earning

Net interest income, average interest rate spread and net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2007

were negatively affected by the increase
income on nonperforming loans (loans
million and $30.1 million at December 31,

Net interest income before provision
2007, a decrease of $9.7 million, or 7.7%.,
decrease in net interest income for the ye
2006 was primarily attributable to an 86

d balance of our nonperforming loans as we do not recognize interest
days or more past duc). We had nonperforming loans totaling $128.5
2007 and 2006, respectively.

for loan losses totaled $116.1 million for the year ended Dg¢cember 31,
compared to $125.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The
ar ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended Duecember 31,
basis point increase in the average rate paid on time deposits and an

increase of $201.8 million in the average balance of time deposits. Our net interest income for the year ended

December 31, 2006 was supplemented by
loan.

Our average interest rate spread was

a $2.7 million loan prepayment fee collected on a commercial real estate

3.15% for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to 3.72% for the

year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in our average interest rate spread was attributable to an increase in
the average rate paid on interest-bearing lhabilities, primarily time deposits. Our average interest rate spread was
also negatively affected by our increased level of nonperforming loans.

The average yield on interest- earmng. assets was 7.21% for the year ended December 31, 2007, a three basis

point decrease compared to 7.24% for the year ended December 31, 2006, Our average rate paid on interest bearing
liabilities was 4.06% for the year ended December 31. 2007, an increase of 54 basis points compared to 3.52% for
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the year ended December 31, 2006. The increase in the average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities was
primarily the result of customers migrating to higher-yiekling deposit products such as time deposits.

Qur net interest margin was 3.58% for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to 4.07% for the year
ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in net interest margin was primarily attributable to the increased average
interest rate on our interest-bearing liabilities, primarily time deposits. This decrease was partially offset by the
increase in the average balance of loans receivable. Our net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 was negatively impacted by the increased balance of nonperforming
loans.

We anticipate that our average interest rate spread and net interest margin may further compress during 2008
due to slower loan growth and increasing levels of nonperforming loans.

Average Balances, Net Interest Income, Yields Earned and Cost of Funds. The following table shows for the
periods indicated the total doilar amount of interest from average interest-earning assets and the resulting yields, as
well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities, expressed both in dollars and rates, net interest

margin and average interest rate spread. All average balances are based on daily balances.

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Average Average Average Average Average Average
(Dollars in thousands) Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate Balance Interest Yield/Rate
[nterest-earning assets;
Federal funds sold 3 59.189 % 2,841 480% $ 1,934 % 85 4.40% % 25§ 1 4.00%
Investment securities (1) 199,199 10,748 5.40% 167,587 8,422 5.03% 173,012 7.143 4.13%
Mortgage-backed securities (1) 9,309 386 4.15% 16,200 653 4.03% 27,961 1,022 3.66%
Loans receivable (2} 2,976,069 220,046 7.39% 2,904,606 214,727 7.39% 2,732,360 169,177 6, 19%
Total interest-earning assets 3,243,766 234,021 121% 3.000,327 223,887 7.24% 2,933,358 177,343 6.05%
Noninterest-earning assets 225,002 205,289 196,703
Total assets $  3.468,768 $ 3295616 $ 3,130061
Interest-bearing liabitities:
Interest-bearing checking accounts $ 326,545 % 3.692 1.13% § a6l0se b 4,147 1.15% $ 386468 § 3055 0.79%
Savings accounts 490,036 2427 2.70% 51,643 263 0.51% 68,909 410 0.59%
Money market accounts 385.210 11,699 3.04% 393,807 11,102 2.82% 313.802 5,095 1.62%
Time deposits 1,287,195 64,163 4.98% 1,085,350 44,715 4.129% 1,059.876 33,387 3.15%
Total interest-bearing deposits 2,088,986 81,981 392% 1.891,856 60,227 3.18% 1,829,555 41,947 2.29%
FHLBank Topeka advances and
other borrowings 812,360 35,920 4.42% 893,420 37,792 4.23% 834,595 30,481 1.65%
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2,901,346 117.901 4.06% 2,785,276 98,019 352% 2,664,150 72,428 2.72%
Noninterest-bearing accounts 135617 119,394 112,902
Other liabilities 65,659 59,929 62.074
Total liabilities 3,102,622 2,964,599 2.839.126
Stockholders' equity 366,146 331,017 290,935
Total liabilities and
stockholders” equity £ 3.468.768 § 3295616 $  3.130.061
Net interest-earmings assets $ 342,420 $ 305,051 $ 269,208
Net interest income; average
interest rate spread $ 116120 315% § 125,868 112% § 104915 3.33%
Wet interest margin {3) 358% 4.07% 158%
Average intcrest-caming assets to
average interest-bearing liabilities 111.80% 110.95% 110.10%

1) Includes securities available for sale and held to maturity. Investment securities also include FHLBank Topeka stock.

12} Includes nonperforming loans during the respective periods. Calculated net of unamortized premiums, discounts and deferred fees,

loans in process and allowance for loan losses.

13} Net interest income divided by average interest-earning assets.
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RatelVolume Analysis. The following table shows the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in
the volume of interest-related assets and liabilities affected our interest income and expense during the periods
indicated. For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities, information is provided on
changes attributable to: (1} changes in rate (change in rate multiplied by prior year volume), and (2) changes in
volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate). The combined effect of changes in both rate and volume
has been allocated proportionately to the change due to rate and the change due to volume.

2007 vs. 2006 2006 vs. 2005
ll{crease (Decrease) Due to Increase {Decrease) Due to
Total Total
Increase Increase
(Dollars in thousands) Rate Volume (Decrease) Rate Volume (Decrease
Interest income: |
Federal funds sold 3 9 3 2747 $ 2756 % - % 84 3 84
Invesiment securities 653 1.673 2,326 1.510 23D 1,279
Morigage-backed securities 18 (285) 267) 95 (464) (369
Loans receivable (1) - 5.319 5319 34.373 11,177 45,550
Total interest income 680 9.454 10,134 35,978 10,566 46.544
Interest expense:
Interest-bearing
checking accounts (70 (385) (455) 1.309 (217) 1,092
Savings accounts 1.844 320 2,164 5D (96) (147
Money market accounts 845 (248) 597 4,469 1,538 6,007
Time deposits 10,285 9,163 19,448 10,508 820 11,328
Total interest expense
on deposits 12.904 8,850 21754 16,235 2,045 18,250
FHLBank Topeka advances and
other borrowings 1,651 (3,523) (1.872) 5,065 2.246 7.311
Total interest expense 14,555 5.327 19,882 21,300 4,291 25.591
Net change in net interest income $(13.875) % 4,127 $§ (9,748) 314678 § 6,275 $ 20953
(1) Calculated net of unamortized premiums, discounts and deferred fees, loans in process and allowance for loan losses.
Interest Income. For the year ended December 31, 2007 our total interest income was $234.0) million, an
increase of $10.1 million, or 4.5%, compared to $223.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Interest

million, or 2.5%, compared to $214.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The average balance of loans
receivable totaled $3.0 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007, an increase of $71.5 million, or 2.5%,
compared to $2.9 billion for the year endc%d December 31, 2006. The average yield earned on the loan portfolio was
7.39% for both of the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006.

income on loans receivable totaled $22§c.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, an increase of $5.3

The increase in total interest incomg for the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily attributable to an
increase in interest income on loans receivable. The increase in interest income on loans receivable was attributable
to an increase in the average balance of ll ans receivable. The increases in the average balance of loans receivable
was offset by the increased balance of nonperforming loans.

Interest Expense. Our total interesJ expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $117.9 million, an
increase of $19.9 million, or 20.3%, corﬁpared 1o $98.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Interest
expense on deposits totaled $82.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, an increase of $21.8 million. or
36.1%, compared to $60.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. Interest expense on FHLBank advances
and other borrowings declined $1.9 million, or 5.0%, to $35.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007
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compared to $37.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006. The average rate paid on interest-bearing
deposits was 3.92% and 3.18% for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The average rate
paid on FHLBank advances and other borrowings increased to 4.42% for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared 10 4.23% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Additionally, the average balance of our interest-bearing
liabilities totaled $2.9 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007, an increase of $116.1 million, or 4.2%,
compared to $2.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2006. The average balance of our interest-bearing
deposits increased $197.1 million, or 10.4%, to $2.1 billion for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $1.9
billion for the year ended December 31, 2006. The average balance of our FHLBank advances and other
borrowings totaled $812.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007, a decrease of $81.1 million, or 9.1%,
compared to $893.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

The increase in interest expense was primarily attributable to an increase in the average rate paid on interest-
bearing liabilities. This increase was primarily the result of increases in the average rate paid on and the average
balance of time deposits. The increase in time deposits was the result of marketing promotions designed to attract
new customers. Additionally, the increase was also attributable to customers migrating to other higher-yielding
deposit products.

Provision for Loan Losses. We establish provisions for loan losses in order to maintain the allowance for loan
losses at a level we believe, to the best of our knowledge, covers all known and inherent losses in the portfolio that
are both probable and reasonable to estimate at each reporting date. Management performs reviews no less
frequently than quarterly in order to identify these inherent losses and to assess the overall collection probability for
the loan portfolio. Our reviews consist of a guantitative analysis by loan category, using historical loss experience,
and consideration of a series of qualitative loss factors.

We recorded a provision for loan losses of $68.1 million for the year ended December 31. 2007 compared to
$6.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $62.0 million. The increase in our provision for
loan losses for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily
aitributable to the increase in our nonperforming residential construction, land and land development and
commercial construction loans. The increase in our provision for loan losses was also attributable to an increase in
the level of loans which were deemed impaired at December 31, 2007. The following tabie details nonperforming
and impaired loans for selected loan types for the periods presented:

Nonperforming Loans Impaired Loans
At December 31, At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 $ Change 2007 2006 $ Change
Residential construction $ 57,709 $ 18074 $ 39635 § 51885 $ 4359 § 51426
Land and land development 38,708 4,696 34,012 51,120 - 51,120
Commercial construction 19,184 - 19,184 19,184 - 19,184
Total $ 115601 $§ 22770 $ 92,831 $ 122,180 § 459 § 121,730

Our loan delinquency rate (30 or more days delinquent) at December 31, 2007 as a percentage of net loans
(before allowance for loan losses) was 6.08% compared to 1.89% at December 31, 2006, OQur level of
nonperforming loans and loan delinquencies may continue to increase.

During the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006. we charged-off, net of recoveries, $32.0 million and $3.8
miilion, respectively. Charge-offs. net of recoveries, during the year ended December 31, 2007 consisted primarily
of $26.4 million of residential construction loans, $2.0 million of consumer loans, $1.9 million of business loans and
$1.6 million of commercial real estate loans. Included in the $26.4 million of residential construction loan charge-
offs were $25.5 million of charge-offs related to loans acquired from TransLand. These charge-offs relate to a
decline in the estimated fair value of residential lots due to the erosion of property values and an increase in housing
inventory (both developed lots and completed houses) in the Cape Coral area of Lee County Florida. The decline in
the fair value of residential lots in the Cape Coral area of Lee County Florida was deemed to be unrecoverable due
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1o the large number of similar lots in the same geographical area and the current sale prices of simildr lots in this
area.

Our charge-offs, net of recoveries, as a percentage of average loans outstanding were 1.07% and 0.13% for the
years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Qur strategy of focusing on loans with relatively higher
yields. adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity subjects us to an increased level of credit risk which
has resulted in an increased amount of né)nperforming loans, loan delinquencies and charge-offs. Our volume and
dollar amount of loan charge-offs and reldted provistons for loan losses may continue to increase in future periods.

Noninterest Income. Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2007 was $30.3 million, an increase
of $1.3 million, or 4.3%, compared to $29.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.
Year Ended December 31, Increase
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 (Decrease) 9, Change
Deposit account fees and service charges 5 15823 § 15054  § 769 511 %
Debit card fees 3.420 2,736 684 25.00
Lending fees and service charges 3.171 3,290 (119) (3.62)
Commissions and management fee income 4,627 3,886 741 19.07
Loss from real estate operations, net (445) {268) (177 66.04
Net gain (loss) on sales of;
Investment securities - 21 #3))] {100.00)
Loss on impairment of securities (188) - (188) N/A
Loans held for sale 2,844 2.084 760 36.47
Real estate owned (225) (135) {50) 66.67
Gain on sale of branches - 1,024 (1,024) {100.00)
Other operating income 1,310 1,392 {82) (5.89)
Total noninterest income $ 30,337 $ 29,084 &% 1,253 431 %
Growth in noninterest income during| the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended December

31, 2006 was primarily attributable to inc]reascs in deposit account fees and service charges, net gains on the sale of
loans held for sale, commissions and management fee income and debit card fees. The increase in deposit account
fees and service charges was primarily due to an increase in the number of transaction accounts. At December 31,
2007, we had 133,400 transaction accounts, an increase of 4,800 accounts, compared to December 31, 2006. The
increase in commissions and managemént fee income was primarily attributable to fees collected by TierOne
Financial, a subsidiary that administers the sale of securities and insurance products. The increase in debit card fees
was largely due to transaction volume.

Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 included a $1.0 million pre-tax gain oh sale of two
Kansas bank offices and related deposits.
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Noninterest Expense. Our noninterest expense increased by $13.3 million, or 16.3%, to $95.1 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $81.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Year Ended December 31, Increase

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 (Decrease) % Change
Employee compensation $ 35459 % 31,864 % 3,595 11.28 %
Employee benefits 5,697 5,182 515 9.94
Payroll taxes 2,792 2,649 143 5.40
Management Recognition and Retention Plan 2,904 2,904 - -
Employee Stock Ownership Plan 3,757 4783 {1,026) (21.45)
2003 Stock Option Plan 1,682 1,682 - -
Occupancy, net 9,520 8912 608 6.82
Data processing 2,443 2,200 243 11.05
Advertising 5,041 4 455 586 13.15
Core deposit intangible asset amortization 1,647 1,753 (106) (6.05)
Professional services 5,880 2,308 3,572 154.77
TransLand receivable write-off 4,767 - 4,767 N/A
Partial recovery of Transl.and receivable write-off (1,633) - (1,633) N/A
Provision for VISA lawsuit settlement 700 - 700 N/A
Other 14,401 13,077 1,324 10.12

Total noninterest expense 3 95,057 % 81,769 % 13,288 1625 %

The increase in noninterest expense during the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2006 was primarily attributable to the TransLand receivable write-off, increases in employee
compensation, employee benefits, payroll taxes and professional services. At December 31, 2007, other assets
included a $7.5 million insurance receivable relating to TransLand, less a $100,000 insurance policy deductible, that
was not included in other assets at December 31, 2006. At September 30, 2007, we had a $12.2 million receivable
from TransLand associated with the alleged misappropriation of loan payoff proceeds and pericdic payments. At
September 30, 2007, we recorded a write-off totaling $4.8 million of the TransLand receivable to other operating
expense. This amount represents the excess of the aggregate TransLand receivable over the amount of our insurance
coverage. During the three months ended December 31, 2007, we entered into a liquidation agreement with
TransLand which allowed us to recover $1.6 million of the receivable previously charged-off. This liquidation
agreement does not preclude us from recovering additional amounts related to the receivable write-off in future
periods. We believe that it is probable we will collect the proceeds on the insurance bond. The increase in
employee compensation, employee benefits and payroll taxes resulted from personnel growth and annual satary
increases. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had 862 and 850 full-time equivalent employees, respectively. The
increase in professional services expense for the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily related to consulting,
legal and accounting services associated with the proposed Merger, TransLand-related matters and the goodwill
litigation expenses.

We issue debit cards through Visa U.S.A. Inc. card association or its affiliates (“Visa”). Accordingly, we are a
member bank of Visa. Visa U.S.A. Inc. and MasterCard Intemational (“Card Associations™) have been named in
antitrust lawsuits challenging the practices of the Card Associations. As a Visa member bank we will be responsible
for our proportionate share of any resulting settlements. During the three months ended December 31, 2007, we
recognized a pre-tax charge of $700,000 for potential liabilities in connection with the Visa antitrust lawsuit which
reflects our proportionate share of potential damages as a Visa member bank.

Income Tax Expense. Our income tax expense decreased by $30.1 million, or 116.6%, for an income tax
benefit of $4.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to income tax expense of $25.8 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2007
compared to the same period in 2006 was primarily due to a decrease in net income resulting from an increase in our
provision for loan losses. The effective income tax benefit rate for the year ended December 31, 2007 was 25.6%
compared to an effective income tax rate of 38.5% for the year ended December 31, 2006. The decrease in the
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effective tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily attributable to the impact of permanent tax
items in relation to our net income (lpss). Nondeductible expenses related to the Merger Agreement with
CapitalSource were $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

Comparison of Operating Results for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Net Income. Net income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $41.3 million, or $2.41 per diluted share
($2.50 per basic share), compared to net i'lncome of $32.8 million, or $1.97 per diluted share ($2.02 per basic share),
for the year ended December 31, 2005. lComribming to the increases in net income and earnings per share for the
year ended December 31, 2006 was a $2.7 million pre-tax prepayment fee on a commercial real estate loan and a
$1.0 million pre-tax gain on sale of twq north-central Kansas bank offices and related deposits.  Offsetting the
positive effect of these two items were expenses related to employee stock options. Employee stock option
expenses impacted earnings per share bly $0.06 for the year ended December 31, 2006. We began expensing
employee stock options in the first quarter of 2006 following the implementation of new accounting guidelines.

Net Interest Income. Net interest iA]come before provision for loan losses totaled $125.9 million for the year
ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $21.0 million, or 20.0%, compared to $104.9 million for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The increase in net interest income was attributable to a continued increase in the average yield
on our net loan portfolio, partially offst::t by an increase in our funding cost, supplemented by a $2.7 million
prepayment fee collected on a commercial real estate loan during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Our average interest rate spread for| the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 3.72% and 3.33%,
respectively. The increase in our average interest rate spread was attributable to the increase in the yield eamed on
our interest-earning assets, primarily our net loan portfolio, being greater than the increase in our average rate paid
on interest-bearing liabilities. The average vield on interest-carning assets was 7.24% for the year ended December
31, 2006, a 119 basis point increase compared to 6.05% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in the
average vield earned on interest-earning pssets was primarily related to an increase in the average yield eamed on
loans receivable. Qur average yield earned on loans receivable for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
was 7.39% and 6.19%, respectively. This increase was primarily the result of our lending strategy to facus on loans
with relatively higher yields, adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity. Our average rate paid on
interest bearing liabilities was 3.52% f‘tr the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of 80 basis points
compared to 2.72% for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in the average rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities was primarily the result of customers migrating to higher-yielding deposit products such as time deposits
and money market accounts coupled with increased borrowing costs associated with FHLBank advances. These
increases were primarily the result of a sqlrics of interest rate increases set by the Federal Reserve Board throughout

2005 and the first half of 2006 that has affected the rate we pay on interest bearing deposits and borrowings.

Our net interest margin (net interest jncome divided by average interest-earning assets) increased to 4.07% for
the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 3.58% for the yvear ended December 31, 2005. The increase in our
net interest margin for the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily the result of increases in the average vield
earned and average balance of loans receivable. The average balance of our total interest-earning assets was $3.1
billion for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $157.0 million, or 5.4%, compared to $2.9 billion for
the year ended December 31, 2005.

Excluding the receipt of the $2.7 million pre-tax loan prepayment fee, our average interest rate spread would
have been 3.63% for the year ended December 31, 2006. Our net interest margin would have been 3.99% for the
year ended December 31, 2006,

Interest Income. Our total interestjincome for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $223.9 million, an
increase of $46.5 million, or 26.2%, compared to $177.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, Interest
income on loans receivable totaled $2]4‘.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $45.6
million, or 26.9%, compared to $169.2 million for year ended December 31, 2005. The average balance of loans
receivable increased $172.2 million, or 6.3%, to $2.9 billion for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to
$2.7 billion for year ended December 31] 2005. The average yield earned on loans receivable increased to 7.39%
for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to 6.19% for the year ended December 31, 2005.

68




The increase in total interest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was primarily attributable to an
increase in interest income on loans receivable.  The increase in interest income on loans receivable was primarily
attributable to an increase in the average yield earned. The increase in the average yield earned and average balance
of loans receivable was primarily the result of our lending strategy to focus on and sustain our holdings of loans with
relatively higher yields, adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity.

Interest Expense. Our total interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $98.0 million, an
increase of $25.6 million. or 35.3%, compared to $72.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Interest
expense on deposits totaled $60.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $18.3 million, or
43.6%, compared to $41.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. Interest expense on FHLBank advances
and other borrowings increased $7.3 million, or 24.0%, to $37.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared 1o $30.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The average rate paid on interest-bearing
deposits was 3.18% and 2.29% for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The average rate
paid on FHLBank advances and other borrowings increased to 4.23% for the year ended December 31, 2006
compared to 3.65% for the year ended December 31. 2005, The average balance of our interest-bearing liabilities
totaled $2.8 billion for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $121.1 million, or 4.5%, compared to $2.7
billion for the year ended December 31, 2005. The average balance of our interest-bearing deposits increased $62.3
million, or 3.4%, to $1.9 billion for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $1.8 billion for the year ended
December 31, 2005. The average balance of our FHLBank advances and other borrowings totaled $893.4 million
for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $58.8 million, or 7.0%, compared to $834.6 million for the
year ended December 31, 2005,

The increase in interest expense was attributable to an increase in the average rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities. This increase was primarily the result of a series of interest rate increases set by the Federal Reserve
Board throughout 2005 and the first half of 2006 that has affected the rate we pay on interest bearing deposits and
borrowings.

Provision for Loan Losses. We made a provision for loan losses of $6.1 million for the year ended December
31, 2006 compared to $6.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2005, a decrease of $383.000, or 6.0%. At
December 31. 2006 our nonperforming loans totaled $30.1 million, or 0.99% of net loans, compared to $14.4
million, or 0.51% of net loans, at December 31, 2005. The increase in nonperforming loans and assets related
primarily to increases of $16.2 million in nonperforming residential construction loans, $3.8 million in
nonperforming land and land development loans, $2.8 million in real estate owned and $1.8 million in
nonperforming business loans partially offsct by a $4.6 miilion decline in nonperforming multi-family residential
loans. Our focus on loans with relatively higher yields, adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity also
subjects us to a potentially higher degree of credit risk. Our loan delinquency rate (30 or more days delinquent) at
December 31, 2006 as a percentage of net loans (before allowance for loan losses) was 1.89% compared to 1.34% at
December 31, 2005,

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, we charged-off. net of recoveries, $3.8 million and $2.4
million, respectively. Charge-offs. net of recoveries, during the year ended December 31, 2006 consisted primarily
of $1.4 million of consumer loans, $982.000 of business loans and $532,000 of land and land development loans.
Our charge-offs, net of recoveries. as a percentage of average loans outstanding were 0.13% and 0.09%.
respectively, for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. Our strategy of focusing on loans with relatively
higher yields, adjustable interest rates and/or shorter terms to maturity subjects us to an increased level of credit risk.
Qur focus on such loans has contributed to an increased amount of loan delinguencies and charge-offs in recent
years.
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Noninterest Income. Noninterest income for the year ended December 31, 2006 was $29.1 million, an increase
of $2.5 million, or 9.4%, compared to $26.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Year Ended December 31,

Increase

(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 {Decrease) % Change
Deposit account fees and service charges $ 15054 8% 13,828 § 1,226 887 %
Debit card fees 2,736 2,104 632 30.04
Lending fees and service charges 3,290 3,353 (63) (1.88)
Morigage servicing rights valuation adjustments - 300 {800 {100.00)
Commissions and management fee income 3,886 3.802 84 2.21
Income (loss) from real estate operations, net (268) (N (261 3,728.57
Net gain (loss} on sales of:
Investment securities 21 14 7 50.00
Loans held for sale 2,084 1,928 156 R.09
Real estate owned (135) 85 (220) (258.82)
Gain on sale of branches 1,024 - 1,024 N/A
Other operating income 1,392 678 714 105.31
Total noninterest income 3 29084 % 26585 $ 2,499 940 %

The increase in noninterest income during the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended
December 31, 2005 was primarily attributable to a $1.2 million increase in deposit account fees and service charges
and a $1.0 million pre-tax gain on sale of two north-central Kansas bank offices and related deposits. The increase
in deposit account and debit card fees was largely due to an increase in the number of transaction accounts. At
December 31, 2006, we had 128,600 transaction accounts, an increase of 3,700 accounts, compared to December 31,

2005. The increases in noninterest incorﬂ1

e during the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the vear ended

December 31, 2005 were partially offset by no mortgage servicing rights valuation recapture in 2006 compared to

$800,000 of recapture during 2005.

Noninterest Expense. Our noninterest expense increased by $9.3 million, or 12.9%, to $81.8 million for the

year ended December 31, 2006 compared 1

0 $72.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Year Ended December 31, Increase

(Dollars in thousands) 2006 2005 (Decrease) % Change
Employee compensation $ 31,696 $ 28410 $ 3,286 11.57 %
Employee benefits 5.350 4,209 1,141 27.11
Payroll taxes 2,649 2,293 356 15.53
Management Recognition and Retention Plan 2,904 2,875 29 1.01
Employee Stock Ownership Plan 4,783 3,876 907 23.40
2003 Stock Option Plan 1.682 - 1.682 N/A
Occupancy, net 8.912 8.546 366 428
Data processing 2,200 2,024 176 8.70
Advertising 4,455 4,483 (28) (0.62)
Core deposit intangible asset amortization 1,753 1,835 (82) 4.47)
Professional services 2,308 2,262 46 2.03
Other 13,077 11,637 1,440 12.37

Total noninterest expense $ 81,769 § 72450 § 9319 1286 %

The increase in noninterest expense during the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the year ended

December 31, 2005 was primarily attribu
plans and employee benefits. The increasc

from continued personnel growth and a
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employee stock options. At December 31, 2006 we had 850 full-time equivalent employees compared to 772 full-
time equivalent employees at December 31, 2005. In accordance with SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment, we
began expensing stock options on January 1, 2006 using the modified-prospective application method. Other
operating expenses in 2006 increased primarily due to an increase of $874,000 in legal expense. Qur legal expenses
in 2006 primarily relate to a breach of contract lawsuit filed in 1995 against the federal government following the
enactment of the Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (“FIRREA™). Under
FIRREA, the federal government eliminated approximately 3$30.0 million of goodwill remaining from three
supervisory mergers we completed in 1982, In October 2006, we received a favorable opinion, which is now on
appeal. from the United States Court of Federal Claims awarding us $4.5 million in damages.

Income Tax Expense. Our income tax expense increased by $6.0 million, or 30.5%. to $25.8 million for the
year ended December 31, 2006 compared to $19.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase in
income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2006 compared to the same period in 2005 was primarily due
to an increase in net income. The effective income tax rate for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 38.5%
compared to 37.6% for the year ended December 31, 2005. This increase in our effective tax rate was the result of
an increase in nondeductible employee benefits.

Asset and Liability Management

Market risk is the risk of loss from adverse changes in market prices and interest rates. Our market risk arises
primarily from the interest rate risk that is inherent in our lending and deposit taking activities. The results of
operations for financial institutions may be materially and adversely affecied by changes in economic conditions,
including rapid changes in interest rates, declines in real estate market values and the monetary and fiscal policies of
the federal government. Our net interest income and the net present value of our assets, liabilities and off-balance
sheet contracts are subject to fluctuations in interest rates. When interest-earning assets such as loans are funded by
interest-bearing liabilities such as deposits and FHLBank advances and other borrowings, a changing interest rate
environment may have a significant effect on our financial condition and results of operations. To that end, we
actively manage our interest rate risk exposure. Additionally, our lean portfolio is subject to credit risk. We
manage credit risk primarily through our loan underwriting and oversight policies.

Additionally, the extent to which borrowers prepay loans is affected by prevailing interest rates. When interest
rates increase, borrowers are less likely to prepay loans; whereas, when interest rates decrease, borrowers are more
likely to prepay loans. Loan prepayments may affect the levels of loans retained in our portfolio and may affect our
net interest income.

The principal objectives of our interest rate risk management function are to evaluate the interest rate risk
inherent in certain balance sheet accounts, determine the level of risk appropriate given our business strategy,
operating environment, capital and liquidity requirements and performance objectives and manage the risk
consistent with guidelines approved by our Board of Directors. Through such management, we seek to reduce the
vulnerability of our operations to changes in interest rates. The extent of the movement in interest rates is an
uncertainty that could have a negative impact on our future earnings. Our Board of Directors has established an
Asset/Liability Committee, comprised of executive management, which is responsible for development and
oversight of our asset/liability policies and monitoring our interest rate risk position. The Asset/Liability Committee
meets on a monthly basis and reports trends and interest rate risk positions to our Board of Directors on a quarterly
basis.

Our interest rate sensitivity is monitored by management through the use of financial modeling software that
estimates the change in our net portfolio value (“NPV™) over a range of interest rate scenarios. NPV is the present
value of expected cash flows from assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet contracts. The NPV ratio, under any
interest rate scenarlo, is defined as the NPV in that scenario divided by the fair value of assets in the same scenario.
The OTS produces a similar analysis using its own model, based upon data submitted in our quarterly Thrifi
Financial Reports, the results of which may vary from our internal model primarily due to differences in
assumptions utilized, including estimated loan prepayment speeds, reinvestment rates and deposit turnover rates.
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Net Portfolio Value. The following table sets forth cur NPV as of December 31, 2007, as calculated by the
OTS:
NPV as a % of Portfolio
Net Portfolio Value Value of Assets
{Dollars in thousands) $ Amount $ Change % Change NPV Ratio Change
Change in Interest
Rates in Basis Points
(Rate Shock):
300 $ 381993 | % (12.836) (3.25) % 10.70 % 0.20) %
200 394,606 (223) (0.06) 10.99 0.09
100 400,061 5,232 1.40 11.08 0.18
50 398,190 3,361 0.85 11.01 0.11
Static 394,829 - - 10.90 -
-50 387.817 (7,.012) (1.78) 10.69 0.21)
-100 381,709 (13.120) (3.32) 10.50 (0.40)
-200 360,066 (34,763) (8.80) 9.87 (1.03)

Due to our recognition of the need to control our interest rate exposure, we have, in recent years, focused on
loans with relatively higher yields, adjustdble interest rates and shorter terms to maturity which are less subject to
interest rate risk and primarily consist‘ of multi-family residential, commercial real estate, land and land
development, construction, agricultural, business, warehouse mortgage lines of credit and consumer loans.

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the above interest rate risk measurements.
Modeling changes in NPV require the making of certain assumptions which may or may not reflect the manner in
which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard, the NPV model presented
assumes that the composition of our intelrest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at the beginning of a period
remains constant over the period being measured and also assumes that a particular change in the interest rates is
reflected uniformly across the yield curve’regardless of the duration to maturity or repricing of specific assets and
liabilities. Accordingly, although the NPV measurements and net interest income models provide an ipdication of
our interest rate risk exposure at a particuldr point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide
a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on our net interest income and will differ from
actual results.
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GAP Analysis. The following table sets forth the estimated maturity/repricing and the resulting gap between
our interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities at December 31, 2007. The estimated maturity/repricing
amounts reflect contractual maturitics and amortizations, assumed loan prepayments based on our historical
experience and estimated deposit account decay rates. Management believes these assumptions and estimates are
reasonable, but there can be no assurance in this regard.

Maturity / Repricing During the Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2008 2009 - 2010 2011 - 2012 After 2012 Total
Interest-earning assets(1):
Federal funds sold $ 161900 $ - $ - $ - $ 161,900
Investment securities (2) 109,820 9.380 4070 7.442 130,712
Mortgage-backed securities (2) 2.854 2.521 803 577 6,755
Net loans (3) 1,068.537 1,009,437 458,302 439,853 2,976,129
FHLBank Topeka stock 22.061 - - 43.776 65,837
Total interest-earning assets 1,365.172 1,021,338 463,175 491,648 3,341,333
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Savings accounts 44,206 70,730 47,154 26.523 188,613
Interest-bearing checking accounts 70,803 115,859 81,530 60,075 328,267
Money market accounts 121,004 165,585 63,687 - 350.276
Time deposits 1,315,193 71,720 12,083 117 1,399.113
FHIL.Bank Topeka advances and
other borrowings 234,640 226,538 225441 2,669 689,288
Total interest-bearing liabilities 1,785,846 650,432 429 895 80,384 2,955,557
Interest sensitivity gap $ (420,674) $ 370,906 33,280 $ 402,264 $ 385776
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap $ (420,674) $  (49,768) $ (16,488) $ 385776 $ -
Cumulative interest sensitivity gap as
a percentage of total assets (11.89) % (141 % {047 % 10.90 %
Cumulative net interest-earnings assets
a percentage of cumulative interest-
bearing liabilities 7644 % 97.96 % 99.42 % 113.05 %

(1) Tnterest earnings assets are included in the period in which the balances are expected to be redeployed
and/or repriced as a result of anticipated prepayments, scheduled rate adjustments and contractual maturities.

(2) Tncludes held to maturity and available for sale investment and mortgage-backed securities at amortized cost.

(3) For purposes of the gap analysis, loans receivable includes loans held for sale and nonperforming loans.
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Liguidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds are deposits; amortization of loans, loan prepayments and maturity of loans;
repayment, maturity or sale of investment and mortgage-backed securities; and other funds provided from
operations. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans and mortgage-backed securities arld maturing
investment securities are relatively predictable sources of funds, deposit flows and lean prepayments can be greatly
influenced by general interest rates, economic conditions and competition. We utilize FHLBank advances and other
borrowings and brokered time deposits as additional funding sources.

We actively manage our liquidity in an effort to maintain an adequate liquidity margin over the level necessary
to support expected and potential loan fundings and deposit withdrawals. Our liquidity level may vary throughout
the year, depending on economic conditionk, deposit fluctuations and loan funding needs.

During the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash provided by operating activities was $39.3 million, which
primarily consisted of net interest income before provision for loan losses. Net cash provided by investing activities
during the year ended December 31, 2007 |was $11.5 million and related to cash inflows from maturing investment
securities and a decrease in loans receivable partially offset by the purchase of available for sale investment
securities. During the year ended December 31, 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was $103.8 million,
which consisted primarily of net cash inflows from deposits and FHLBank advances, partially offset by the
repayment of FHLBank advances and cash|dividends paid on our common stock.

Deposits, particularly core deposits, typically provide a more preferable source of funding than FHLBank
advances and other borrowings. However] to the extent that competitive or market factors do not allow us to meet
our funding needs with deposits alone, FHLBank advances and other borrowings provide a readily available
alternative source of liquidity. Deposits génerated through our retail banking facilities increased $378.2 million, or
18.4%, to $2.4 billion at December 31, 2007 compared to $2.1 billion at December 31, 2006. The increase in
deposits during the year ended December 31, 2007 was primarily used to reduce our FHLBank advances. In
addition, due to a decreased volume of lénding activity we had $241.5 million of cash and cash equivalenis at
December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, we had time deposits maturing within the next 12 months amounting to
$1.3 billion. Based upon historical experience, we anticipate that a significant portion of the maturing time deposits
will be renewed with us.

In addition to cash flows generated by loan and securities payments and prepayments, we have additional
borrowing capacity to fund our asset growth. The average balance of our FHL.Bank advances and other borrowings
was $812.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2007 compared to $893.4 million for the year ended December
31, 2006. To date, substantially all of our borrowings have consisted of FHLBank advances. Pursuant to blanket
collateral agreements with the FHLBank|, we have pledged gualifying residential, multi-family residential and
commercial real estate mortgages, resideftial construction, commercial construction and agricultural real estate
loans with carrying vailues totaling appn:)I imately $1.3 billion and $1.6 billion at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Other qualifying collateral can be pledged in the event additional borrowing capacity is required.
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Aggregate Contractual Obligations and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We believe we have sufficient liquidity to fund existing and future loan commitments, to fund maturing time
deposits and dernand deposit withdrawals, to invest in other interest-earning assets and to meet operating expenses.
At December 31, 2007, we had the following contractual obligations (excluding bank deposits and interest) and
lending commitments:

Due In
Total at
December 31, 2009 - 2011 - After

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2008 2010 2012 2012
Contractual obligations:

FHIL.Bank Topeka advances and

other borrowings $ 689288 $5 24,165 $120,185 $ 25000 $ 519.938
Recourse obligations on assets 18,953 18,953 - - -
Annual rental commitments under non-
cancelable operating leases 4,410 1,125 1,386 558 1,341

Total contractual obligations 712,651 44243 121,571 25,558 521,279
Lending commitments:

Commitments to originate loans 68,149 68,149 - - -

Commitments to sell loans (50,008) (50,008) - - -

Commitments to purchase loans 32,970 32,970 - - -

Loans in process 376,186 206,104 170,082 - -

Standby letters of credit 2,585 2,585 - - -
Unused lines of credit:

Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 210,419 210,419 - - -

Business loans 221,493 221,493 - - -

Consumer loans 133,194 133,194 - - -
Total lending commitments and

unused lines of credit 994 988 824,906 170,082 - -
Total contractual obligations, lending

commitments and unused lines of credit $ 1,707,639 $ 869,149 $291653 § 25,558 $ 521,279

We have not used, and have no intention to use, any significant off-balance sheet financing arrangements for
liquidity purposes or otherwise. Qur primary financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk are limited to loan
servicing for others, our obligations to fund loans to customers pursuant to existing commitments and commitments
to purchase and sell mortgage loans. In addition, we have certain risks due to limited recourse arrangements on
loans serviced for others and recourse obligations related to loan sales. At December 31, 2007, the maximum total
dollar amount of such recourse was approximately $19.0 million. Based on historical experience, at December 31,
2007, we had established a liability of $733,000 with respect to this recourse obligation. In addition, we have not
had, and have no intention to have, any significant transactions, arrangements or other relationships with any
unconsolidated, special purpose entities.

For more information regarding our contractual obligations. commitments, contingent liabilities and off-balance
sheet arrangements see “Note 22 — Commitments, Contingencies and Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet
Risk” included in Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data, in Part IT of this Annual Report on Form
10-K.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The financial statements, accompan)Jing notes, and related financial data presented in Item 8. Financial
Statements and Supplementary Data in Part Il of this Annual Report on Form 10-K have been prepared in
accordance with GAAP, which require the measurement of financial position and operating results in terms of
historical dollars without considering the changes in purchasing power of money over time due to inflation, The
impact of inflation is reflected in increased|cost of our operations. Most of our assets and liabilities are monetary in
nature; therefore, the impact of interest rates has a greater impact on its performance than the effects of general
levels of inflation. Interest rates do not nec!essarily move in the same direction or to the same extent as the prices of
goods and services.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
Statements of Financial Accounting Standards

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157, Fair Value Measurements (“SFAS No. 1577). SFAS No,
157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under generally accepted accounting
principles and expands disclosure about fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 emphasizes that fair value is a
market-based measurement, not an entity-:spcciﬁc measurement. Therefore, a fair value measurement should be
determined based on the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability. This
staternent clarifies that market participant assumptions include assumptions about risk. A fair value measurement
should include an adjustment for risk if matket participants would include one in pricing the related asset or liability,
even if the adjustment is difficult to detetmine. This statement also clarifies that market participant assumptions
should also include assumptions about thk effect of a restriction on the sale or use of an asset. This statement
clarifies that fair value measurement for a‘ liability should reflect nonperformance risk (the risk that the obligation
will not be fulfilled). This statement expands disclosures about the use of fair value to measure assets and liabilities
in interim and annual periods subsequent 0 initial recognition. The disclosures focus on the inputs used to measure
fair value and for recurring fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs and the effect of the
measurements on earnings {or changes in net assets) for the period. SFAS No. 157 is effective for financial
statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not anticipate that the adoption of
SFAS No. 157 will have a material impact bn our consolidated financial statements.

In September 2006, the FASB issued ;SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Starements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (“SFAS No. 158™).
SFAS No. 158 requires an employer tcl recognize the overfunded or underfunded status of defined benefit
postretirement plans as an asset or liabilityl in its statement of financial position. The funded status is measured as
the difference between the assets at fair value and bencfit obligation {the projected benefit obligation for pension
plans or the accumulated benefit obligation for other postretirement benefit plans). An employer is also required to
measure the funded status of a plan as of the date of its year-end statement of financial position with changes in the
funded status recognized through comprehl nsive income. SFAS No. 158 also requires certain disclosures regarding
the effects on net periodic benefit cost for the next fiscal year that arise from delayed recognition of gains or losses,
prior service costs or credits and the transition asset or obligation. An employer with publicly traded equity
securities is required to initially recognize |the funded status of a defined benefit postretirement plan and to provide
the required disclosures as of the end of the fiscal year ending after December 15, 2006. The adoption of SFAS No.
158 did not have a material impact on our ¢onsolidated financial statements.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159, The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabifities, Including an amendment of FASB Sratement No. 15 ("SFAS No. 1597). SFAS No. 159 provides an
alternative measurement treatment for certain financial assets and liabilities, under an instrument-by-instrument
election, that permits fair value to be used for both initial and subsequent measurement, with changes in fair value
recognized in earnings. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. We do not
anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 159 will have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, the FASB issue::i SFAS No. 160, Noncontrolling Interests in Consolidated Financial

Statements — an amendment of ARB No. 51 (“SFAS No. 160™). The objective of this stalement is to improve the
relevance, comparability and transparency of the financial information that a reporting entity provides in its
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consolidated financial statements by establishing accounting and reporting standards. SFAS No. 160 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15. 2008. We do not anticipate that the adoption of SFAS No. 160 will have
a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007, The FASB issucd SFAS No. 14IR, Business Combinations (“SFAS No. 141R”). The
objective of this statement is to improve the relevance, representational faithfulness and comparability of the
information that a reporting entity provides in its financial reports about a business combination and its effects.
SFAS No. 14IR establishes principles and requirements for how the acquirer recognizes and measures in its
financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed and any noncontrolling interest in the
acquiree, recognizes and measures the goodwill acquired in the business combination or a gain from a bargain
purchase and determines what information to disclose to enable users of the financial statements to evaluate the
nature and financial effects of the business combination. SFAS No. 14IR applies prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period
beginning on or after December 15. 2008.

SEC Staff Accounting Bulleting

In November 2007, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 109, Written Loan Commitments Recorded at
Fair Value Through Earnings (“SAB 1097). SAB 109 expresses the views of SEC staff (“Staff”) regarding written
loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings under GAAP. SAB 105, Application of
Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments (“SAB 105”) provided the views of Staff regarding derivative loan
commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings pursvant to SFAS No. 133, Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities. SAB 105 stated that in measuring fair value of a derivative loan
commitment, it was inappropriate to incorporate the expected net future cash flows related to the associated
servicing of the loan. SAB 109 supersedes SAB 105, and expresses the current view of Staff that, consistent with
the guidance in SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assers, and SFAS No. 159, the expected net
future cash flows related to the associated servicing of the loan should be included in the measurement of all written
loan commitments that are accounted for at fair value through earnings. The SEC expects registrants to apply the
provisions of SAB 109 on a prospective basis to derivative loan commitments issued or modified in fiscal quarters
beginning after December 31, 2007. We do not anticipate that the adoption of SAB 109 will have a material impact
on our consolidated financial statements.

In December 2007 the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No 110, Certain Assumptions Used in Valuation
Methods (“SAB 1107). SAB 110 expresses the views of Staff regarding the use of a “simplified” method, as
discussed in SAB 107, Share-Based Payment, in developing an estimate of the expected term of “plain vanilla”
share options in accordance with SFAS No. 123(revised 2004), Share-Based Payment. Staff indicated in SAB 107
that it will accept a company’s election to use the simplified method, regardless of whether the company has
sufficient information to make more refined estimates of expected term. At the time SAB 107 was issued, the Staff
believed that more detatled external information about employee exercise behavior (e.g., employee exercise patterns
by industry and/or other categories of companies) would, over time, become readily available to companies.
Therefore, the Staff stated in SAB 107 that it would not expect a company to use the simplified method for option
grants after December 31, 2007. The Staff understands that such detailed information about employee exercise
behavior may not be widely available by December 31, 2007. Accordingly, the Staff will continue to accept, under
certain circumstances, the use of the simplified method beyond December 31, 2007.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
The information required herein is incorporated by reference from “Asset and Liability Management” and

“Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices” included in Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations in Part 11 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TierOne Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying cgl)nsolidated statements of financial condition of TierOne Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and, 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in
stockholders’ equity and comprehensive in|come, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2007. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management,
Our responsibility is 1o express an opinion on these consclidated financial statements based on our audits,

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free Iof material misstatement. An audit includes examining. on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and signiﬁca'rlt estimates made by management, as well as evaluvating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial posttion of TierOne Corporation| and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in
conformity with U.S. generally accepted aécounting principles.

As discussed in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2006, the Company
changed its method of accounting for stock-based benefit plans.

We also have audited, in accordance|with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), TierOne Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Internal Controf - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COS0), and our report dated March 10, 2008 expressed an unquatified
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

s/ KPMG LLP

Lincoln, Nebraska
March 10, 2008
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TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006
ASSETS
Cash and due from banks $ 79,561 % 86,808
Federal funds sold 161,900 -
Total cash and cash equivalents 241,461 86,808
Investment securities:
Held to maturity, at cost which approximates fair value 70 90
Available for sale, at fair value 130,481 105,000
Mortgage-backed securities, available for sale, at fair value 6.689 12,272
Loans receivable:
Net loans (includes loans held for sale of $9.348 and $19,285 at
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively) 2,976,129 3,050,160
Allowance for loan losses (66,540) (33,129)
Net loans after allowance for loan losses 2,909,589 3,017,031
FHLBank Topeka stock, at cost 65,837 62,022
Premises and equipment, net 38,028 39.821
Accrued interest receivable 21,248 23,023
Goodwill 42,101 42,228
Other intangible assets, net 6,744 8,391
Mortgage servicing rights (lower of cost or marker), net 14,530 12,467
Other assets 60,988 22,016
Total assets $ 3.537,766 % 3,431,169
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Liabilities:
Deposits $ 2430544 $ 2,052,343
FHLBank Topeka advances and other borrowings 689,288 962,376
Advance payments from borrowers for taxes, insurance and other escrow funds 30,205 27,203
Accrued interest payable 6,269 6,620
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 35,870 29,344
Total liabilities 3,192,176 3,077,886
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.01 par value. 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued - -
Common stock, $0.01 par value. 60,000,000 shares authorized; 18,058,946 and
18,041.413 shares issued at December 31, 2007 and 2006. respectively 226 226
Additional paid-in capital 366.042 358,733
Retained earnings, substantially restricted 94,630 12,111
Treasury stock. at cost; 4,516.129 and 4,533,662 shares at
December 31. 2007 and 2006, respectively (105,008) (105,406)
Unallocated common stock held by Employee Stock Ownership Plan (10,159) (11,664}
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (141) (717)
Total stockholders' equity 345.550 353,283

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 3537766 $ 3,431,169

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

79



TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Operations

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 2007 2006 2005
Interest income:
Loans receivable $ 220,046 % 214727  §% 169.177
Investment securities 11.134 9.075 8.165
Other interest-earning assets 2.841 85 1
Total interest income 234,021 223,887 177.343
Interest expense:
Deposits 81,981 60,227 41,947
FHLBank Topeka advances and other borrowings 35,920 37.792 30,481
Total interest expense 117,901 98.019 72,428
Net interest income 116,120 125,868 104,915
Provision for loan losses 68,101 6,053 6.436
Net interest income after provision for loan losses 48.019 119.815 98.479
Noninterest income:
Fees and service charges 23,621 22,230 21,783
Debit card fees 3.420 2,736 2,104
Loss from real estate operations, net (445) (268} (N
Net gain (loss) on sales of:
Investment securities - 21 14
Loss on impairment of securities (188) - -
Loans held for sale 2,844 2,084 1,928
Real estate owned (225) (135) 85
Other operating income 1,310 2,416 678
Total noninterest income 30,337 29,084 26,585
Noninterest expense:
Salaries and employee benefits 52,291 49,064 41,663
Occupancy, net 9,520 8912 8,546
Data processing 2,443 2,200 2,024
Advertising 5,041 4,455 4,483
Other operating expense 25,762 17.138 15.734
Total noninierest expense 95.057 81,769 72.450
Income (loss) before income taxes (16,701) 67,130 52,614
Income tax expense (benefit) (4,276) 25.815 19,782
Net income (loss) $ (12,425) $ 41315 § 32.832
Net income (loss) per common share, basic $ 07 3% 250 % 2.02
Net income (loss) per common share, diluted b 074 % 241 % 1.97
Dividends declared per common share $ 031 § 027 § 0.23
Average common shares outstanding, basic (000's) 16,719 16,494 16,221
Average common shares outstanding, diluted (000's) 16,719 17,147 16,690

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income

Unearned
Unallocated Common Stock
Retained Common Stock Held by the
Additional Earnings, Held by the Management Accumulated Other
Common Paid-In Substantially Treasury  Employee Stock  Recognition and Comprehensive  Total Stockholders'
Pollars in thousands) Stock Capital Restricted Stock Ownership Plan  Retention Plan  Income (Loss), Net Equity
alance at December 31, 2004 236 § 355986 % 46,263 §  (98.254) § (14.674) 3 (12,229) § (295) § 277.023
ommon stock eamed by
employees in Employee
Stock Ownership Plan - 2446 . - 1,505 - - 3951
mortization of awards under the
Management Recognition and
Retention Plan - 214 - - - 2.86) - 3,075
reasury stock reissued under 2003
Stock Option Plan - 59 - 264 - - - 205
epurchase of common stock
(148,538 shares) - - - (3.594) - - - (3,594)
ividends paid ($0.23 per common share} - - (3.813) - - - - (3.813)
‘'omprehensive income:
| Net income - - 32,832 . - - - 32,832
| Change in unrealized loss on
available for sale securities,
net of tx and
reclassification adjustmem - - - - - - {812) {812)
| Total comprehensive income - - 32,832 - - - (812) 32,020
ralance at December 31, 2005 226 358,587 75,282 {101,584) (13,169) (9.368) (1,107) 308,867
‘ommeon stock eamned by
- employees in Employee
- Stock Ownership Plan - 3404 . - 1,505 - - 4,909
ransfer of uncamed common stock
" held by Management Recognition and
Retention Plan upon adoption of
" SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006 - {9,368) - - - 9,368 - -
L mortization of awards undet the
Management Recognition and
Retention Plan - 2,904 - - - - - 2,904
mortization of stock optiens under
2003 Stock Option Plan - 1,682 - - - - - 1682
epurchase of common stock
(152.984 shares) - - - (4,825) - - (4.825)
reasury stock reissued under 2003
Stock Option Plan - (216) - 1003 - - 787
xcess tax benefit realized from stock-
based compensation plans - 960 - - - - 960
ax benefits realized from cerain costs
deducted in mutual to stock conversion - 780 - - - - - 780
ividends paid ($0.27 per common share} - - (4.486) - - - - {4.486)
‘'omprehensive income:
Net income - - 41,315 - - - - 41,315
Change in unrealized loss on
available for sale securities,
| net of 1ax and
reclassification adjustment - - - - - - 390 90
otal comprehensive income - - 41315 - - - 350 41,705
226§ 358,733 § 112,111 § (105406) $ (11.664) § - 3§ (717) 3 353,283

talance at December 31, 2006
:
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Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income (Continued)

Unallocated
Retained Common Stock
Additional Earnings, Held by the Accumulated Other
Common Paid-In Substantially Treasury  Employee Stock  Comprehensive  Total Stockholders'
(Dallars in thousands) Stock Capital Restricted Stock Ownership Plan  Income (Loss), Net Equity
Balance at December 31, 2006 3 226§ 358733 % 1211 $ (105406) $ (11.664) 3 (117) $ 353.283
Common stock earned by employees in
Employee Stock Ownership Plan - 2.441 - - 1,505 - 3046
Amortization of awards under the
Management Recognition and
Reiention Plan 2,904 - - - - 2,04
Amortization of stock options under
2003 Stoeck Option Plan - 1.682 - - - - 1.682
Repurchase of common
stock (8,367 shares) - - - (204) - - (204)
Treasury stock reissued under 2003
Stock Option Plan - (140) - 602 - - 462
Excess tax benefit realized from stock-
based compensation plans - 422 - - - - 422
Dividends paid ($0.31 per common share) - {5,213 - - - (5.213)
Cumulative effect of adoption of FASB -
[nterpretation No. 48 on Fanaury 1, 2007 - 157 - - - 157
Comprehensive income:
Net loss - . (12,425) - - - (12,425)
Change in unrealized loss on available for sale
securities, net of tax - - - - - 576 576
Total comprehensive income (loss) - - (12,425) - - 576 (11,849
Balance at December 31, 2007 3 226§ 366042 % 94.630 § (105.008) $ (10,159) 345,590

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(Dollars in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2007

2006

2005

~ Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating activities:

Net income (loss) $ (12,425 $ 41315 § 32832
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Net premium amortization {accretion) of investment and mortgage-backed securities (2,194) (96) 668
Premises and equipment depreciation and amortization 4,017 3,750 3.613
Amortization of other intangible assets 1,647 1,752 1,836
Amortization of discount on FHL.Bank Topeka advances (255) {(255) (253)
Employee Stock Ownership Plan compensation expense 3.946 4909 3,951
2003 Management Recognition and Retention Plan compensation expense 2,904 2,904 3.075
2003 Stock Option Plan compensation expense 1,682 1.682 -
Amortization of premiums {accretion of discounts) on net loans (3,267) (2,579 2,926
FHLBank Topeka stock dividend (3.815) (3,531) (2.685)
Deferred income tax benefit (16,414) (1913 (1.112)
Provision for loan losses 68,101 6,053 6,436
Provision for real estate owned losses 636 370 73
Provision for uncollectible receivable 4,767 - -
Recovery of uncollectible receivable (1,633} - -
Provision for VISA lawsuit settlement 700 - -
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 341,857 245,074 256,506
Originations and purchases of loans held for sale (329,076)  (253.609) (251,288)
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compensation plans (422) (960) -
Premium on sale of branch deposits - (1,089) -
Net {gain} loss on sales of:
Investment securities - 2n (14)
Loss on impairment of securities 188 - -
Loans held for sale (2,844) (2,084) (1,928}
Real estate owned 225 135 (85)
Premises and equipment 9 (108) 21
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable 1,775 (3,833) (3.,617)
Other assets (28,482) (1,286} (1,456)
Accrued interest payable (351 (669) 981
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 8,038 2,293 (2,811)
Net cash provided by operating activities 39,314 39,926 47,667
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of investment and mortgage-backed securities, available for sale (318,425) (94 ,488) (44510
Proceeds from sale of investment and mortgage-backed securities, available for sale 10 2,326 3,230
Proceeds from maturities of investment securities, available for sale 295,822 90,477 24,396
Proceeds from principal repayments of investment
and mortgage-backed securities, available for sale and held to maturity 5.659 7.516 16,441
Decrease {increase) in loans receivable 23,379 (206,581) (201,782)
Purchase of FHLLBank Topeka stock - - (1,522)
Additions to premises and equipment (2,235) (5,037) (5,723)
Proceeds from sale of premises and equipment 2 444 147
Proceeds from sale of real estate owned 7,290 7.172 1,433
Marine Bank branch purchase, net of cash acquired - 7,568 -
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 11.502 (190.603) (167,831)
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TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Cash flows from financing activities:
Net increase in deposits $ 378201 % 27658 3 173.558
Net advances (repayment) on FHLBank Topeka line of credit
and short-term advances and other borrowings (72,619) 66,912 (254,003
Proceeds from FHLBank Topeka long-term advances and other borrowings 50,000 440.000 335.000,
Repayments of FHLBank Topeka long-term advances and other borrowings (250.214)  (352,205) {107,484
Repayment of junior subordinated debentures - (7.000) -
Net increase (decrease) in advances from borrowers for taxes,
insurance and other escrow funds 3,002 2.339 (1,701
Repurchase of common stock (204) (4.825) (3,594
Dividends paid on common stock (5,213) (4,486) (3,813
Excess tax benefit realized from the exercise of stock options 45 130 4
Excess tax benefit realized from the vesting of Management Recognition and
Retention Plan shares 377 830 -
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 462 787 205
Net cash transferred due to sale of branches and deposits - {20,689) -
Net cash provided by financing activities 103,837 149 451 138,168
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 154,653 (1.226) 18,004
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 86,808 88.034 70,030
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 241461 % 86808 $ 838034
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information:
Cash paid during year for:
Interest § 118,252 % 98,689 71,447
Income taxes. net of refunds $ 18,769 § 25,106 20,()9;5:
Noncash investing activities: I
Transfers from loans to real estate owned and other assets through foreclosure $ 9202 § 10495 $ 3,485:
Loss on impairment of securities 188 § - % .

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

84



TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Organization. TierOne Corporation (“Company™) is a Wisconsin corporation, incorporated in 2002 for the
purpose of becoming the holding company for TierOne Bank (“Bank™), a federal savings bank. On QOctober 1, 2002,
the Bank converted from mutual to stock form of ownership. On the same date, the Company acquired all of the
issued and outstanding capital stock of the Bank with a portion of the proceeds from the Company’s initial public
offering.

As used in this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the terms “we,” “us,” or “our” refer to TierOne
Corporation and its wholly owned subsidiary, TierOne Bank.

Basis of Consolidation. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company. its wholly
owned subsidiary, the Bank, and the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries, TMS Corporation of the Americas (“TMS")
and United Farm & Ranch Management (“UFARM”). TMS is the holding company of TierOne Investments and
Insurance, Inc. (d/bfa TierOne Financial), a company that administers the sale of insurance and securities products,
and TierOne Reinsurance Company, which reinsures credit life and disability insurance policies. UFARM provides
agricultural customers with professional farm and ranch real estate management and real estate brokerage services.

Estimates. The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“GAAP") requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amount of assets and liabilities at the date of the statement of financial condition, and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities. We classify our investment sccurities portfolio between
securities we intend to hold to maturity and those securities available for sale.

Securities classified as held to maturity are securities we have the ability and positive intent to hold to maturity
regardiess of changes in market condition, liquidity needs or changes in general economic conditions. These
securities are stated at cost, adjusted for amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts over the period to
maturity using the interest method.

Securities classified as available for sale are securities we intend to hold for an indefinite period of time, but not
necessarily to maturity. Any decision to sell a security classified as available for sale would be based on various
factors, including movements in interest rates, changes in the maturity mix of our assets and liabilities, liquidity
needs, regulatory capital considerations and other factors. These securitics are carried at fair value with unrealized
gains or losses reported as increases or decreases in cumulative other comprehensive income, net of the related
deferred tax effect. Realized gains or losses, determined on the basis of the cost of specific securities sold, are
included in our results of operations. Unrealized losses for securities classified as held to maturity and available for
sale which are deemed to be other than temporary are charged to operations.

Accounting for Derivatives and Hedging Activities. We account for our derivatives and hedging activities in
accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard (*SFAS™) No. 133, Accounting for Derivarive
Instruments and Hedging Activity, as amended by SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Cerrain Hedging Activities and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement No. 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities. These statements establish accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments and
hedging activities, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, and requires that an entity
recognize all derivatives as assets or liabilities in the statements of financial condition and measure them at fair
value. If certain conditions are met, an entity may elect to designate a derivative as follows: (a)a hedge of the
exposure to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment; or (b) a
hedge of the exposure to variable cash flows of a forecasted transaction. These statements generally provide for
matching the timing of the recognition of the gain or loss on derivatives designated as hedging instruments with the
recognition of the changes in the fair value of the item being hedged. Depending on the type of hedge, such
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recognition will be either net income or other comprehensive income. For a derivative not qualified for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133, changes in fair value will be recognized in net income in the period of change.

Loans Receivable. Net loans are stated at unpaid principal balances, plus/minus unamortized premiums,
discounts and deferred loan origination fees and costs and loans in process. Interest on loans is credited to income
as earned. Interest is not accrued on nonperforming loans (loans 90 or more days delinquent). Premiums or
discounts on loans are amortized into income over the life of the loan using the interest method, Loan crigination
fees received in excess of certain direct origination costs are deferred and amortized into income over the contractual
life of the loan using the interest method or recognized when the loan is sold or paid off. Additionally, accrual of
interest and amortization of deferred loan fees on problem ioans are excluded from income when, in the opinion of
management, such suspension is warranted. Income is subsequently recognized only to the extent cash payments are
received and, in management’s judgment, the borrower’s ability to make periodic interest and principal payments
has returned to normal, in which case the loan is returned to accruat status.

Loans Held for Sale. Upon origination or purchase, we designate certain loans receivable as held for sale, as
we do not intend te hold such loans through maturity. Loans held for sale generally consist of fixed-rate, one-to-four
family residential loans and are carried at the lower of cost or market value, determined on an aggregate basis. Gains
or losses on such lpans are recognized utilizing the specific identification method.

Provision and Allowance for Loan Losses. A provision for loan losses is charged to income when it is
determined to be required based on our analysis. The allowance is maintained at a level to cover all known and
inherent losses in the loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonable to estimate at each reporting date. We
review the loan portfolio no less frequently than quarterly in order to identify those inherent losses and to assess the
overall collection probability of the portfolio. Our review includes a quantitative analysis by loan category, using
historical loss experience, classifying loans pursuant to a grading system and consideration of a series of qualitative
loss factors. The evaluation process includes, among other things. an analysis of delinquency trends, nonperforming
loan trends, the level of charge-offs and recoveries, prior loss experience, total loans outstanding, the volume of loan
originations, the type, size, terms and geographic concentration of loans held by us, the value of collateral securing
loans, the number of loans requiring heightened oversight and general economic conditions. This evaluation is
inherently subjective as it requires estimates that are susceptible to significant revision as more information becomes
available or as future events change.

The allowance for loan losses consists of two elements. The first element is an allocated allowance established
for toans identified by our credit review function that are evaluated individually for impairment and are considered
to be impaired. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that we
will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to the contractual
terms of the loan agreement. [mpairment is measured by: (a} the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral
dependent; (b) the present value of expected future cash flows; or (c) the loan’s observable market price. The second
element is an allowance established for losses which are probable and reasonable to estimate on each of our
categories of outstanding loans. While we use available information to recognize probable losses on loans inherent
in the portfolio, future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes in economic conditions and
other factors. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically
review our allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require us to recognize additions to the allowance for loan
losses based on their judgment of information available to them at the time of their examination.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets. Goodwill represents the excess price paid over the fair value of the tangible
and intangible assets and liabilities acquired in connection with the August 27, 2004 acquisition of United Nebraska
Financial Co. ("UNFC”). There was no goodwill recorded in connection with our Marine Bank branch purchase on
June 2, 2006. In accordance with SFAS No. 142, Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, goodwill and indefinite-
lived intangibles balances are not being amortized, but are tested for impairment annually in accordapce with the
provisions of SFAS No. 142. SFAS No. 142 also requires intangible assets with estimated useful lives be amortized
over their respective estimated useful lives to their residual values, and reviewed for impairment in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, Accounting for Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.
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We have identified a single reporting unit for purposes of goodwill impairment testing. The impairment test is
therefore performed on a consolidated basis. We perform our goodwill impairment analysis on an annual basis
during the third quarter. Additional impairment analysis may be performed if circumstances or events occur which
may have an impact on the fair value of our goodwill, Potential impairment is indicated when the carrying value of
the entity, including goodwill, exceeds its fair value. [f potential for impairment ¢xists, the fair value of the entity is
subsequently measured against the fair value of its underlying assets and liabilities, excluding goodwill, 10 estimate
an implied fair value of the entity’s goodwill. Impairment loss is recognized for any excess of the carrying value of
the entity’s goodwill over the implied fair value. We performed our impairment analysis as of September 30, 2007
and concluded that no potential impairment of goodwill existed since the fair value of our goodwill exceeded its
carrying value. Additionally, we performed our impairment analysis as of December 31, 2007 due to the decline in
our stock price and prevailing economic conditions and concluded that no potential impairment existed.

The value of core deposit intangible asscts acquired in conncction with the UNFC and Marine Bank
transactions, which is subject to amortization, is included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition as
other intangible assets. Determining the amount of identifiable intangible assets and their average lives involves
multiple assumptions and estimates and is typically determined by performing a discounted cash flow analysis,
which involves a combination of any or all of the following assumptions: customer attrition, account runoff,
alternative funding costs, deposit servicing costs and discount rates. The core deposit intangible assets have been
estimated to have nine- to ten-year lives. Core deposit intangible assets arc amortized using an accelerated method
of amortization which is recorded in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as other operating expense.

We review our core deposit intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that we may not recover our investment in the underlying assets or liabilities which gave rise to these
intangible assets. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, no events or circumstances triggered an
impairment charge against our core deposit intangible assets.

Mortgage Servicing Rights. On January 1, 2007 we adopted SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of
Financial Assets — an Amendment of FASB Statement No. 140 (“SFAS No. 156”). In accordance with SFAS No.
156, we have elected to continue to utilize the amortization method for all of our mortgage servicing right assets,
thus, carrying our mortgage servicing rights at the “lower of cost or market” {fair value). Under the amortization
method, we amortize mortgage servicing rights in proportion to and over the period of net servicing income.
Income generated as a result of new servicing assets is reported as net gain on sale of loans held for sale in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations, Loan servicing fees, net of amortization of mortgage servicing rights, is
recorded in fees and service charges in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

We capitalize the estimated fair value of mortgage servicing rights upon the sale of loans. The estimated value
takes into consideration contractually known amounts, such as loan balance, term and interest rate. These estimates
are impacted by loan prepayment speeds, servicing costs and discount rates used to compute a present value of the
cash flow stream. We evaluate the fair value of mortgage servicing rights on a quarterly basis using current
prepayment speed, cash flow and discount rate estimates. Changes in these estimates impact fair value and could
require us to record a valuation allowance or recovery. The fair value of morngage servicing rights is highly
sensitive to changes in assumptions. Changes in prepayment speed assumptions have the most significant impact on
the fair value of mortgage servicing rights. Generally, as interest rates decline, prepayments accelerate with
increased refinance activity, which results in a decrease in the fair value of mortgage servicing rights. As interest
rates rise, prepayments generally slow, which results in an increase in the fair value of mortgage servicing rights.
All assumptions are reviewed for reasonableness on a quarterly basis and adjusted as necessary to reflect current and
anticipated market conditions. Thus, any measurement of fair value is limited by the conditions existing and the
assumptions utilized as of a particular point in time, and those assumptions may not be appropriate if applied at a
different point in time. We currently do not utilize direct financial hedges to mitigate the effect of changes in the
fair value of our mortgage servicing rights.
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Transfers of Financial Assets. Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the
assets has been surrendered. Control over transferred assets is deemed to be surrendered when: (a) the assets have
been isolated; (b} the transferee obtains the right (free of conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that
right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets; and (¢) we do not maintain effective control over the transferred
assets through an agreement to repurchase them before their maturity. We have not had any significant transactions,
arrangements or other relationships with any special purpose entities.

Real Estate Owned. Real estate acquired through foreclosure is considered to be held for sale and is initially
recorded at estimated fair value. Subsequent to foreclosure, these assets are carried at the lower of carrying value or
fair value, less selling costs. Changes in the valuation allowances for unrealized gains and losses and income and
operating expenses are included in other income of the current period.

Premises and Equipment. Premises and equipment are recorded at cost and include expenditures for new
facilities and equipment and items that substantially increase the useful lives of existing buildings and equipment.
Premises and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful life using the straight-ling method of
depreciation. Expenditures for normal repairs and maintenance are charged to earnings as incurred. When facilities
or equipment are retired or otherwise disposcd of, the related cost and accumulated depreciation are removed from
the respective accounts and the resulting gain or loss is recorded in income.

Income Taxes. We file a consolidated federal income tax return on a calendar-year basis. Deferred income
taxes reflect the net tax effects of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary
differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enaciment date.

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48”). FIN 48 requires that we
determine whether a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. Once it is determined that a
position meets the recognition threshold, the position is measured to determine the amount of benefit to be
recognized in the financial statements. Any interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recorded in
income tax expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Earnings Per Share. Basic earnings per sharc (“EPS”) is computed by dividing net income by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding for the period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could
occur if securities or other contracts to issue common stock were exercised. It is computed after giving
consideration to the weighted average dilutive effect of our Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP™) shares, 2003
Stock Option Plan (“SOP”) shares and 2003 Management Recognition and Retention Plan (“MRRP") shares.

Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123(R), Share-Based Payment (“SFAS No. 123(R)"), requires that
compensation expense related to stock-based payment transactions be recognized in the financial statements and that
expense be measured based on the fair value of the equity or liability instrument issued. SFAS No. 123(R) also
requires that forfeitures be estimated over the vesting period of the instrument. We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using
the modified-prospective method and have applied this method to the accounting for our stock options and restricted
shares. Under the modified-prospective method, stock-based employee compensation expense recognized after
adoption includes: (a) stock-based expense for all awards granted prior to, but not yet vested as of January (., 2006,
based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the original provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting
Jor Stock-Based Compensation (“SFAS No. 1237), and (b) stock-based employee compensation expense for all
awards granted subsequent to January 1, 2006, based on the grant date fair value estimated in accoriance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 123(R). Prior to January 1, 2006, as permitted by SFAS No. 123, we accounted for stock-
based payments to employees using Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, Accounting for Stock
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Issued 1o Employees, and, therefore recorded no stock-based employee compensation expense for employee stock
options. Results for periods prior to January 1, 2006 have not been restated.

Comprehensive Income. Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net income (loss) and net unrealized gains
(losses) on securities and is reported, net of tax, in the Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity.
Increases (decreases) in other comprehensive income are net of related income taxes (benefit) of $361,000,
$210,000 and ($500,000) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Reclassification
adjustments for realized gross losses included in income, were approximately $295,000, $291,000 and $57.000, net
of tax benefit of approximately $114,000, $109,000 and $20,000, respectively, for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. For purposes of the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand, cash due from banks and federal funds sold.

Reclassifications. Certain prior years amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 presentation.
2. Industry Segment Information

Our activities are considered to be a single industry segment for financial reporting purposes. We are engaged in
the business of commercial and retail banking, investment management, insurance and farm and ranch management
and real estate brokerage services with operations conducted through 69 banking offices located in Nebraska, lowa
and Kansas and nine loan production offices located in Arizona, Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and North
Carolina. Substantially all income is derived from a diverse base of commercial, mortgage and retail lending
activities and investments.

3. Earnings Per Share

Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income (loss) by the weighted average number of common shares
outstanding for each reporting period. Diluted EPS reflects the potential dilution that could occur if securities or
other contracts to issue common stock were exercised. Diluted EPS is computed after giving constderation to the
weighted average dilutive effect of our 2003 SOP shares and 2003 MRRP shares. All stock options are assumed to
be 100% vested for purposes of the EPS computations. Due to the loss for the year ended December 31, 2007, no
potentially dilutive shares were included in the loss per share calculation as including such shares would be anti-
dilutive. The following table is a reconciliation of basic and diluted EPS:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005

(Dollars and shares in thousands, except
per share data) Basic Diluted Basic Diluted Basic Diluted
Net income (loss) $(12.425) $(12.425) $41.315 $41315 $32.832 $32.832
Total weighted average basic

common shares outstanding 16.719 16,719 16.494 16.494 16.221 16,221
Effect of dilutive securities:

2003 Stock Option Plan - 576 422

2003 Management Recognition and Retention Plan - 77 47
Total weighted average basic and diluted

common shares outstanding 16,719 16.719 16,494 17,147 16,221 16,690
Net income (loss) per common share $ 074 % 074 $ 250 § 241 § 202 % 197
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Had stock-based emplovee compensation expense for our SOP been determined based on a calculated fair value
using the Black-Scholes model at the grant date for awards subsequent to the distribution, consistgnt with the
recognition provisions of SFAS No. 123(R), our net income and earnings per share would have been impacted as
follows for the year ended December 31, 2005:

Year Ended
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) December 31, 2005
Net income (as reported) $ 32,832
Add: stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net income, net of related tax effects 1,868

Deduct: total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under the fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effects {2,996)

Pro forma net income 3 31,704
Basic earnings per share (as reported) b 2.02
Pro forma basic earnings per share 3 1.95
Diluted earnings per share (as reported) $ 1.97
Pro forma diluted earnings per share $ 1.90
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4, Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains and losses, and fair value of investment and mortgage-backed

securities by major security category at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

At December 31, 2007
Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair

(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Held to maturity:

Municipal obligations b 70§ - % - % 70
Available for sale:

Mortgage-backed securities 6.755 32 98 6.689

U.S. Government securities and agency obligations 105,428 18 33 105413

Corporate securities 4,935 - 15 4,920

Municipal obligations 13,931 18 35 13914

Agency equity securities 536 - 114 422

Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund 5.812 - - 5.812

Total investment and mortgage-backed
securities, available for sale $ 137397 § 68 § 295 % 137,170
At December 31, 2006
Gross Unrealized
Amortized Fair

(Dollars in thousands) Cost Gains Losses Value
Held to maturity:

Municipal obligations $ 9 5 - 3 - $ 90
Available for sale:

Morngage-backed secunties 12,476 51 255 12,272

U.S. Government securities and agency obligations 78,201 4 636 77.569

Corporate securities 5,245 - 115 5,130

Municipal obligations 15,970 19 61 15,928

Agency equity securities 547 - 10 537

Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund 6,000 - 164 5,836

Total investment and mortgage-backed
securities, available for sale $ 118439 % 74 % 1,241 §$ 117272
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of investment securities at December 31, 2007, by contractual
maturity, is shown in the following table. Actual maturities may differ from the contractual maturities because
borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment penalties.

At December 31, 2007
Held to Maturity Available for Sale
Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Cost Value Cost Value
Amount maturing in:
2008 5 - $ - $ 109,831 $ 109,799
2009 - 2012 70 70 13,381 13,361
2013 - 2017 - - 6,585 6,589
After 2017 - - 845 732
Total investment securities 3 70 $ 70 $ 130,642 $ 130.481

There were no sales of investment securities held to maturity during the three years ended December 31, 2007.
Proceeds from the sale of investment securities available for sale totaled $10,000, $2.3 million and $3.2 million for
the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Gross realized gains on the sale of investment
securities were $21,000 and $14.,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. There were no
gains or losses on the sale of investment securities during the year ended December 31, 2007. Losses due to other-
than-temporary impairment were $188,000 on investment securities for the year ended December 31, 2007. There
were no sales of mortgage-backed securities during the three years ended December 31, 2007.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, investment and mortgage-backed securities with fair values of approximately
$114.0 million and $96.3 million, respectively, were pledged as collateral for certain deposits, primarily those of

public institutions.
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Investment and mortgage-backed securities with unrealized losses at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are
summarized in the following table:

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Longer Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

(Dollars in thousands) Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
At December 31, 2007:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 1,871 §% 17 $ 3062 % 81 $ 4933 % 98
U.S. Government securities and

agency obligations 19,994 3 11,999 30 31,993 33
Corporate securities 3570 3 1.350 12 4920 15
Municipal obligations 1,424 21 1.570 14 2,994 35
Agency equity securities 5 1 412 113 417 114

Total temporarily impaired securities  $ 26,864 § 45 $ 18393 § 250  $ 45257 % 295
At December 31, 2006:
Mortgage-backed securities $ 591 % 9 § 8224 % 246 $ 8815 255
U.S. Government securities and

agency obligations 3,602 73 39.063 563 42.665 636
Corporate securities 4002 0j 1.128 24 5.130 115
Municipal obligations 933 3 6,893 58 7,826 61
Agency equity securities 6 - 525 10 531 10
Asset Management Fund - ARM Fund - - 5,836 164 5,836 164

Total temporarily impaired securities $ 9,134 § 176 $61669 $ 1065 $ 70803 § 1241

We believe all unrealized losses as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 to be market related, with no permanent
sector or issuer credit concerns or impairments. We had 48 and 107 securities with unrealized losses for 12
consecutive months or longer as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. The unrealized losses are believed
to be temporarily impaired in value. Impairment is deemed temporary if the positive evidence indicating that an
investment’s carrying amount is recoverable within a reasonable time period outweighs negative evidence to the
contrary. At December 31, 2007, we had the ability and intent to hold these securities until maturity.
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5. Loans Receivable

Loans receivable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized in the following table:

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 Y% 2006 %
Real estate loans:
One-to-four family residential (1) $ 314623 941 % $ 339,080 921 %
Second mortgage residential 95.477 2.86 120,510 3.27
Multi-family residential 106,678 3.19 148.922 4.05
Commercial real estate 370,910 11.10 396,620 10.77
Land and land development 473,346 14.16 494 887 13.44
Residential construction 513,560 15.36 780,991 21.21
Commercial construction 540,797 16.18 491,997 13.36
Agriculture 91,068 2.72 68,459 1.86
Total real estate loans 2,506,459 74 .98 2,841 466 77.17
Business 252,712 7.56 220,669 5.99
Agriculture - operating 100,365 3.00 94.455 2.56
Warehouse mortgage lines of credit 86,081 2.58 112,645 3.06
Consumer loans:
Home equity 72,517 2.17 71,476 1.94
Home equity lines of credit 120.465 3.60 130,071 3.53
Home improvement 46,045 1.38 55,513 1.51
Automobile §7.079 2.60 87.575 2.38
Other 71.141 2.13 68,365 1.86
Totat consumer loans 397.247 11.88 413,000 11.22
Total loans 3.342.864 10000 % 3682235 100.00 %
Unamortized premiums, discounts and
deferred loan fees 0,451 5,602
Loans in process (2) (376,186) {637.677)
Net loans 2,976,129 3,050,160
Allowance for loan losses (66.540) (33.129)
Net loans after allowance for loan losses $ 2,909,589 $ 3,017,031
(1) Includes loans held for sale S 9,348 $ 19285

(2} Loans in process represents the undisbursed portion of construction and land development loans.

Concentration of Credit Risk. Our loans are exposed to credit risk from the possibility that customers may
default on their financial obligations to us. Credit risk arises predominantly with respect 1o loans, Concentrations of
credit risk exist if a number of customers are engaged in similar activities, are located in the same geographic region
or have similar economic characteristics such that their ability to meet contractual obligations could be similarly
affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations of credit risk indicate a related
sensitivity of our performance to developments affecting a particular customer, industry or geographic location.
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At December 31, 2007 and 2006 our second mortgage residential, multi-family residential, commercial real
estate, land and land development, construction, agricultural, business, warchouse morigage lines of credit and
consumer loans totaled $3.0 billion and $3.3 billion, respectively. These loan types are considered by management
to be of greater risk of coliectibility than one-to-four family residential loans. Additionally, at December 31, 2007
and 2006, we had $64.7 million and $62.4 million, respectively, of interest-only one-to-four family residential loans.

Primary Lending Markef Area. Our primary lending market area consists of Nebraska, lowa, Kansas, Arizona,
Colorado, Florida, Minnesota, Nevada and North Carolina. OQOur Asset/Liability and Asset Classification
Committees are responsible for setting guidelines related to loan concentrations and menitoring such concentrations
to limit potential loss exposure. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately 20.2% and 20.8%, respectively, of
total loans were secured by properties or made to individuals focated outside of our primary lending market area.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The activity in the allowance for loan losses is summarized in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 33,129 3 30,870 3 26,831
Proviston for loan losses 65,382 6,053 6,436
Charge-ofts (33,037) (4,107) (3,063)
Recoveries on loans previously charged-off 1,066 313 666
Balance at end of year 3 66.540 b 33,129 $ 30,870
Allowance for loan losses as a percentage of net loans 2.24% 1.09% 1.09%

We generally discontinue funding of loans which become or are deemed impaired unless additional funding is
required to protect the asset. In addition, due to certain laws and regulations in selecied states, some additional
funding may be required. Qur reserve for unfunded loan commitments at December 31, 2007 totaled $2.7 million
which represents potential future loan losses associated with these unfunded commitments.

Nonperforming Assets and Troubled Debt Restructurings. Nonperforming assets consist of nonperforming
loans, troubled debt restructurings and real estate owned. Nonperforming loans are loans that are 90 or more days
delinguent on which interest recognition has been suspended until realized because of doubts as to the borrower’s
ability to repay principal and interest. Troubled debt restructurings are loans where the terms have been modified to
provide a reduction or deferral of interest or principal because of detertoration in the borrower’s financial position.

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Nonperforming loans (1) $ 128,490 % 30,050
Real estate owned, net (2) 6,405 5,264
Total nonperforming assets 134,895 35314
Troubled debt restructurings 19,569 8,904
Total nonperforming assets and
troubled debt restructurings $ 154464 § 44,218

(1} Includes all loans 90 or more days delinquent and all uncollected accrued interest is fully reserved.

(2) Real estate owned balances are shown net of related loss allowances.

Impaired Loans. A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable
that we will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal and interest when due according to the
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contractual terms of the loan agreement. Included in the preceding table, within nonperforming loans and troubled
debt restructurings, are impaired loans of $125.9 million and $3.8 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. At December 31, 2007, impaired loans consisted primarily of $51.9 million of residential construction
loans, $51.1 million of land and land development loans and $19.2 million of commercial construction loans. At
December 31, 2007 we had $24.8 million of loans which were not classified as nonperforming but were classified as
impaired due to decline in the fair market value of the underlying collateral securing such loans.

The average balance of impaired and restructured loans for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
totaled $58.4 million, $11.4 million and $7.1 million, respectively. Interest recognized on such loans for the years
ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 approximated $675,000, $725,000 and $603,000, respectively.
Additionally, interest income that would have been recorded for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
if nonperforming loans and troubled debt restructurings had been current or in accordance with their original terms
approximates $10.8 million, $1.8 million and $802,000, respectively.

Loans serviced for others are not included in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition. Servicing loans for others consists of collecting mortgage payments, maintaining escrow accounts,
disbursing payments to investors and conducting foreclosure processing. In connection with these loans serviced for
others, we held borrowers’ escrow balances of approximately $19.7 million and $17.1 million at December 31, 2007
and 2006, respectively.

Loans serviced for others include approximately $601.1 million and $605.8 million of unpaid principal balances
of residential real estate loans at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. for which we have retained a limited
amount of recourse obligation. We have certain risks due to limited recourse arrangements on loans serviced for
others and recourse obligations related to loan sales. The maximum total dollar amount of such recourse was
approximately $19.0 million and $17.4 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. We have established a
liability for this recourse obligation, which is based on our historical loss experience, in the amount of
approximately $733.,000 and $742,000 at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. This liability is included in
accrued expenses and other liabilities.
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6. Mortgage Servicing Rights

The balance of capitatized mortgage servicing rights, net of valuation allowances, at December 31, 2007 and
2006, was $14.5 million and $12.5 million, respectively. The following are the key assumptions used in measuring
the fair values of capitalized mortgage servicing rights and the sensitivity of the fair values to changes in those
assumptions:

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Serviced loan portfolio balance $ 1,459,498 $ 1.295418
Fair value 18,310 15,276
Prepayment speed 6.62% — 26.07% B.64% - 46.44%
Weighted average prepayment speed 10.37% 14.40%
Fair value with 10% adverse change $ 17,860 $ 14,654
Fair value with 20% adverse change 17,166 14,034
Discount rate 9.50% - 13.00% 10.00% - 14.00%
Weighted average discount rate 10.63% 11.34%
Fair value with 10% adverse change $ 17,866 $ 14.806
Fair value with 20% adverse change 17,178 14,325

The sensitivity of the fair values is hypothetical and should be used with caution. As the figures indicate,
changes in fair value based on a variation in assumptions generally cannot be extrapolated because the relationship
of the change in assumption to the change in fair value may not be linear. Also, in the table. the effect of a variation
in a particular assumption on the fair value of the capitalized mortgage servicing rights is calculated without
changing any other assumption. In reality, changes in one assumption may result in changes in another which might
magnify or counteract the sensitivities.

Mortgage Servicing Right Activity. The following table summarizes activity in capitalized mortgage servicing
rights, including amortization expense:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dellars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year % 12,467 $ 11,713 $ 10,505
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized 5,141 3.492 3,186
Amortization expense (3,078) (2,738) 2,778)
Valuation adjustment - - 300
Balance at end of year $ 14,530 % 12,467 $ 11,713

The estimated future amortization expense of capitalized mortgage servicing rights for each of the years ending
December 31, 2008 through 2012 is approximately $3.3 million, $2.6 million, $2.0 million, $1.5 million and $1.2
million, respectively. These projections are based on existing asset balances and the existing interest rate
envircnment at December 31, 2007. The amount of amortization expense in any given period may be significantly
different depending upon changes in mortgage interest rates and market conditions.

We evaluate the fair value of morgage servicing rights on a quarterly basis using current prepayment speeds,
cash flow and discount rate estimates. Changes in these estimates impact fair value and could require us to record a
valuation allowance or recovery. During the year ended December 31, 2005, the balance of our mortgage servicing
rights valuation allowance was recaptured into earnings. Our evaluation of mortgage servicing rights at December
31, 2007 and 2006 indicated that no valuation allowance was necessary. The amortization expense and vaiuation
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adjustment is recorded as a reduction of fees and service charges in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

7. Acerued Interest Receivable
Accrued interest receivable at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is summarized in the following table:

At December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Loans receivable b 20,813 $ 22.024
Investment and mortgage-backed securities 369 983
Other 66 16
Total accrued interest receivable $ 21,248 $ 23,023

8. FHLBank Topeka Stock

We are a member of the FHLBank Topeka (“FHLBank™) and are required to purchase and hold stock to
collateralize our borrowings. Qur investment in FHLBank stock is carried at cost, which represepts redemption

value. We were required to hold approximately $43.8 million and $57.5 million of FHLBank stock at December 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively.

9. Real Estate Owned and Repossessed Assets

Real estate owned and repossessed assets, included in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial
Condition, at December 31, 2007 and 2006 aggregating $6.4 million and $5.3 miilion, respectively, is recorded net
of a valuation allowance of $540,000 and $100,000, respectively. At December 31, 2007, real estate owned
consisted primarily of 36 residential properties totaling $3.6 million and three commercial properties totaling $2.8
million.

10. Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment at December 31, 2007 and 2006 is summarized in the following table:

At December 31, Useful

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 Lives
Land $ 6,282 3 6,282 —
Buildings and improvements 46,044 45,930 1-50 years
Leasehold improvements 2,234 2,191 4-15 years
Furniture, fixtures, and equipment 9,715 9.146 5-12 years
Computer equipment 6.689 5472 3-7 years
Vehicles 998 979 2-7 years

Total cost basis of premises and equipment 71,962 70,000
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (33,934) (30,179)

Total premises and equipment, net $ 38.028 3 39,821

Premises and equipment depreciation and amortization expense for the vears ended December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005 was $4.0 million, $3.8 million and $3.6 million, respectively.
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11. Goodwill and Acquired Intangible Assets

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess price paid over the fair value of the tangible and intangible assets and
liabilities acquired in connection with the August 27, 2004 acquisition of UNFC. There was no goodwill recorded
in connection with our Marine Bank branch purchase in June 2006. The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill
for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Balance at beginning of year $ 42228 % 42,283
Realized tax benefit associated with

United Nebraska Financial Co. acquisition 61} (55)
Adjustment due to adoption of FASB

Interpretation No. 48 (66) -

Balance at end of year $ 42,101 § 42228

Other Intangible Assets. Our only identifiable intangible asset is the value of the core deposits acquired as part
of the UNFC and Marine Bank transactions. The core deposit intangible assets have been estimated to have nine- to
ten-year lives. Core deposit intangible assets are amortized using an accelerated method of amortization which is
recorded in other operating expense.

Other Intangible Asset Activity. The changes in the carrying amount of acquired intangible assets for the years
ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Balance at beginning of year $ 8391 $ 10,041
Additions during year - 102
Amortization expense (1.647) (1.752)
Balance at end of year $ 6744 § 8.391

Other Intangible Asset Estimated Amortization. Estimated amortization expense related to our core deposit
intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2008 and five years thereafter are as follows:

Core Deposit
(Dollars in thousands) Intangible Asset

Estimated amortization expense:

For the year ended December 31, 2008 h3 1,513
For the year ended December 31. 2009 1.373
For the year ended December 31, 2010 1,222
For the year ended December 31, 2011 1,052
For the year ended December 31, 2012 850
For the year ended December 31, 2013 553
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12. Deposits

TierOne Corporation and Subsidiaries

Deposit Composition. Deposits at December 31, 2007 and 2006 are summarized in the following table:

At December 31,
2007 2006
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
(Dollars in thousands) Rates Amount Rates Amount
Transaction accounts:
Noninterest-bearing checking - % § 164,275 - % $ 154,123
Savings 3.35 188,613 0.49 45,452
Interest-bearing checking 1.12 328,267 1.14 349,033
Money market 2.81 350,276 2.98 383.182
Total transaction accounts 1.96 1,031,431 1.68 931,790
Total transaction accounts as a
percentage of total deposits 42.44% 45.40%
Time deposits:
0.00% to 0.99% 20 -
1.00% to 1.99% 101 542
2.00% to 2.99% 3.879 27,594
3.00% to 3.99% 129910 151,499
4.00% to 4.99% 398,325 348,777
5.00% to 5.99% 866,878 592,013
6.00% to 6.99% - 128
Total time deposits 4.96 1,399,113 4.81 1.120,553
Total time deposits as a
percentage of total deposits 57.56% 54.60%
Total deposits 3.69 % § 2,430,544 339 % § 2,052,343

Time Deposit Maturity. The scheduled maturities of time deposits at December 31, 2007 are shown in the

following table:

(Dollars in thousands) Amount Percent
2008 $ 1,315,193 94.00 %
2009 62,806 4.49
2010 8914 0.64
2011 7.499 0.53
2002 4,584 0.33
Thereafter 117 0.01
Total time deposits $ 1,399,113 100.00 %

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, time deposits of $100,000 or more approximated $373.4 million and $269.9
million, respectively. The weighted average interest rate of time deposits of $100,000 or more was 5.09% and
4.99% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.
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Interest Expense on Deposits. Interest expense, by each category of deposits, for the years ended
December 31. 2007, 2006 and 2005 was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Savings § 2427 % 263§ 410
Interest-bearing checking 3,692 4,147 3,055
Money market 11,699 11,102 5,095
Time deposits 64,163 44,715 33,387
Total interest expense on deposits $ 81981 § 60227 § 41,947

13. FHLBank Topeka Advances and Other Borrowings

Borrowings Composition. At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we were indebted on notes as shown in the
following table:

Original Interest At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) Maturity Rate Range 2007 2006
Permanent fixed-rate notes
payable to the FHLBank Topeka: 2007 2.79 % % - $ 10,000
2009 5.41 5425 5,679
2013 6.24 336 396
2015 397 1,149 1,263
2030 5.46 2,285 2,326
Convertible fixed-rate notes
payable to the FHLBank Topeka: 2009 5.45-5.55 75,000 75,000
2010 5.06-5.36 40,000 40,000
2012 3.01-330 25.000 75.000
2013 2.59 25,000 25,000
2015 3.39-4.00 85,000 160,000
2016 3.83-4.66 325,000 440,600
2017 394 50,000 -
Line of credit with the FHLBank Topeka 2007 547 - 72,500
Retail repurchase agreements 2007 / 2006 1.29 -496 24,165 24,284
Junior subordinated debentures 2031/2034 7.79 - 8.49 30.928 30.928
Total FHL.Bank Topeka advances and
other borrowings 5 689,288 3 962,376
Weighted average interest rate 450 % 440 %

The convertible fixed-rate notes are convertible to adjustable-rate notes at the option of the FHLBank, with call
dates ranging from January 2008 to September 2008. The line of credit with the FHLBank expires in
November 2008. We expect the line of credit agreement with the FHLBank to be renewed in the ordinary course of
business.

Pursuant to blanket collateral agreements with the FHLBank, such advances are secured by our qualifying
residential, multi-family residential and commercial real estate mortgages. residential construction, commercial
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construction and agriculturai real estate loans with carrying values totaling approximately $1.3 billion and $1.6
billion at Decermnber 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Under our blanket collateral agreement with the FHLBank,
our borrowing capacity at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was $863.0 million and $984.4 million, respectively. Other
qualifying collateral can be pledged in the event additional borrowing capacity is required.

Our retail repurchase agreements are primarily collateralized by U.S. Government and agency nnd municipal
obligations (investment securities).

On April 26, 2004, we formed TierOne Capital Trust I (“TierOne Capital Trust”) which issued capital securities
(“Trust Preferred Securities™) to investors. The proceeds from the sale of the Trust Preferred Securities were used to
purchase $30.9 million of junior subordinated debentures (“debentures”). The debentures are callable at par in June
2009 and mature in June 2034, QOur obligation under the debentures constitutes a full and unconditional guarantee of
TierOne Capital Trust’s obligations under the Trust Preferred Securities. In accordance with Interpretation No. 46
(Revised), “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities” (“FIN 46R™), the trust is not consolidated and related
amounts are treated as debt of the Company.

In connection with our acquisition of UNFC on August 27, 2004, we assumed $7.0 million of vartable rate
debentures that had been issued on November 28, 2001 by United Nebraska Capital Trust, a trust formed by UNFC.
We exercised our right to call and retire these debentures in December 2006.

14. Income Taxes

Income Tax. Income tax expense (benefit) for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 consisted of
the following components:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Federal:
Current $ 11,715 % 24,150 § 19,242
Deferred (15,883) (168) (1,043)
Total federal income tax expense (benefit) (4,168) 23,982 18,199
State:
Current 423 1,856 1,652
Deferred (531) (23) (69)
Total state income tax expense {(benefit) {108) 1.833 1,583
Total income tax expense (benefit) $ (4276) $ 25815 $ 19,782
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Effective Tax Rate. Our actual income tax expense (benefit) differs from the expected income tax expense
(benefit) [computed by applying the statutory 35% federal tax rate to income (loss) before income 1ax expense] as

shown in the following table:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Expected income tax expense {benefit) 5 (5.845) $ 23496 £ 18415
Increase (decrease) resulting from:
Employee Stock Ownership Plan expense 788 1,023 698
State income taxes, net of federal tax €20 1,191 1,029
Tax-exempt interest income (312) (324) (359)
Nondeductible compensation expense 239 403 202
Nondeductible expenses related to merger
with CapitalSource 674 - -
FIN 48 - Interest 263 - -
Other {12) 26 (203)
Total income tax expense (benefit) 5 (4276) $ 25815 $ 19,782
Effective tax (benefit) rate (25.00) % 3846 % 37.60 %

Deferred Taxes. The significant items comprising our net deferred income tax asset at December 31, 2007 and

2006 are shown in the following table:

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Net unrealized losses on securities 3 88 % 449
Deferred compensation 2,861 2,804
Management Recognition and Retention Plan 1,450 1,588
Allowance for loan iosses 23,427 12,191
Vacation expense 854 913
Accrued interest on delinquent loans 2419 824
Qther 3,756 558
Deferred tax assets 34,855 19.327
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred fees on loans 965 3,324
FHLBank Topeka stock 6,541 5,527
Premises and equipment 799 1,154
Morngage servicing rights 5,231 4.800
Other intangible assets 2411 3.200
Other 268 498
Deferred tax liabilities 16,215 18,503
Net deferred income tax asset $ 18,640 § 824

There was no valuation altowance for deferred tax assets considered necessary at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
In assessing the realizability of our deferred 1ax assets, we consider whether it is more likely than not that some
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portion or all of the deferred tax assets will be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become
deductible. We consider the scheduled reversals of deferred tax liabilities, projected taxable income, carryback
opportunities and tax planning strategies in making the assessment of the amount of the valuation allowance. The
net deferred tax asset at December 31, 2007 and 2006 was included in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of
Financial Condition. We believe it is more likely than not that the results of future operations will generate
sufficient taxable income to realize our deferred tax assets.

Accrued Taxes. Income taxes receivable at December 31, 2007 were approximately $8.0 milljon and were
recorded in other assets in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. Income taxes payable at
December 31, 2006 were approximately $2.3 million and were recorded in accrued expenses and other liabilities in
the Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition. We did not have any accrued taxes payable at December 31,
2007,

Pre-1988 Bad Debt Reserve. Our retained earnings at December 31, 2007 and 2006 include approximately
$7.7 mitlion, for which no federal income tax liability has been provided. Such amount represents the bad debt
reserve for tax purposes which were accumulated in tax years through the year ended December 31, 1987 (the base
year). These amounts represent allocations of income to bad debt deductions for tax purposes only. Reductions of
the remaining allocated retained earnings for purposes other than tax bad debt losses will create taxable income,
which will be subject to the then corporate income tax rate. The Small Business Protection Act, passed by Congress
in 1996, requires that savings and loan associations recapture into taxable income bad debt reserves, which were
accumulated in taxable years after December 31, 1987 and which exceeded certain guidelines.

15. Unrecognized Tax Benefits

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109 (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 requires that we
determine whether a tax position is more likely than not to be sustained upon examination, including resolution of
any related appeals or litigation processes, based on the technical merits of the position. Once it is determined that a
position meets the recognition threshold, the position is measured to determine the amount of benefit to be
recognized in the financial statements.

We adopted FIN 48 on January 1, 2007 and, as a result, recognized no material adjustment in our liability for
unrecognized tax benefits. Unrecognized tax benefits, excluding interest and penalties, were $4.3 million at
December 31, 2007. Unrecognized tax benefits of $144,000 and interest and penalties of $405,000 wauld favorably
affect our effective tax rate if recognized in future periods. Unrecognized tax benefits of $543,000 arc related 1o our
UNFC acquisition and would reduce goodwill if recognized in future periods. The following table summarizes our
unrecognized tax benefits upon adoption and for the year ended December 31, 2007:
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Unrecognized Tax

(Dollars in thousands) Benefits
Unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007 3 2.443
Changes in unrecognized tax benefits for the three months ended:
March 31, 2007 366
June 30, 2007 236
September 30, 2007 1,592
December 31, 2007 (227)

Changes in unrecognized tax benefits from settlements with taxing authorities -
Changes in unrecognized tax benefits from the lapse of statutes of limitations
for the three months ended September 30, 2007 (74)

Unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2007 b 4336

Any interest and penalties related to uncertain tax positions are recorded in income tax expense in the
Consolidated Statements of Operations. At December 31, 2007, we had approximately $402,000 of accrued interest
payable related to uncertain tax positions recorded in our Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

We anticipate that a reduction in unrecognized tax benetits of up to $4.2 million is reasonably possible during
the next 12 months. This reduction will be principally due to a change in accounting method related to the timing of
when certain deferred loan fees are recognized for tax purposes. The Internal Revenue Service approved this change
in accounting method in the first quarter of 2008,

The tax years of 2004 through 2006 remain open for examination by federal and state taxing authorities.
16. Sale / Purchase of Branches and Deposits

Branch Sale. In December 2006, a branch sale transaction was consummated whereby a Kansas-based
financial institution purchased the assets (primarily premises and equipment) and assumed the liabilities (primarily
deposits) of our branches located in Plainville and Stockton, Kansas. We retained all loans and investment accounts
associated with the Plainville and Stockton branches. The components of the gain on sale of branches were as
follows:

For the Year Ended
(Dollars in thousands) December 31, 2006
Premium on sale of branch deposits h 1,089
Sale of premises and equipment {65)
Gain on sale of branches $ 1,024

Branch Purchase. In June 2006, we completed the purchase of Marine Bank’s only banking office in Omaha,
Nebraska. We acquired $8.1 million of deposits and recorded a core deposit intangible asset of $102,000 as a result
of this transaction.
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17. Employee Benefit Plans

Savings Plan. We sponsor a defined contribution 401(k) profit sharing plan. At December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005, we contributed 50% of each participant’s contribution up to a maximum of 6% of the participnnt’s eligible
salary, as defined by the plan. Plan expenses, net of forfeitures, for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005 were $779,000, $691,000 and $604,000, respectively, and are included in salaries and employee benefits in the
accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Deferred Compensation Agreemenits. We have deferred compensation agreements with certain officers and
directors. These agreements, which include the Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan and the deferred
compensation program for directors and officers, generally include certain requirements such as continued
employment for a specified period, availability for consulting services and agreements not to compete after
retirement. These deferred compensation arrangements, which are partially funded. represent only a promise to pay
amounts in the future and the assets to fund such promises are subject to the claims of our creditors. The expense
related to the agreements was approximately $684,000, $855,000 and $1.0 million for the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 20035, respectively. The liability, which is included in accrued expenses and other liabilities, is as
shown in the following table:

At December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Deferred compensation agreements — officers b 1250  § 1,034
Deferred compensation agreements — directors 3.350 3,205
Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan 3,346 3,044
Total deferred compensation agreements $ 7946 § 7.283

Management Incentive Compensation Plan. We have a management incentive compensation plan designed to
award officers and key employees, as determined by our Board of Directors, an incentive for effectively operating
the Company. This plan provides for payments equal to a percentage of salaries for meeting certain organizational
and individual performance targets. Expense related 1o this plan totaled approximately $1.3 million, $1.9 miilion and
$1.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The liability for this plan is
included in accrued expenses and other liabilities.

18. Stock Based Benefit Plans

Stock-Based Employee Compensation Expense. Amounts recognized in the financial statements with respect
to our ESOP and stock-based employee compensation plans are presented in the following table:

For the Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Stock-based employee compensation expense:
Employee Stock Ownership Plan $ 3757 3 4783 § 3876
Management Recognition and Retention Plan 2,904 2,904 2,875
2003 Stock Option Plan 1,682 1,682 -
Amount of stock-based compensation expense,
before income tax benefit $ 8343 § 9369 § 6,751
Amount of related income tax benefit recognized $ 2,021 § 2025 % 1,533
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Employee Stock Ownership Plan. Concurrent with the conversion from mutual to stock ownership, we
established an ESOP for the benefit of our employees. The ESOP is a qualified pension plan under Internal Revenue
Service guidelines that covers all full-time employees who have completed 1,000 hours of service. Upon formation,
the ESOP purchased 1,806,006 shares of common stock issued in the initial public offering with the proceeds of an
$18,060,060 loan from the Company.

We account for our ESOP in accordance with Statement of Position 93-6, Employers’ Accounting for Employee
Stock Ownership Plans. Accordingly, expense is recognized based on the market value (average stock price) of
shares scheduled to be released from the ESOP trust. The excess fair value of ESOP shares over cost is recorded as
compensation expense but is not deductible for tax purposes. As shares are committed to be released from
collateral, we report compensation expense equal to the average market price of the shares and the shares become
outstanding for EPS computations. Our contributions and dividends on allocated and unallocated ESOP shares are
used to pay down the loan. Accordingly, we have recorded the obligation with an offsetting amount of unearned
compensation in stockholders’ equity in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition.

At or for the Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except for share data) 2007 2006 2005

Employce Stock Qwnership Plan compensation expense $ 3757 % 4783 $ 3,876
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares allocated to employees 790,128 639,627 489,127
Employee Stock Ownership Plan shares unallocated 1,015,878 1,166,379 1,316,879

Fair value of Employee Stock Ownership Plan unallocated shares $ 22502 $ 36869 $ 38720

Management Recognition and Retention Plan. We have established the MRRP which is a stock-based
incentive plan. The shares awarded by the MRRP vest to participants at the rate of 20% per year. Compensation
expense for this plan is being recorded over a 60-month period, using the straight-line amortization method adjusted
for forfeitures, and is based on the market value of our stock as of the date the awards were made. Stockholders
approved 903,003 shares to be granted under the MRRP and 100,653 shares are stilt available for future grants as of
December 31, 2007. The following table summarizes shares of our common stock that were subject to award and
have been granted pursuant to the MRRP:

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands, except for share data) 2007 2006 2005
Nonvested shares outstanding at beginning of year 328,940 489,160 644,380
Shares granted - - 5,000
Shares vested {160,220) (160,220) (160,220)
Shares forfeited - - -
Nonvested shares outstanding at end of year 168,720 328,940 489,160

Management Recognition and Retention Plan expense A 2904 § 2904 8§ 2,875
Fair value of vested shares 5 3927 § 5273 % 3,695

The following tables sets forth the weighted average grant date fair value of shares awarded by the MRRP:

Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Shares outstanding at beginning of year 3 1827 % 1821 % 18.06
Shares granted - - 31.36
Shares vested 18.10 18.10 18.02
Shares forfeited - - -
Shares outstanding at end of year 3 1842 % 1827 § i8.21
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As of December 31, 2007, we had $1.2 million of total unrecognized employee compensation expense related 1o
unvested MRRP shares. These expenses are expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 10
months. Excess tax benefits of $377,000 were realized during the year ended December 31, 2007 as a result of the
vesting of 160,220 MRRP shares.

Stock Option Plan. We established the 2003 Stock Option Plan under which 2,257,508 shares of our common
stock were reserved for the grant of stock options to directors, officers and employees. Stock options awarded under
the Stock Option Plan vest to participants at the rate of 20% per year. Compensation expense for this plan is being
recorded over a 60-month period. using the straight-line amortization method adjusted for forfeitures, and is based
on the fair value of our stock options as of the date the awards were made. The exercise price of the options is equal
to the fair market value of the common stock on the grant date. At December 31, 2007, 359,758 of these stock
options remain available for future grants.

The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes mode!. The
dividend yield was calculated based on the annual dividends paid and the 12-month average closing stock price at
the time of the grant. Expected volatility was based on the historical volatility of our stock price at the date of grant.
We have utilized historical experience to determine the expected life of the stock options and to estimate future
forfeitures. All inputs into the Black-Scholes model are estimates at the time of the grant. Actual results in the
future could materially differ from these estimates; however, such results would not impact future reported net
income.

The following table detaiis the inputs into the Black-Scholes model for stock options granted during the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003. There were no stock options granted during the years ended December 31,
2007, 2006 and 2005,

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003
Dividend yield 1.00% 1.00%
Expected volatility 22.60% 13.20%
Risk-free interest rate 4.00% 3.50%
Expected life of stock options 8 years 10 years
Weighted average fair value of stock options granted 3 7.12 % 4.51
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Stock Option Activity. The following table details stock options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year

ended December 31, 2007:

Weighted Average

Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractual Term  Intrinsic
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Shares Exercise Price (In Years) Value

Stock options outstanding at beginning of year 1,818,626 % 17.92 -
Stock options granted - - -
Stock options exercised (25,900) 17.83 $ 241
Stock options forfeited (500) 17.83 -
Stock options outstanding at end of year 1,792,226 % 17.92 53 $ 7,582
Stock options exercisable at end of year 1411,676 $ 17.90 5.3 $ 6,002

The following table details stock options granted, exercised and forfeited during the year ended December 31,

2006:
Weighted Average
Weighted Remaining Aggregate
Number of Average Contractval Term  Intrinsic
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) Shares Exercise Price (In Years) Value
Stock options outstanding at beginning of year 1,864,750 § 17.92 -
Stock options granted - - -
Stock options exercised (43,624) 18.04 $ 683
Stock options forfeited (2,500) 17.83 -
Stock options outstanding at end of year 1,818,626 % 17.92 6.3 $ 24,901

Stock options exercisable at end of year 1,063,526 § 17.89 6.3 $ 14,591

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding tables for stock options outstanding is based on the closing price
of our stock at December 31, 2007 and 2006. The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding tables of stock options

exercised was based on the closing price of our stock on the exercise date.
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The following table details stock options granted, exercised and forfeited since inception of the plan:

Number of  Weighted Average Average Grant

Shares Exercise Price Date Fair Value

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 1,852,750 § 1783 § -
Stock options granted 45,000 22.40 7.12
Stock options exercised (2,000} 17.83 -
Stock options forfeited (6,500) 17.83 -
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2004 1,889,250 17.94 -
Stock options granted - - -
Stock options exercised (11,500) 17.83 -
Stock options forfeited {13,000) 20.64 -
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2005 1,864,750 17.92 -
Stock options granted - - -
Stock options exercised (43,624) 18.04 -
Stock options forfeited (2,500) 17.83 -
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2006 1,818,626 17.92 -
Stock options granted - - -
Stock options exercised {25,900) 17.83 -
Stock options forfeited (500) 17.83 -
Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2007 1,792,226 17.92 -

The following table details the intrinsic value, cash received and tax benefit realized from the exercise of stock
options during the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005:

For the Year Ended December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005

Intrinsic value (market value on the
exercise date less the strike price) $ 241 % 683 120

Cash received from the exercise of
stock options 462 787 205

Tax benefit realized from the exercise
of stock options 50 140 42

At December 31, 2007, there was $592,000 of total unrecognized compensation expense related to unvested
stock options that will be expensed over a weighted average period of six months.
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19. Reguiatory Capital Requirements

In connection with our conversion to a Federally-chartered stock savings bank, we established a liquidation
account in an amount equal to our retained earnings on March 31, 2002. The liguidation account is maintained for
the benefit of eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who have continued to maintain
their deposit accounts after the conversion. The liquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that eligible
account holders and supplemental eligible account holders have reduced their qualifying deposits as of each
anniversary date. Subsequent increases will not restore an eligible account holder’s or a supplemental eligible
account holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event of a complete liquidation, each eligible account
holder and supplemental eligible account holder will be entitled to receive a distribution from the liquidation
account in an amount proportionate to the current adjusted qualifying balances for accounts then held,

We are subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by federal banking agencies. Failure to
meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by
regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of
operations. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, we must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of our assets, liabilities and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices, The capital amounts and classifications are also
subject to quatitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures that have been established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require that we
maintain minimum capital amounts and ratios (set forth in the following table). Our primary regulatory agency, the
Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS™), requires that we maintain minimum ratios of tangible capita] (as defined in
the regulations) of 1.5%, core capital (as defined) of 4.0% and total risk-based capital (as defined) of 8.0%. As of
December 31, 2007, we exceed all capital requirements to which we are subject.

As of December 31, 2007 and 2006, the most recent notifications from the OTS categorized the Bank as “well

capitalized”” under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. There are no conditions or events since
the notification that we believe have changed the Bank’s category.
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Regulatory Capital. The actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 are presented in
the following table:

To be Well Capitalized
For Capital Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Adequacy Purposes Action Provisions
{Dollars in thousands) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2007:
Total nisk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) $ 333,683 10.8% § 247,538 8.0% % 309,423 10.0%
Tier 1 capital {to adjusted
tangible assets) 294,661 8.5 139,472 40 174,340 5.0
Tangible capital (to
tangible assets) 294,661 8.5 52,302 1.5 N/A N/A
Tier | capital (to risk-
weighted assets) 204,661 9.5 123,769 4.0 185,654 6.0
As of December 31, 2006:
Total risk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) § 360,445 11.8% $ 245,122 8.0% $ 306,402 10.0%
Tier 1 capital (to adjusted
tangible assets) 327,316 97 135,193 410 168,992 5.0
Tangible capital (to
tangible assets) 327,316 9.7 50,697 1.5 N/A N/A
Tier 1 capital (to risk-
weighled assels) 327,316 10.7 122,561 4.0 183.841 6.0

We believe that with respect to the current regulations, the Bank will continue to meet its minimum capital
requirements for the foreseeable future. However, events beyond our control, such as increased interest rates or a
downturn in the economy in areas where the Bank conducts business or makes loans, could adversely affect future
earnings and, consequently, the ability of the Bank to meet its future minimum capital requirements.

During the three months ended December 31, 2007, the Bank paid a $33.9 million dividend to the Company.

This dividend reduced the Bank’s regulatory capital; however, the Company may provide additional support to the
Bank if additional capital is needed to maintain the Bank’s capital ratios.
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GAAP to Regulatory Capital Reconciliation. The following table reconciles the Bank’s capital calculated in
accordance with GAAP and consolidated Bank regulatory capital amounts as presented in the previous table:

At December 31, 2007
Tangible Total Risk-Based
(Dollars in thousands) Caplta] Core Capital Capital
Bank GAAP capital $ 341950 § 341990 3 341,990
Add:
Allowance for loan losses - - 39,022
Net unrealized loss on available
for sale securities 141 1414 141
Less:
Investment in nonincludable subsidiaries 1,221 1,221 1,221
Goodwill and certain other intangible assets
net of associated deferred tax benefits 46,249 46,249 46,249
Bank rcgulatory capital § 294,661 $ 2940661 3 333,683
At December 31, 2006
Tangible Total Risk-Based
(Dollars in thousands) Capital Core Capital Capital
Bank GAAP capital $ 375153 § 375153 % 375,153
Add:
Allowance for loan losses - - 33,129
Net unrealized loss on available
for sale securities 717 717 717
Less:
Investment in nonincludable subsidiaries 1.165 1.165 1.165
Goodwill and certain other intangible assets
net of associated deferred tax benefits 47,389 47.389 47.389
Bank regulatory capital § 327316 § 327316 % 360,445
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20. Lease Commitments

At December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 we were obligated under noncancelable operating leases for office space
and equipment. Certain leases contain escalation clauses providing for increased rental rates based primarily on
increases in real estate taxes or in the average consumer price index. Net rent expense under operating leases,
included in occupancy expense, was approximately $1.2 million, $1.1 million and $974,000 for the years ended
December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

The approximate future minimum rental payments projected under the remaining terms of the leases are as
follows for the years ending December 31:

{Dollars in thousands} Amount
2008 $ 1,125
2009 873
2010 513
2011 341
2012 217
Thereafter 1,341
Total minimum lease payments due $ 4,410

21. Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The following methods and assumptions were used in estimating fair value disclosure for financial instruments.

General Assumptions. We assume the book value of short-term financial instruments, defined as any items that
mature or reprice within six months or less, approximate their fair value. Short-term financial instruments consist of
cash and cash equivalents, accrued inlerest receivable, advances from borrowers for taxes, insurance and other
escrow funds and accrued interest payable.

Investment and Mortgage-Backed Securities. For investment and mortgage-backed securities, fair value
represents quoted market price, if available, or quotations received from securities dealers. If a quoted market price
is not available, fair value is estimated using quoted market prices for similar securities, adjusted for differences
between the quoted securities and the securities being valued.

Investment in FHLBank Stock and FHLBank Advances and Other Borrowings. The fair value of FHLBank
stock is equivalent to its carrying amount due to it only being redeemable at par value with the FHLBank. The fair
value of FHLBank advances and other borrowings is the estimated fair value of similar advances and borrowings
with comparable maturities at interest rates currently offered by the FHLBank.

Loans Receivable. Fair values are estimated for portfolios of loans with similar financial characteristics. Loans
are segregated by type, such as commercial, business, mortgage and real estate, consumer and other. Each loan
category is further segmented into fixed- and adjustable-rate interest terms and by performing and nonperforming
categorices.

The fair value of performing loans is estimated by discounting the fulure contractual cash flows using the
current rates at which similar loans would be made to borrowers with similar credit ratings and for the same
remaining maturities. The fair value of nonperforming loans approximates their carrying value.

Deposits. The fair value of noninterest-bearing checking, savings, interest-bearing checking and money market
accounts is the amount payable on demand. The fair value of fixed maturity time deposits is based on the discounted
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value of contractual cash flows. The discount rate is estimated using the rates currently offered for time deposits of
similar remaining maturities.

Commitments to Originate Loans. The fair value of commitments to originate loans is estimated using the fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and
the present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the
difference between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates.

Carryving and Fair Value of Financial Instruments. The estimated fair values of our financial instruments at
December 31, 2007 and 2006 are presented in the following table. Since the fair value of forward loan sales, loan
purchase commitments and loan origination commitments are not significant, these disclosures are not included in
this table.

At December 31,

2007 2006
Carrying Carrying
(Dollars in thousands) Value Fair Value Value Fair Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 241461 $ 241461 $ 86808 % 86,808
Investment securities 130,551 130,551 105.090 105,080
Mortgage-backed securities 6,689 6,689 12,272 12,272
Net loans after allowance
for toan losses 2,909,589 2,951,652 3,017,031 3,029,706
Accrued interest receivable 21,248 21,248 23,023 23,023
FHIL.Bank Topeka stock 65,837 65,837 62,022 62,022
Financial liabilities:
Deposits 2,430,544 2,441,484 2.052.343 2,050,552
FHLBank Topeka advances
and other borrowings 689,288 711.238 962,376 961,406
Advances from borrowers for
taxes, insurance and other
escrow funds 30,205 30.205 27.203 27.203
Accrued interest payable 6,269 6,269 6.620 6,620

Limitations. The fair value of a financial instrument is the current amounlt that would be exchanged between
willing parties, other than in a forced liquidation. Fair value is best determined based upon quoted market prices.
However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for various financial instruments. In cases where
quoted market prices are not available. fair values are based on estimates using present value or other valuation
techniques. Those techniques are significantly affected by the assumptions used. including the discount rate and
estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement
of the instrument. SFAS No. 107, Disclosures About Fair Value of Financial Instrument’s, excludes certain
financial instruments and all nonfinancial instruments from its disclosure requirements. Accordingly, the aggregate
fair value amounts presented may not necessarily represent the underlying fair value of the Company.
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22. Commitments, Contingencies, and Financial Instruments with Off-Balance Sheet Risk

The consolidated financial statements do not reflect various commitments, contingencies and financial
instruments with off-balance sheet risk, which arise in the normal course of business. These commitments.
contingencies and financial instruments, which represent credit risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk, consist of
commitments to extend credit, unsecured lending and litigation arising in the normal course of business.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had commitments to originate fixed-rate loans of approximately $32.4
million and $72.8 million, respectively, and adjustable-rate loans of approximately $35.7 million and $46.3 million,
respectively. Commitments, which are disbursed subject to certain limitations, extend over periods of time with the
majority of executed commitments disbursed within a 12-month period. Fixed-rate commitments carried interest
rates ranging from 6.25% to 18.009 and 7.13% to 18.00% at December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to customers as long as there is no viclation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. We evaluate each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.
The same credit policies are used in both granting lines of credit and on-balance sheet instruments. At December 31,
2007 and 2006, we had commitments to lend under unused warehouse mortgage lines of credit of approximately
$210.4 million and $331.9 million, respectively. We also had commitments to lend customers’ unused consumer
lines of credit at December 31, 2007 and 2006 of approximately $133.2 million and $134.8 million, respectively. In
addition, at December 31, 2007 and 2006, we had commitments to lend to customers pursuant to unused commercial
lines of credit of approximately $221.5 million and $226.9 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2007 and 2006, outstanding commitments 1o purchase mortgage loans aggregated
approximately $33.0 million and $50.8 million, respectively, and commitments to sell mortgage loans aggregated
approximately $50.0 million and $41.5 million, respectively. These commitments to sell extend over varying periods
of time with the majority being settled within a 60-day period.

We have employment agreements with two key executives. The employment agreements provide for annual
base salaries, participation in retirement and executive benefit plans and other fringe benefits applicable to executive
personnel. These emiployment agreements provide for three-year terms which are extended daily thereafter.

We are party to litigation and claims arising in the normal course of business. We believe that, after consultation
with legal counsel, any liability arising from such litigation and claims will not be material to our Consolidated
Statements of Financial Condition or Consolidated Statements of Operations.

Notional and Fair Value of Derivatives. Information pertaining to the notional and fnir values of our
derivative financial instrumnents is presented in the following table:

At December 31,
2007 2006
Noticnal Fair Notional Fair
(Dollars in thousands) Value Yalue Value Value
Forward loan sale commitments $ 45,155 § 44,943 $ 35677 $ 35612
Derivative loan commitments 40,632 41,061 24,265 24,405

The difference between the noticnal and fair value of these derivative financial instruments is recorded in our
Statements of Financial Condition at December 31, 2007 and 2006.
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23. Condensed Parent Company Financial Statements

The following represents the condensed Statements of Financial Condition at December 31, 2007 and 2006 and
condensed Statements of Operations and Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005 for
TierOne Corporation, the parent company.

Statements of Financial Condition

(Parent Company Only)
At December 31,
{Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006
Assets
Cash in subsidiary bank 3 262 $ 158
Investmeni in subsidiary bank 341,990 375,153
Note receivable from subsidiary bank 32,832 7311
Accrued 1nterest receivable 65 44
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1.638 1,790
Total assets $ 376,787 $ 384 456
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Liabilities:
Junior subordinated debentures 3 30,928 $ 30,928
Accrued interest payable 219 175
Accrued taxes and other liabilities 50 70
Total liabilities 31,197 31,173
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock 226 226
Additional paid-in capital 366,042 358,733
Retained earnings. substantially restricted 94,630 112,111
Treasury stock {105,008) (105,406)
Unallocated common stock held by the
Employee Stock Ownership Plan (10,159) (11,664)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net (141) (717
Total stockholders’ equity 345,590 353,283
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 376,787 $ 384,456
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Statements of Operations
(Parent Company Only)
Year Ended December 31,
(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Interest on investment securities $ -3 22 % 106
Interest on subsidiary bank nolte receivable 284 1,031 817
Other income - 19 15
Interest expense - junior subordinated debentures (2,673) (3,122) {2.483)
Professional services expense related to CapitalSource merger (1,833) - -
Other expense {408) (390) (381)
Net loss before income tax benefit
and equity in earnings of subsidiary bank {4,630) (2,440) (1.926)
Income tax benefit 1,155 1.007 858
Net loss before equity in earnings of subsidiary bank (3,475) (1,433) {1,008)
Equity in earnings (loss) of subsidiary bank (8,950) 42,748 33,900
Net income (loss) $(12,425) $ 41,315 $ 32,832
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Statements of Cash Flows
{Parent Company Only)

Year Ended December 31,

(Dollars in thousands) 2007 2006 2005
Reconciliation of net income (loss) to net cash provided by

(used in) operating activities:

Net income {loss) $ (12425) § 41,315 $ 323832
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash used in

operating activities:

Net premium amortization of investment securities - 15 78
Equity in loss (earnings) of subsidiary bank 8,950 (42.748) (33,900)
Deferred income tax expense (benefit) - 20 8
Changes in certain assets and liabilities:
Tax benefit receivable - - (1}
Accrued interest receivable 21 67 (8)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 152 195 118
Accrued interest payable 44 (22) 52
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (20) 20) 6
Net cash used in operating activities (3,320} (1.178) (815}
Cash from investing activities:
Proceeds from maturity of investment securities, available for sale - 1,700 425
Dividends received from subsidiary bank 33,900 - -
Net repayment {(advances) on note receivable from subsidiary bank (25,521) 15,010 7,616
Net cash provided by investing activitics 8,379 16,710 8,041
Cash flows from financing activities:
Repurchase of common stock for treasury (204) (4,825) (3,594)
Dividends paid on common stock (5,213) (4,486} (3,813)
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 462 787 -
Calied junior subordinated debeniures - (7,000) -
Treasury stock reissued under stock option plan - - 205
Net cash used in financing activities (4,955) {15,524} (7,202)
Net increase in cash in subsidiary bank 104 8 24
Cash in subsidiary bank at beginning of year 158 150 126
Cash in subsidiary bank at end of year 3 262 % 158 3§ 150
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24. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Quarter Ended

(Dellars in {hoﬂsands’ except per share data) 3/31/2007 6/30/2007 9/30/2007 12/31/72007
Total interest income $ 58665 $ 59541 § 59905 $ 55910
Total interest expense 27,470 28,857 30.589 30,985

Net interest income 31,195 30,684 29,316 24,925
Provision for loan losses 1,468 10,233 17,483 38,917

Net interest income (loss) after

provision for loan losses 29,727 20,451 11,833 (13,992)

Noninterest income 7,004 7.324 7.524 8,485
Noninterest expense 21,499 22,813 27,662 23,083
Income tax expense (benefit) 5.854 2,503 (2,425) (10.208)

Net income (loss) h) 9378 § 2,459 (5.880) § (18.382)
Net income {loss) per common share, basic $ 056 §$ 015 % 035 § (1.09)
Net income (loss} per common share, diluted 0.55 0.14 (0.3 (1.09)
Dividends declared per common share 0.07 (.08 0.08 0.08

Quarter Ended

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data) 3/31/2006 6/30/2006 9/30/2006 12/31/2006
Total interest income h 50193 % 54,831 % 59980 $ 58,874
Total interest expense 21.057 23,427 25,848 27,687

Net interest income 29,136 31,404 34.141 31,187
Provision for loan losses 1,331 1,811 1.148 1,763

Net interest income after

provision for loan losses 27,805 29,593 32,993 29.424

Noninterest income 6,406 7,195 6,929 8,554
Noninterest expense 19,346 20,991 21,111 20,321
Income tax expense 5,663 6,090 7.294 6,768

Net income $ 9202 §% 9,707 11,517 % 10,889
Basic earnings per share $ 056 § 0.59 070 % 0.66
Diluted earnings per share 0.54 0.57 0.67 0.63
Dividends declared per common share 0.06 0.07 0.07 0.07
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25. Proposed Merger with CapitalSource Inc.

On May 17, 2007, the Company, CapitalSource Inc. (“CapitalSource™ and CapitalSource TRS Inc.
(“CapitalSource TRS™) entered into and announced an Agreement and Plan of Merger (“Merger Agreement”). The
Merger Agreement provides that, upon the terms and subject to conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, the
Company will merge with and into CapitalSource TRS (“Merger”), with CapitalSource TRS continuing as the
surviving corporation. The Merger Agreement and the Merger were approved by the stockholders of the Company
at a special meeting held on November 29, 2007,

Consummation of the Merger is subject to customary conditions, including, without limitation, the accuracy of
the representations and warranties of the parties (subject generally to a material adverse effect standard) and
regulatory approval. Although CapitalSource has filed an application with the OTS for approval of transactions
contemplated by the Merger Agreement, the OTS has yet to deem the application either complete or approved, and
no assurance can be given that the OTS will approve the transaction.

The Merger Agreement further provides that either the Company or CapitalSource (each acting through its
respective Board of Directors) has the right at any time after February 17, 2008 to unilaterally terminate the Merger
Agreement, unless the failure to effect the Merger by such date was due to the terminating party’s failure to perform
its obligations and covenants under the Merger Agreement. The Company has indicated that its present intent is not
to terminate the Merger Agreement pending receipt of further comment from the OTS. Conversely, CapitalSource
has publicly advised that its Board of Directors has authorized its Chairman and Chief Executive Officer to either
terminate the Merger Agreement or negotiate new terms for the transaction. In light of the preceding sentence, the
Company can provide no assurance that the Merger will be completed even if all conditions precedent to the
transaction (including receipt of regulatory approval) are satisfied.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
There are no changes in or disagreement with our accountants to report,

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rules
13a-15(e) or 15d-15(e) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934) as of the end of the period covered by this
report. Based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concluded that our
disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of the date of such evaluation to ensure that material
information relating to us, including our consolidated subsidiaries, was made known to them by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report was being prepared. There was no change in our internal
controt over financial reporting that occurred during the period covered by this report that has materially affected, or
is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Qur
internal control over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and
Chief Financial Officer, an evaluation was conducted of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007 using the criteria set forth in farernal Control - Integrated Framework issued by
the Committee of Spoensoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, Based on this sssessment, our
management believes that, as of December 31, 2007, our internal control over financial repotting was effective
based on those criteria.

122




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
TierQne Corporation:

We have audited TierOne Corporation’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in fnrernal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ}, TierOne Corporation’s management is responsible for
maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the accompanying Management's Annual Report on Internal Conirol
Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included cbtaining an understanding of internal control over financial repornting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We betieve that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed 1o provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairty reflect the transactions and disposttions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s
assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also. projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, TierOne Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fmternal Control - Integrated Framework,
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting QOversight Board
{United States), the consolidated statements of financial condition of TierOne Corporation as of December 31, 2007
and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and our report dated
March 10, 2008 expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Lincoin.Nebraska
March 10, 2008
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Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter and year
ended December 31, 2007 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to matenally affect, our internal
control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information

None.
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PART 111
Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by Item 10 of Form 10-K with respect to the identification of directors and executive
officers and corporate governance disclosure is incorporated by reference from “Information With Respect to
Nominees for Director, Continuing Directors and Executive Officers” and “Section 16{(a) Beneficial Ownership
Reporting Compliance™ in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders
(“‘Proxy Statement™). In the event that such Proxy Statement is not filed on or prior to 120 days after the Company’s
fiscal year end (April 29, 2008), the Annual Report on Form 10-K will be amended to include the information
required by Instruction G to Form 10-K.

We have adopted a Code of Conduct and Ethics that applies to our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial
Officer, as well as other officers and employees of the Company and the Bank. A copy of the Code of Conduct and
Ethics may be found on our website at www.tieronebank.com. We intend to satisfy the disclosure requirements
under ltem 5.05 of Form 8-K regarding amendments to, or waivers from, the Code of Conduct and Ethics by posting
such information on our website.

item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by Item 11 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from “Management
Compensation” and “Information With Respect to Nominees for Director, Continuing Directors and Executive
Officers - Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation” in the Proxy Statement. In the event that
such Proxy Statement is not filed on or prior to 120 days after the Company’s fiscal year end (April 29, 2008), the
Annual Report on Form 10-K will be amended to include the information required by Instruction G to Form 10-K.

The report of the Audit Committee included in the Proxy Statement should not be deemed to be filed or
incorporated by reference into this filing or any other filing by the Company under the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 or the Securities Act of 1933 except to the extent we specifically incorporate said report herein or therein by
reference thereto, The report of the Compensation Committee is deemed furnished in this Annual Report on Form
10-K. but is not deemed to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed” with the SEC or subject to Regulation 14A or
14C under the Securities Act of 1934 or to the liabilities of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, and
will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent we specifically incorporate it by reference into such a filing.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by Item 403 of Regulation S-K is incorporated by reference from “Beneficial
Ownership of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Proxy Statement. In the event
that such Proxy Statement is not filed on or prior to 120 days after the Company’s fiscal year end (April 29, 2008),
the Annual Report on Form 10-K will be amended to include the information required by Instruction G to Form §0-
K.
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Equity Compensation Plan Information. The following table sets forth certain information for all equity
compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements (whether with employees or non-employees, such as
directors), in effect as of December 31, 2007:

Number of Shares to be Issued

Weighted-Average
Exercise Price of

Number of Shares Remaining

Upon the Exercise of Outstanding Outstanding Options Available for Future Issuance
Options, Restricted Stock Grants, Restricted Stock Grants, (Excluding Shares Reflected in
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights the First Column)
Equity compensation plans
plans approved by 2,086,146 % 17.96 460411
security holders
Equity compensation plans
not approved by security
holders N/A N/A N/A
Total 2,086,146 § 17.96 460,411

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, Director Independence

The information required by Item 13 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from “Management
Compensation — Transactions with Certain Related Persons” and “Information With Respect to Nominees for
Director, Continuing Directors and Executive Officers — Election of Directors” in the Proxy Statement. In the event
that such Proxy Statement is not filed on or prior to 120 days after the Company’s fiscal year end (April 29. 2008),
the Annual Report on Form 10-K wilt be amended to include the information required by Instruction G to Form 10-

K.

Itern 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by Item 14 of Form 10-K is incorporated by reference from “Ratification of
Appointment of Auditors” in the Proxy Statement. In the event that such Proxy Statement is not filed on or prior to
120 days after the Company’s fiscal year end (April 29, 2008), the Annual Report on Form 10-K will be amended to
include the information required by Instruction G to Form 10-K.
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules

(1) Financial Statements
The following financial statements of the registrant and its subsidiaries are filed as part of this
document under “Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data,” and are incorporated
herein by this reference:

Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at December 31, 2007 and 2006;

Consolidated Statements of Qperations for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005;

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity and Comprehensive Income
for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005;

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and
2005;

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements; and

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

(2) Financial Statement Schedules
All schedules are omitted because they are not required or are not applicable or the required
information is shown in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

(3) Exhibits

The exhibits filed or incorporated by reference herewith are as specified in the Exhibit Index.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned. thereunto duly authorized.

TIERONE CORPORATION

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Gilbert G. Lundsirom
Gilbert G. Lundstrom
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following person on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated.

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Gilbert G. Lundstrom

Gilbert G. Lundstrom
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ James A. Laphen

James A. Laphen
Chief Operating Officer and Director

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Eugene B. Witkowicz

Eugene B. Witkowicz
Chief Financial Officer and Corporate Secretary
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Campbell R. McConnell

Campbell R. McConnell
Director

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Joyce Person Pocras

Joyce Person Pocras
Director

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Ann Lindley Spence

Ann Lindley Spence
Director

Date: March 10, 2008 By:/s/ Charles W. Hoskins

Charles W. Hoskins
Director
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Exhibit Index

21 Stock Purchase Agreemem, dated as of March 30, 2004, among TierOne Corporation,
United Nebraska Financial Co. and the Shareholders of United Nebraska Financial Co. (1)
22 Agreement and Plan of Merger. dated as of May 17, 2007, by and amang CapitalSource Inc.,
CapitalSource TRS Inc. and TierQne Corporation (a) (8)
3.1 Articles of Incorporation of TierOne Corporation 2)
3.2 Byluws of TierOne Corporation )
4.0 Forms of Stock Centificate of TierOne Corporation (2)
10.1 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Bank and Gilbert (. Lundstrom* (5)
10.2 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Bank and James A. Laphen* (6}
10.3 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Corporation and Gilbert G. Lundsirom* (6)
10.4 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Corporation and James A, Laphen* (6}
10.5 Amended and Restated 1993 Supplemental Retirement Plan Agreement berween TierOne Bank and
Gitbert G. Lundstrom* (6)
10.6 Form of Amended and Restated Three- Year Change in Control Agreement between TierOne Bank,
TierOne Corporation and certain executive officers™ (6)
10.7 Form of Amended and Restated Two-Year Change in Control Agreement between TierOne Bank,
TierOne Corporation and certain executive officers* (6)
10.8 TierOne Bank Amended and Restated Employee Severance Plan* (6}
10.9 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for the TierOne Corporation Employee
Stock Ownership Plan* (6)
10.10 Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan for the TierOne Bank Savings Plan* (6}
10.11 TierOne Bank Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan* Filed Herewith
10.12 Fourth Amended and Restated Consultation Plan for Directors* (6)
10.13 TierOne Bank Management Incentive Compensation Plan* 4)
10,14 Form of Trust Agreement for Deferred Compensation and Supplemental Executive Retirement Plans of
TierOne Corporation and TierOne Bank* (6)
10.15 Amended and Restated 2003 Stock Option Plan* 6)
10.16 Form of Non-employee Director Compensatory Stock Option Agreement for use under the
2003 Stock Option Plan* (&3]
10.17 Form of Employee Compensatory Stock Option Agreement for use under the 2003 Stock Option Plan* 5)
10.18 Form of Employee Incentive Stock Option Agreement for use under 2003 Stock Option Plan* 5
13,19 Amended and Restated 2003 Management Recognition und Retention Plan and Trust Agreement® {6)
10.20 Form of award agreements for use under the Management Recognition and Retention
Plan and Trust Agreement* (5)
.21 First Amendment t0 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Corporation and
Gilbert G. Lundswom* (€]
10.22 First Amendment to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between TierOne Corporation and
James A. Laphen* (]
10.23 Firs1 Amendment to TierOne Rank Savings Plan Amended and Restated Supplemental Executive
Retirement Plan* N
2] Subsidiaries of the Registrant - "ltem 1. Business - Subsidiary Activities” of TierOne Corporation's Annual
Report on Farm 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 is incorporated by reference herein -
23 Consent of KPMG LLP Filed Herewith
311 Cenification pursuam to Rule 13a-14 of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934, as umended, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed Herewith
312 Cenification pursuant 1o Rule 13a-14 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendetl, as adopted
pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed Herewith
32.1 Centification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed Herewith
32.2 Certification of Chief Financiat Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 Filed Herewith
* PDenotes a management contract or compensatory plan or arangement.
(a) The disclosure schedules and exhibits to the Agreement and Plan of Merger were not filed with the Agreement.
TierOne Corporation has agreed to furnish supplementally a copy of any such schedules or exhibits
to the Securities and Exchange Commission upon request.
(i) Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2 of TierOne Corporation's Form 8-K filed on
August 31, 2004,
) Incorpoarated by reference o TierOne Corporation's Registrution Statement on Form S-1,
filed on April 8, 2002, as amended and declared effective on August 12, 2002 (File No. 333-85838)
{3 Incorporated herein by reference to TierOne Corporation’s definitive proxy
statement filed by TierOne Corporation with the SEC on March 11, 2003.
{4) Incorporated by reference to TierOne Corporation's Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 filed by TierOne Corporation
with the SEC on March 28, 2003.
{5} Incorporated by reference to TierOne Corporation's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2004 filed by TierOne Corporation with the SEC on March 9, 2005,
(6) Incorporated by reference to TierOne Corporatien's Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2006.
(N Incorporated by reference to TierOne Corporation's Annuat Repont on Form £0-K for the year
ended December 31, 2006 filed by TierOne Corporation with the SEC on March 12, 2007.
(%) Incorporated by reference to TierOne Corporatien's Form 8-K filed on May 23, 2007,
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